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Preface 

l . This Report has been prepared for submission to the Governor under Article 151 (2) of the 

Constitution. 

2. Chapters I and II of this Report contain audit findings on matters arising from 

examination of Finance Accounts and Appropriation Accounts respectively of the State 

Government for the year ended 31 March 2014. Information has been obtained from the 

Government ofTripura, wherever necessary. 

3. Chapter III on 'Financial Reporting' provides an overview and status of the State 

Government's compliance with various financial rules, procedures and directives issued 

during the current year. 

4. The Report containing the findings of performance audit and compliance audit in various 

departments, audit of Statutory Corporations, Boards, Government Companies and 

Revenue Receipts are presented separately. 
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Executive Summary 

Background 

This Report on the Finances of the Government of Tripura is being brought out with 

a view to assess the financial performance of the State during the year 2013-14. The 
aim of this Report is to provide the State Government with timely inputs based on 
actual data so that there is a better insight into both well performing as well as ill 
performing schemes/programmes of the Government. In order to give a perspective to 
the analysis, an effort has been made to compare the achievements with the targets 
envisaged by the State Government in Fiscal Responsibility and Budget Management 
Act, 2005 as well as in the Budget estimates of 2013-14. A comparison has been 
made to see whether the State had given adequate fiscal priority to developmental 
expenditure and whether the expenditure had been effectively absorbed by the 
intended beneficiaries. 

The Report 

Based on the audited accounts of the Government of Tripura for the year ended 
31 March 2014, this Report provides an analytical review of the Annual Accounts of 
the State Government. The Report is structured in three Chapters. 

Chapter I is based on the audit of Finance Accounts and makes an assessment of the 
Government of Tripura's fiscal position as on 31 March 2014. It provides an insight 
into trends in committed expenditure and borrowing pattern besides a brief account of 
Central funds transferred directly to the State implementing agencies through off­
budget route. 

Chapter II is based on audit of Appropriation Accounts and gives the grant-by-grant 
description of appropriations and the manner in which the allocated resources were 
managed by the service delivery departments. 

Chapter Ill is an inventory of Tripura Government's compliance with various 
reporting requirements and financial rules. This chapter provides details on non­
submission of annual accounts and delays in placement of Separate Audit Reports in 
the Legislature by the Autonomous Bodies. The report also has an appendage of 
additional data collated from several sources in support of the findings. 

Audit findings and recommendations 

Position of key fiscal parameters 

The fiscal position of the State viewed in terms of key fiscal parameters - revenue 
surplus, fiscal deficit and primary deficit indicated that the State had maintained 
revenue and primary surplus during 2009-14 except 2009-10 where it had a primary 
deficit. The State had also managed to achieve fiscal surplus consecutively for a third 
year beginning from 2011-12. 

vii 



The fiscal correction target had been achieved as envisaged in the framework of fiscal 
responsibility legislation. 

Revenue Receipts 

During 2013-14, f 6,329.75 crore (83 per cent) of the total revenue was from the 
Government of India as State share of union taxes and duties f l,630.25 crore 
(21 per cent) and Grants-in-aid f 4,699.50 crore (62 per cent). The 'Own Tax 
Revenue' of the State was fl,073.91 crore which constituted about 14 per cent of the 
total revenue receipts. The OTR during 2013-14 remained above (32.67 per cent) the 
normative assessment of f 809.48 crore made by the XIII Finance Commission 
for the State but remained below (9.30 per cent) the State's own projections of 
f 1,184.00 crore. The non-tax revenue was f 2,46.52 crore which constituted 3 per cent 
of the revenue receipts off 7,650.18 crore which was higher than the projections made 
both by the XIII FC (by 44. 76 per cent) and the State (by 12.05 per cent). 

The tax compliance measures have been enforced by the State Government. The 
Government should maintain the same momentum. 

Expenditure of the State Government 

During 2013-14, the Revenue expenditure stood at f 5,948.96 crore (78 per cent of the 
total expenditure) and grew by f 736.08 crore over the previous year. On the other 
hand, capital expenditure in 2013-14 increased by f 157.54 crore over the previous 
year which as a percentage of total expenditure remained constant over the previous 
year and increased by 10.62 per cent over 2012-13. 

During 2013-14, the development expenditure (f 4,866.80 crore) increased by 
f 616.24 crore over the previous year but the same was much below the Revised 
Estimate (f 6,141.08 crore) for 2013-14. The relative share of the revenue 
development expenditure was 45 per cent of the total expenditure while the share in 
respect of capital development expenditure was 18 per cent. The expenditure pattern 
of the State thus, revealed that as always there was an increasing pressure on revenue 
expenditure. On the other hand, the percentage of development capital expenditure 
relative to total development expenditure marginally decreased by 0.95 per cent in 

013-14 as compared to the previous year. 

The expenditure on non-plan salary component during 2013-14 was f 2,307.23crore 
which was significantly higher by f 741.17 crore (47 per cent) than the assessment 
made by the XIII FC for the State (f 1,556.06 crore) and constituted about 39 per cent 
of the total revenue expenditure. 

The high proportion of salaries to total revenue expenditure much beyond the 
assessment of the XIII FC may have adverse impact on the State's financial health as 
the State's own resources are meagre . 

.. 
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Fiscal Correction Path 

During 2013-14, the State had achieved revenue surplus which stood at! 
~ 1,701.22 crore and decreased by~ 136.20 crore from~ 1,837.42 crore in 2012-13 
and the fiscal surplus stood at~ 45.68 crore against~ 336.56 crore in 2012-13 mainl 
due to increase in Capital Expenditure during the year. The fiscal surplus as 
percentage of GSDP of the State during 2013-14 stood at 0.18 per cent of GSDP 
against the target of fiscal deficit of 3.00 per cent as projected in the TFRBM Act, 
2005 for the year 2013-14. 

Keeping in view the recommendations of the X/11 Finance Commission, the State 
should continue to maintain fiscal surplus to achieve the targets as fixed in the FRB 
in the ensuing years. 

Fiscal liabilities 

rrhe percentage of outstanding liabilities to GSDP during 2013-14 was 33.51 , which 
was lower than the projection (44.20 per cent) in the Medium Term Fiscal Policy 
Statement (MTFPS) and the projection made in the TFRBM Act. During 2013-14, 
interest receipts as percentage of outstanding loans and advances by the Government 
was 0.99 per cent whereas interest paid by the Government as a percentage o 
outstanding liabilities was 6. 77. 

Investment and Returns 

Investment of Government money in Government Companies and Statutory 
Corporations are increasing year after year but no return from the investment had 
been received by the Government during 2013-14. The average rate of interest on 
Government borrowings was 8.53 per cent during the year 2013-14. 

The State Government may review the functioning of the Companies and Statutory 
Corporations to improve their efficiency. 

Financial Management and Budgetary Control 

The overall savings of~ 3,256.49 crore during 2013-14 was the result of saving o 
~ 3,268.46 crore in 57 Grants/ Appropriations offset by excess of~ 11 .97 crore in five 
Grants/Appropriations. As on 31 March 2014, there was an excess expenditure ofi 
~ 89.77 crore (including~ 77.80 crore for 2011-12 and 2012-13) over the provision 
which requires regularisation by the Legislature under Article 205 of the Constitution 
of India. A rush of expenditure was also observed at the end of the year 2013-14. In 
respect of 11 Grants/ Appropriations, more than 30 per cent of the total expenditure 
was incurred in the last month of the financial year. In 45 cases, there were savings o 
more than ~ I 0 lakh each but the same were not surrendered till the end of the year. 
The Abstract Contingent Bills were not adjusted for long periods and therefore 
continuing with unadjusted contingent bills invites the risk of fraud and 
misappropriation. 

Budgetary controls should be strengthened in all the Government departments, 
particularly in the departments where savings/excess persisted for last five years. 
A close and rigorous monitoring mechanism should be put in lace by the DDOs to 
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adjust the Abstract Contingent Bills within sixty days from the date of drawal of the 
amount as required under the extant Rules. The Departments should follow more 
reliable mechanisms in budgeting and control over expenditure to avoid persistent 
savings or excess. 

Financial Reporting 

Reconciliation of the Government receipts and expenditure was done with that 0£ 
expenditure booked in the records of Accountant General (Accounts and Entitlement) 
by all the Controlling Officers during 2013-14. 

However, the practice of non-furnishing of Utilisation Certificates in time against 
grants received, non-furnishing of detailed information about financial assistance 
received by various Institutions and non-submission of accounts in time indicates 
non-compliance with financial rules. There were also delays in placement of Separate 
Audit Reports to Legislature and huge arrears in fmalisation of accounts by the 
Autonomous Bodies/ Authorities. There is a need to ensure that the audit reports of the 

utonomous Bodies are placed in the legislature on time and submission of UCs 
within the prescribed time should be obtained from the recipients of grants. 
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CHAPTERl 

Profile of State 

FINANCES OF THE 
STATE GOVERNMENT 

The State is located in the North Eastern Region of India. It is the third smallest State 

in the country in terms of geographical area ( 10,491.69 sq. km) and second highest 
populous State of North East after Assam. The State stands 18th in terms of population 

density in the country. As indicated in Appendix I. I (Part-D) the State 's population 

increased from 3 l.99 lakh (200 1) to 36. 74 lakh (20 I 1) recording a decadal growth of 

14.85 per cent. The State 's literacy rate increased from 73.20 per cent (as per.2001 

census) to 87.75 per cent (as per 2011 census). The Per Capi ta income (Economic 

Review of Tripura 2012- 13) of the State was estimated at ~ 60,963 (A) in 2012-1 3 

against the all India average of~ 68,757. 

Gross State Domestic Product (GSDP) 

GSDP is the market value of all officially recognised final goods and services 

produced within the State in a given period of time. The growth of GSDP of the State 

is an important indicator of the State's economy as it indicates the standard of living 

of the State ' s population. The trends in the annua l growth of India' s GDP at factor 

cost at current market price and the State GSDP at fac tor cost at current prices are 

indicated below: 

Annual growth rate of GDP and GSDP at factor cost at current prices 

Year 2009-10 2010-11 20ll-12 2012-13 2013-14 

India's GDP (fin crore}' 6 108903 7248860 839 169 1 9388876 I 0472807(P) 

Growth rate of GDP (percentage) 15. 18 18.66 15.77 11 .88 11 .54 

State' s GSDP ( (in crorel 15402.70 17867.73 2098 l.74 (P) 23854. 70 (A) 26,072 .57(Q) 

Growth rate ofGSDP 13.48 16.00 l 7.43 13.69 

* Central Stalistical Office (CSO), Minis/I')' of S1atis tics and Programme Implementation. 
# Quarterly review report of the Finance Minister for the third Quarter 2013-14; (P): Provisional Estimate. 

(A) Advance Estimate and (Q) Quick Estimate. 

I.I. Introduction 

1.1.l Summary of Fiscal Transactions in 2013-14 

Table 1.1 presents the summary of the State Government's fiscal transactions while 

Appendix 1.2 provides details of receipts and di sbursements as well as the overa ll 

fiscal position duri ng the current year (20 13- 14) vis-a-vis the previous year (2012-13 ). 

9.30 
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Finances of the State Government 

Table No. 1.1: Summary of Fiscal operations 
(~in crore) 

a.lpts Dlsbune•nts 

2012-13 2013-14 Partlculan 2012-13 2013-14 
SeetiOB-A: Revenue Non-Plan Plan Total 
Revenue 7050.30 7650.18 Revenue 5212.88 4549.02 1399.94 5948.96 
recei ts 
Tax revenue 1004.65 1073.9 1 2 167.48 2330.48 14.8 1 2345.29 

Non-tax 178.75 Social Services 2055.37 1306.67 1101.22 2407.89 
revenue 
Share of Union 1493. 18 88 1.43 764.38 283.91 1048.29 
Taxes/ Duties 
Grants from 4373.72 108.60 147.49 0.00 147.49 
Government of 
lndia 

.ca &others 
Misc. Capital 0.00 
Recei ts 
Recoveries of 1.26 18.93 0.27 15.50 15.77 
Loans and 
Advances 
Public Debt 834.0 1 312.49 0.00 219.91 219.91 
recei ts 
Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00- 0.00 0.00 
Fund 
Public Account 2 173.68 Public Account 1893.66 2 11 6. 13 2116.13 

1521.35 2659.45 3787.19* 

(Source: Finance Accounts) 

*The closing cash balance has been taken on the higher side at ~ 3,787.1 9 crore instead o r~ 3,787. 18 crore due to 
rounding off. 

~ Revenue receipts increased by ~ 599.88 crore (8.5 1 per cent) during 201 3-14 

over the previous year due to increase in Tax Revenue by 6.89 per cent, State 
share of union taxes by 9.1 8 per cent and Grants from Gol by 7.45 per cent. 
The Non-tax Revenue of the State increased by 37.91 per cent during 2013-14 
as compared to 2012-1 3. 

~ Revenue Expenditure increased by ~ 736.08 crore (1 4. 12 per cent) during the 
year 201 3-14 as compared to 201 2-1 3 due to increase in expenditure under 
Economic Service by 18.93 p er cent, Social Service by 17. I 5 per cent and 
General Service by 8.20 per cent over the previous year. About 76.47 per cent 
of Revenue Expenditure was under Non-Plan during 201 3-1 4 . 

~ Public Debt receipts decreased by 5.64 per cent due to reduction in borrowing 
from open market by 15 p er cent and Loans from NABARD by 4 per cent 
during the year 201 3-14. Receipts from National Small Savings Funds (NSSF) 

however, increased by ~ 33. 12 crore (80 per cent) during 201 3-14 over the 
previous year. Repayment of Public Debt was ~ 219 .91 crore which decreased 

by ~ 92.58 crore (30 per cent) during 2013-14 over the year 201 2-1 3. 

••• Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 
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Finances of the State Government 

)> Capital outlay increased by ~ 157.54 crore ( 10.62 p er cent) in 20 13- 14 over 

the previous year mainly due to increase in expenditure under General Service 

by ~ 57.53 crore (30.59 per cent), Social Service by ~ 52.19 crore (8.63 p er 

cent) and Economic Service by~ 47.82 crore (6.93 p er cent) during the year. 

1.1.2 Review of the Fiscal Situation 

Tripura Fiscal Responsibility and Budget Management (FRBM) Act, 2005 

As per recommendations of the XII Finance Commission (XIl FC), the Tripura Fiscal 

Responsibility and Budget Management (TFRBM) Act, 2005 was enacted which 

required preparation of Medium Term Fiscal Policy Statement (MTFPS) alongwith 

other documents1 for being placed in the Assembly during the Budget Session. The 

XIlI Finance Commission (XIII FC) recommended that every State needs to amend 
the FRBM Act and work out a fi scal reform path to make credible progress towards 

fisca l consolidation. Accordingly, Tripura had amended the TFRBM Act and had 

revised the MTFPS targets since 20 l 0-1 I . 

Major fiscal variables provided in the budget based on recommendations of the Xlll 

Finance Commission and the actuals vis-a-vis the target in the FRBM Act of the State, 

are depicted in Table No. 1.2 below: 

Table No. 1.2: Trends in major fisca l variations vis-a-vis projections for 2013-14 

Revenue Deficit (-)/Surplus(+) 
~in crore 
Fisca l Delicit(-)/Surplus (+) to 
GSDP ratio in er cent) 
Ratio of outstanding debt to 
GSDP in er cent 

To maintain Revenue surplus 

(-) 3.00 (-) 3.00 (-) 3.00 

44.00 44.20 44.20 

Source: XllL FC, Medium Term Fiscal Policy Statement, Finance Accounts. 

(+) 1701.22 

(+)0.18 

33 .S I 

During 20 13- 14, the State Government had achieved all the three targets fixed in the 

TFRBM Act. Like previous years, the State bad maintained revenue surplus during 

the curTent year as well, though the surplus had decreased to 22.24 p er cent from 

26.06 per cent of total revenue receipts over the previous year. The State Government 

was ab le to achieve the fiscal surplus-GSDP ratio of 0.18 p er cent as against the fiscal 

deficit - GSDP ratio of 3.00 p er cent set in the FRBM Act and MTFPS though it was 

1.41 per cent in 2012-13. The debt-GSDP ratio had also been maintained within the 

target of 44.20 p er cent prescribed in TFRBM Act and MTFPS. 

The achievement vis-a-vis targets prescribed in the TFRBM Act as well as MTFPS 

were mainly due to increase in total revenue receipts by 8.51 per cent and increase in 

grants from Gol by 7.45 p er cent in 20 13-14 over the previous year. 

Dw'ing 2013-14, fiscal surplus stood at~ 45 .68 crore which is 0.18 per cent of GSDP. 

1 Macroeconomic Framework Statement, Fiscal Policy Strategy Statement and eight Disclosures to be filled up in 
respecti ve fom1s. 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 ••• 
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Finances of the State Government 

1.1.3 Budget Estimates and Actuals 

The Budget Estimates of the State Government provides an estimate of revenue 
receipts and expenditure thereof for a particular financial year. Government have set 
various parameters to come out with these estimates based on past experience on 
various fiscal variables. The projected estimates are important as they guide the State 
Government's Fiscal Policy for a financial year. The accuracy in the estimates of 
receipt and expenditure reflects the fiscal marksmanship and effective implementation 
of fiscal policies for the overall socio-economic development of the State. Deviation 
from the estimates on the other hand indicates poor planning and implementation of 
fiscal objectives. The following table shows the Budget Estimates and Actuals for 
selected Parameters. 

Table No. 1.3: Budget and Actuals 2013-14 

Tax Revenue 1,257.30 1,073.91 
Non-Tax Revenue 2,78.00 2,46.52 
State Share of Union Taxes and Duties 1, 775.00 1,630.25 

4 753.00 786.98 
5 7,140.06 5,948.96 
6 2,502.25 1,640.73 
7 + 1,701.222 

8 + 45.68 

It was 

year 2013-14. The collection of non-tax revenue decreased by ~ 31.48 crore 

(11.32 per cent) during the same period. There was a surplus/savings in the projected 
revenue expenditure by 16.68 per cent. There was a sharp shortfall in capital 
expenditure by~ 861.52 crore i.e. 34.43 per cent less than the budget estimates for the 
year 2013-14. 

Financial Projection 

In the budget speech 2013-14 there was no proposal for new tax, or increasing the rate 
of existing taxes. But the Finance Minister felt the necessity to improve the tax 
collection to meet part of committed liabilities and support developmental activities of 
the Government as the taxes play most vital role in mobilisation of financial resources 
for development work. Hence, the Government took some important initiatives to 
collect more taxes through introduction of electronic device during 2012-13. 

With the aim of improving efficiency, ensure transparency and making it dealers ' 
friendly, the State had implemented "Mission Mode Project for Computerisation of 
Tax Administration (MMPCT)" at a cost of~ 730.41 lakh. Only~ 374.64 lakh could 

be utilised during 2010-14 under the project and the organisation had implemented 

2 Revenue surplus of~ 1,701.22 crore stated in the Audit Report hereafter is inclusive of ( 16.74 crore being 
written off central loans. 

• • • 
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Finances of the State Government 

only four out of eight modules like e-registration of dealers, e-filling of returns, 
e-payment of taxes and e-pennit since 2012- 13. 

Mode of Financing Fiscal Deficit 

According to the Budget Speech 2013-14, the fiscal deficit was anticipated to be 
~ 205.39 crore. It was stated in the Budget Speech that this deficit would be met by 

means of implementing austerity measures and mobilising additional revenue during 
the year. The fiscal deficit however was projected in the revised estimate as 

(-) ~ 782.95 crore for the year 2013-14 but the actual surplus was~ 45.68 crore. 

1.1.4 Gender Budgeting 

ln order to create a positive environment through economic and social pol icies 
for development of women and children to enable them to realise their full potential 

and to ensure equal rights and opportunities to them in their social and economic life 
and for their protection, the State Government introduced Gender Budget with 
~ 149.82 crore out of total budget of~ 3,689.15 crore in the year 2005-06. The State 
Government allocates funds for women fully or partly on schemes within the overall 

budget. An amount of~ 360.25 crore (18 per cent) was allocated to 17 departments in 

the revised estimates for the year 2013-14 out of total plan outlay of ~ 2,039.96 crore 
for the year. The details of year-wise a llocation of funds under Gender Budget for the 

last five years are given in Appendix 1.3. 

Scrutiny of budget records revealed that out of a total provision for plan outlay, 
18 to 28 per cent was allocated for women during 2009- 10 to 2013-14 of which the 
financial achievement ranged between 47 and 96 per cent during the period. Details 

are given in table below: 

Table No. 1.4: Provision and achievement of Gender Budget during 2009-1 4 

(~i11 crore) 

Total ~get for 
Provision for gender budget Fbuuaclal achievement 

Year plan tlay (percentage of total plan (percentage of achievement) 
nrovlslon\ 

2009- 10 1,313.90 350.84 (27) 335.76 (96) 
2010- 11 1,053.92 294.84 (28) 194.54 (66) 
20 11-12 1,302.36 304.64 (23) 142.86 (47) 
2012-13 1,864.55 421.44 (23) 289.93 (69) 
2013- 14 2,039.96 360.25 (18) 254.56 (71) 

The above table shows that during 20 l 3- 14, ~ 360.25 crore ( 18 per cent) was 

allocated for implementation of various schemes for women through 17 development 

departments (Appendix 1.3) and the financial achievement was ~ 254.56 crore which 
was about 7 1 per cent of the budget provision for women as compared to 69 per cent 
in 2012-13. Analysis of the plan outlay and financial achievement of the various 
departments under Gender Budget revealed that during 2013-14, in 11 departments 
the achievement were more than 70 per cent and in two cases, the achievement was 
more than 60 per cent but in the remaining four cases, the achievement were below 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 ••• 
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Finances of the State Government 

35 per cent. This resulted in over all saving of~ 105.69 crore during 2013-14, i.e. 
29 per cent of the budget provision. 

1.2 Resources of the State 

1.2.1 Resources of the State as per the Annual Finance Accounts 

Revenue and Capital are the two streams of receipts that constitute the resources of 
the State Government. Revenue receipts consist of Tax Revenues, Non-tax Revenues, 
State's share of Union Taxes and Duties and Grants-in-aid from the Government of 
India (Gol). Capital receipts comprise Miscellaneous Capital Receipts such as 
proceeds from Disinvestments, Recoveries of Loans and Advances, Debt receipts 
from internal sources (Market Loans, Borrowings from Financial Institutions/ 
Co1mnercial Banks) and Loans and Advances from Gol. Besides the funds available 
in the Public Accounts after disbursement is also uti lised by the Government to 
finance its requirement. Table No.1.1 and Appendix 1.2 presents the receipts and 
disbursements of the State during the current year as recorded in its Annual Finance 
Accounts while Chart No. 1.1 depicts the trends in various components of the 
receipts of the State during 2 009-14. 

Following flowchart show the components and sub-components of resources of the 
State. 

Total receipts: ~ 8953.1 l crore I 

+ + • I Revenue receipts: 

I 
Capital rece ipts: Public Accounts 

~ 7650. 18 crore ~ 787 .94 crore Receipt (net) (i.e. 

• funds available • • + + + + with Government 
fo r use): Debt receipts: Non -debt 

Tax revenue: Non tax States share Grants in 
~ 786.98 crore receipts: ~ 514.99 crore 

~ 1073.9 1 crore receipts: of Union aid from 
~ 0.96 crorc ~ ~ 246.52 taxes and Gol: • crore duties: ~ 4699.50 + Small saving, PF: 

~ 1630.25 crore Market loan: ~ 326.99 crore • Proceeds from crore ~ 550.03 crore Reserve funds: 
Taxes on sales, trade, etc.: Borrowings: disinvestment: 

~ 68.98 crore 
~ 837.09 ~ 233.22 crore Nil 

State Excise: ~ I I 5. 18 crore Loans and Recoveries of Deposits/advances: 

Stamps and registration fees: advances from loans and ~ 92.72 crore 

~ 39.24 crore Go!:~ 3.73 crore advances: 
Suspense/ Misc. 

Land Revenue: ~ 8.07 crore ~ 0.96 crore 
(-)~ 19.68crore 

Taxes on vehicles etc : 
Remittances: 

~ 36.79 crore 
~ 45.98 crore 

Other Taxes:~ 37.54 crore 
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Chart No. 1.1: Trend in Composition of receipt during 2009-14 
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Revenue receipts of tbe State increased from ~ 4,401.35 crore in 2009- l 0 to 

~ 7 ,650.1 8 crore in 2013-14 which represented an increase of about 74 per cent over a 
period of fi ve years. Thi s was contributed by 17 per cent increase in Tax revenue, 
Non-Tax by 4 per cent, 28 per cent in State' s share of Union Taxes and Duties and 

51 per cent increase in Grants-in-aid from the Government oflndia. 

On the other hand, the Capital receipts of the State showed a growth rate 
of 58 per cent over the years from ~ 497.32 crore in 2009-10 to ~ 787.94 crore in 
2013- 14. This was mainly due to increase in internal debt of the State which increased 
from~ 490.52 crore in 2009-10 to ~ 783.25 crore in 2013-14 registering an increase 

of 60 per cent in five years offset by decrease of~ 2.55 crore under recoveries of 
Loans & Advances. The Internal Debt receipt however, decreased by ~ 47.28 crore in 

20 13-14 over the previous year while Gol loan increased slightly during the year. The 
growth in Public Account receipts was 15 per cent during 2009-14. As a whole, the 
total receipts under consolidated fund during 20 .13-14 increased by 72 per cent over 

the year 2009-10. 

The increase in various components of receipt in 20 13-14 in comparison to that of 
2012-13 is presented in Chart Nos.1.2 & 1.3 below: 

Chart No. 1.2: Composition of 
Receipts during 2012-13 

2173.68, 
22% 

835.27, 
8% 

7050.3, 
70% 

• Revenue Receipts 
• Capital Receipts 
• Public Account Receipts 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 

Chart No. 1.3 : Composition of 
Receipts during 2013-14 
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1.2.2 Funds transferred to State Implementing Agencies outside the 
State Budget 

The Central Government has been transferring a sizeable quantum of funds directly to 

the State implementing agencies3 for implementation of various schemes/programmes 

in social and economic Services, which are recognised as critical. These funds are not 

routed through the State Budget/State Treasury System and hence do not find mention 

in the finance Accounts of the State. As such, the Annual Finance Accounts of the 

State does not provide a complete picture of the resources of the State. The funds 

transferred directly to the State Implementing Agencies during the last five years are 

presented in Table No. 1.5. 
Table No. 1.5: Funds transferred by Central Government directly to the State 

Implementing Agencies outside the State Budget 

No. of Programmes I Schemes under 
which funds were transferred 

91 73 68 63 57 

Total Funds transferred by Central 
Government 

l ,568.64 962.59 1,753.28 1,618.36 1,763.55 

Source: 'Central Plan Scheme Monitoring System' portal of the Contrnller General of Accounts' website. 

During the year 2013-14 an approximate amount of~ 1,763.55 crore was transferred 

directly by Government of India to the State Implementing Agencies under 57 

schemes. The details of the Implementing Agencies to which the funds were 

transferred are presented in Appendix 1.4. 

Out of~ 1,763.55 crore, ~ 943.66 crore (54 per cent) was released towards Mahatma 

Gandhj National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme (MGNREGS) whlch 

increased by 23 per cent over the previous year and~ 128 crore (7.26 per cent) was 

released towards Rural Housing - Indira Awaas Yojana (IAY) scheme (increased by 

about I 07 per cent) while funds released towards the National Rural Drinking Water 

Program (NRDWP) was~ 89.93 crore, National Rural Health Mission (NRHM) was 

~ 109.61 crore, Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY) was~ 98.83 crore 

Rastriya Madhyamik Shik:sha Abhiyan (RMSA) was~ 23.65 crore and Sarva Shiksba 

Abruyan (SSA) was ~ 159.91 crore during the year. With the transfer of an 

approximate amount of~ 1,763.55 crore directly by Gol to the State Implementing 

Agencies, the total availability of State resources during 2013-14 had increased from 

~ 13,728.69 crore to~ 15,492.24 crore. 

1.3 Revenue Receipts 
Statement-11 of the Finance Accounts details the revenue receipts of the Government. 

The revenue receipts of the State consist of its own tax and non-tax revenues, central 

tax transfers and grants-in-aid from Gol. The trends and composition of revenue 

receipts over the period 2009-14 are presented in Chart Nos. 1.4 & 1.5 respectively. 

3 State implementing agencies include any organisation/institution including Non-Governmental 
organisation which is authorised by the State Government to receive funds from the Governrnent of 
India for implementing specific programmes in the State . 
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Chart No. 1.4: T rends in component of Revenue Receipts 
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Chart No. 1.5: Components of Revenue Receipts d uring 2009-14 
(~in crore) 

Q ,.., 
Q 0 

<n 
Q 
r-

2009-10 2010-11 2011 - 12 2012-13 2013-14 

00 .... 
Q 
on 
\Q 

Iii Own Tax Ill Own Non-tax Iii Central Tax Transfers Iii Grants-in-aid from GOI Iii Total 

Over the last three years, the increase in own tax revenue receipts was mainly due to 
increase in receipt on Tax on sales, trade, etc (VAT) which was due to revision of 
rates (41

h May 2011) made by the Government. 

The trends in revenue receipts and buoyancy ratios relative to GSDP during 2009- 14 
are presented in Table No. 1.6. 
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Table No. J .6: Trends in Revenue Receipts and Buoyancy Ratios relative to GSDP 

5168.60 
25.31 
30.87 

Revenue Buo anc w.r.tGSDP 1.09 1.45 0.65 0.91 
State's Own Tax Buo anc w.r.tGSDP l.41 1.13 2.17 1.25 0.74 
Reveouc Buoyancy with refereoce to 0.42 0.96 0.67 0.52 1.24 
State's own taxes 

The State's Own Tax Buoyancy with respect to GSDP was in the range of 1.13 to 
2.17 during 2009-10 to 2012- 13. The buoyancy ratio had been positive for all the 
years and it stood at 0.74 p er cent in 2013- 14. During 2013-14, there was no 
significant change as compared to the previous year in the rate of growth of revenue 
receipts. 

1.3.1 State's Own Resources 

State's share in central taxes and grants-in-aid are determined on the basis of 
recommendations of the Finance Commission and the State 's perfonnance in 
mobilisation of resources is assessed in tenns of its own resources comprising own 
tax and non-tax sources. Though the Tax and Non-Tax revenue formed a minor part 
of the States resources, the performances of the State in mobilisation of Tax and Non­
Tax is important in the long run for attaining self sufficiency or reduced dependency 
on Central Government. The State bad adopted various fiscal policy measures viz; 
TFRBM Act, MTFPS to achieve this goal. The State's actual tax and non tax receipts 
for the year 2013-14 vis-a-vis assessment made by Xffi FC, MTFPS and Revised 

Estimates are given in Table No. 1.7: 

Table No. J.7: Projection of XIII FC, MTFPS, Revised Estimates vis-a-vis the actuals in 
respect of Tax and Non-Tax Revenue 

(~in crore) 
/ Xlll FC projections MTFPS oroJecttoa Rmsed Estimates Actuals 

Tax revenue 809.48 1, 184.00 1,257.30 1,073.91 
Non-tax revenue 170.29 220.00 278.00 246.52 

The Revised estimates of the State in respect of Own Tax and Non-tax revenue for the 
year 20 13-14 were much higher than the Xlll FC Projections for the year. The actual 
receipt of Tax and Non-Tax Revenue was higher than the Xlll FC Projections by 
32.67 per cent and 44.76 per cent respectively during the year 20 13-14. But it was 
lower than the Revised Estimates. 

i) Tax Revenue 

Overall increase of Tax revenue of the State during the year was 6.89 per cent 
from~ 1,004.65 crore in 20 12-13 to~ 1,073.91 crore in 2013-14. The increase in 

the revenue was mainly under the heads of major taxes viz. Taxes on Vehicles 

4Buoyancy ratio indicates the elasticity or degree of responsiveness of a fi scal variable with respect to a 
given change in the base variable. For instance revenue buoyancy at 0.6 implies that revenue receipts 
tend to increase by 0.6 percentage points if the GSDP increases by one per cent. 

• • • 
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(19.72 per cent), Taxes on Sales, Trades, etc. (9.70 per cent), Stamp duty and 
Registration fees (6.89 per cent) while it decreased by 69.48 per cent in respect of 

Land Revenue as shown in Table No. 1.8. 

Table No. 1.8: Components of State's Tax Revenue 
(~in crore) 

Percentage 
increase In 

Revenue Head 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 
over 

2012-13 
Taxes on sales, trades, etc. 374.93 444.93 666.32 763.07 837.09 9.70 
Stale excise 61.09 85.85 94.68 114.00 11 5. 18 1.03 
Taxes on vehicles 37. 14 21.9 1 25.18 30.73 36.79 19.72 
Stamp duty and Registration fees 18. 15 24.23 30.73 36.71 39.24 6.89 
Land revenue 5.55 15.25 9.33 26.44 8.07 (-) 69.48 
Other taxes5 30. 15 30.17 31.78 33.70 37.54 

Total: 527.01 622.34 858.02 1,004.65 1.073.91 
Source: Finance Accounts for tbe respective years 

During 2013-14, Own Tax Revenue (OTR) of the State remained higher than the 
normative assessment~ 809.48 crore) made by the XTII Finance Commission for the 

State for the year. The major contribution to OTR was from taxes on sa les, Trade, 
etc., and State Excise during the year 2013-14. 

There was a substantial decrease in Land Revenue collection by 69.48 per cent during 

2013-14 over 2012-13. 

Growth of the different components of Tax revenue during 2009-10 to 2013-14 over 
the previous years is depicted graphically below: 

Chart No. 1.6: Component growth of Tax Revenue (in per cent) 

'° 60 .,..----------~--=;----------.~....-------.., '° so +----~;---~..;-_.,.,,-=---....-----------"-------
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ii Tax on Sale, Trade, etc. 
WTaxes on Vehicles 
u Other Taxes 

ii State Excise 
Iii Stamp Duty & Registration Fees 

5 Other taxes include other taxes on commodities & services ~ 1.64 crore); taxes and duties on 
electricity~ 0.02 crore); agricultural income(~ 0.85 crore); and taxes on profession, trade, call ings 
& employment~ 35.03 crore). 
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The above chart shows variation in the growth of the components of the state's 
Tax revenue collection during the last five years from 2009-10 to 
2013-14. The growth rate of all the components of Tax revenue were lesser in 
2013-14 as compared to 20 12-13. 

ii) Non-tax Revenue 

The Non-tax Revenue receipts of the State stood at ~ 246.52 crore in 20 13-14 
against~ 178.75 crore in 2012-13, an increase of 37.91 per cent over 2012-13. This 
increase was mainly due to more collection under the head ' Interest receipts ' in which 
~ 86.47 crore was collected during 2013- 14 against~ 67.88 crore in 2012-13. No 
dividend was received during the year. 

Trends in growth of different components of Non-tax Revenue during 2009-14 are 

depicted in Table No. 1.9. 

Table No. 1.9: Component-wise growth trends of Non-tax Revenue 
(~in crore) 

2CJ09..10 2010..11 1011-12 Percentage 
iner~+)I 

decrease( .. ) in 
201J.;.14 over 

2012 .. ;u 
27.88 23.24 50.66 67.88 86.47 27.39 

0.00 0. 13 25.95 0.67 
Other non-tax recei ts 97.52 108.42 137.61 110.20 160.05 45.24 

Total: 125.40 131.79 214.22 178.75 246.52 37.91 

Sector-wise receipts of Non-tax Revenue are given in Table No. 1.10. 

Table No. 1.10: Sector-wise non-tax revenue receipts 
(~ in crore) 

Name of Sector 2009-10 ···. 2010..11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
General Service 62.35 50.75 64.35 44.55 70.80 

(49.72) (38.51) (30.04) (24.93) (28.72) 
Social Service 9.47 8.60 10.82 11.98 14.30 

(7.55) (6,53) (5.05) (6.70) (5.80) 
Economic Service 25.70 49.07 62.44 53 .66 74.95 

(20.50) (37.23) (29.15) (30.02) (30.40) 
Interest Receipts, 27.88 23.37 76.6 1 68.55 86.47 
dividends, etc. (22.23) (17.73) (35.76) (38.35) (35.08) 

Total: 125.40 131.79 214.22 178.75 246.52 

It was seen from the above table that there was a percentage decline in receipt of Non­
tax Revenue in respect of Social Services and Interest Receipts while there was an 
increase in receipt in respect of the General and Economic Services during the year 
2013-14. Though the percentage of interest receipts decreased during the year, it 
increased by ~ 17 .92 crore in absolute value as compared to 2012-13 due to more 
receipts from investment of cash balances. The increase in Economic Services was 
due to more collection amounting to ~ 21.29 crore over previous year un.der 
Other Transport Services (~ 2.40 crore) and Environmental Forestry and Wild life 
~ 1.62 crore) among others . 

• • • 
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1.3.2 Grants-in-aid from Gol 

Grants-in-aid from Centre to the State, a discretionary component of central transfers, 
is considered to be an integral element of the revenue receipts of the State. The grants­
in-aid increased every year in absolute terms, but as a percentage to total revenue 
receipts there had been a declining trend over the last five years. While the percentage 
was 69 in 2009-10, it came down to 61 in 2013-14. The table below shows the 
composition of the grants-in-aid and its trend over the last five years: 

Table No. 1.11: Grants-in-aid received from Gol 

Non-Plan Grants 1289.09 1230.57 1289.76 1150.62 
Grants for State Plan Schemes 1377.64 1745.48 2450.06 2691.59 3004.78 
Grants for Central Plan Schemes 32.56 29.29 46.79 33.34 35.21 

During 2013-14, the State had received an amount of~ 4,699 .50 crore as Grants-in­
aid from Gol out of which ~ 1,150.62 crore was Non-plan Grants. An amount of 
~ 834.92 crore was received as Revenue Deficit Grant, ~ 30.70 crore for State 
Disaster Response Fund (SDRF) and ~ 31.00 crore grant for Maintenance of Roads 
and Bridges under Non-plan during the year 2013-14. There was not much change in 
absolute terms in the amount of Non-Plan grants during 2009-10 to 2013-14. 
However, it decreased substantially by~ 139.14 crore in 2013-14 over 2012-13. 

1.3.3 Debt waiver under the Debt Consolidation and Relief Facilities 

According to the guidelines of Debt Consolidation and Relief Facility (DCRF), the 
XII Finance Commission (XII FC) had recommended that the Central Loans to States 
contracted till 31 March 2004 and outstanding as on 31 March 2005 would 
be consolidated and rescheduled for a fresh term of 20 years with interest rate of 
7 .5 per cent to be paid in 20 years in 20 equal instalments subject to enactment of a 
Fiscal Responsibility and Budget Management Act by the State. 

The XII FC had also framed a Debt Waiver Scheme named "Debt Consolidation and 
Relief Facility (DCRF)" based on the fiscal performance of the State linked to the 
reduction of revenue deficit and control of fiscal deficit of the State. 

The State Government enacted the Tripura Fiscal Responsibility and Budget 
Management Act, 2005 and the rules for carrying out the provision of the Act which 
were published in October 2006. 

As on 31 March 2005, the principal amount of Central Loan of ~ 444.02 crore in 
respect of Government of Tripura was outstanding which was to be repaid in 20 equal 
instalments (i.e. , ~ . 22.25 crore per instalment) with an interest rate of 7.5 p er cent 
from the year 2005-06, consequent upon the enactment of the TFRBM Act. 
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The State had witnessed revenue surplus since 2003-04. Based on this fiscal 
performance, the State had availed Debt Waiver benefit under the DCRF Scheme for 

the XII FC period upto 2008-09 and received consolidated amount of~ 89.00 crore 

upto March 2013. 

On the recommendation of XIU FC, Central loan under Central Plan Schemes and 
Centrally Sponsored Schemes, advanced to the State Government by the different 
Minish·ies other than the Ministry of Filrnnce and outstanding as on 31-03-2010 had 
been written off. An amount of~ 16.74 crore being written off Joans by different 

Ministries had been adjusted during the year 2013-14 against the respective 
Minish·ies. Of the written off central loans, ~ J 4.43 crore pertains to the Ministry of 

Agriculture and Co-operation and~ 1.09 crore to the Ministry of Water Resources. 

As per recommendation of the XIII FC the State Government had amended the 
TFRBM Act, 2005 in April 2011 and renamed it as Tripura Fiscal Responsibility and 
Budget Management (3rd Amendment) Act, 2011. Accordingly, the State had also 
revised its MT FPS targets since 2010-11. As recommended by the XIII FC, the State 
Government had received~ 112.37 crore in 2011-12, ~ 23.85 crore in 2012-13 and 

~ 22.36 crore in 2013-14 from the Central Government as Non-plan Grants for State 
specific needs for creation of capital assets. 

1.3.4 Central Tax Transfers 

The XIII FC recommended 32 per cent share of Union Taxes to the State of Tripura 
during the XIII FC period from 2010-11 upto 2014-15. The XIII FC also 
recommended average devolution of share of Union Taxes at 9.31 per cent of GSDP 
during the period while it was 4.74 per cent in the XII FC period. 

During the last fi ve year period from 2009-10 to 2013-14, the devolution of different 
component of State's Share of Union Taxes was as under: 

Table No. l.12: Trend in components of State's Share of Union Taxes 
(~ in crore) 

290.73 438.70 514.68 
Income tax 161.95 23 1.83 261.43 321.1 l 
Taxes on wealth 0.66 0.90 1.98 0.91 1.51 
Union Excise & Customs 178.5 1 339.03 373.42 416.75 453.86 
Service tax 74.49 111.90 156.05 2 18.05 265.57 

Total: 706.34 1122.36 l .56 1493.18 1630.25 

There was an increasing trend of devolution in almost all the components of the 
State' s Share of Union Taxes during the last five year period. Corporation Tax and 
Union Excise & customs constituted major components of state ' s share of 
Union Taxes during the year 2013-14. The share of union taxes during the year stood 
at 6.25 per cent of GSDP . 
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1.3.5 Optimisation of the XIII FC Grants during 2013-14 

Table No. 1.13: Recommendations of XIII FC and actual release of funds during 2013-14 

(~in crore) 
Expenditure 

SL Purpose of transfers Recommendation of Actual under relevant Unspent 
No. theXIllFC release revenue head of bldance 

,account 
l. Local Bodies and PRJs 

a) General Basic Grant 52.20 
b) General Perfonnance Grant 35.70 5 l.45 147.49 -
c) Soecial Areas Basic Grant 2.40 
d) Special Areas 2.40 
Performance Grant 

Total: 92.70 51.45 147.49 
2. Disaster Relief 

a) Disaster Response Fund 20. 12 29.70 21.82 10.28 
b) Capacity Building 1.00 1.00 0.77 0.23 

3. Roads and Brid2es 31.00 31.00 213.19 -
4. States Specific G.-ants 125.00 22.36 15.22 7.14 
5. Forestrv 23.88 17.91 48.58 -
6. Elementary Education 5.00 5.00 365.16 -
7. lmDrovin2 Outcome Grants 

a) Improvement in justice 1.00 1.00 40.37 -
delivery 
b) Incentive for reducing 106.80 76.92 - -
infant mottality rate 

8. Revenue deficit grant 835.00 834.92 - -
A/' •1\'J'2{,•'o.%c,•\'.:T~1"'~'''.~<Z:c})}~;':\'::··,;.;,;.;, ' , .. ;":·' "·-•·.·-\ +o.ta4lSl' k/1Ml'i2i'.' 10:'-1;;, ,:,·,)•X·'JiSff:Wi \·;'>< . .zc::,;•'"'"'••'""' '·" ,;;··" ... "' 

• Source: Xill FC reconunendations, Finance Accounts and departmenta l records. 

As on 31 March 2014, the State Government received~ 1,071.26 crore as Non-plan 

Grants against the recommendation of XITI FC of ~ 1,24 1.50 crore for the year 
2013-14 for certain specific purposes as indicated in Table No. 1.13. Out of 
~ 1,071.26 crore released by the Go!, ~ 834.92 crore was Revenue Deficit Grant 
during 20 13-14 though the State had ~ 1,701.22 crore revenue surplus at the end 
of the year. However, there was short release of ~ 41.25 crore in respect of 
grants for Local Bodies and PRis. The XIII FC recommended ~ 500 crore as State 's 
specific grants during its award period out of which the State Government received 
~ 158.58 crore (20 11-12: ~ 112.37 crore; 20 12-13: ~ 23.85 crore and 2013-14: 
~ 22.36 crore) as on 31March2014. 

For the year 2013-14, the XIII FC recommended for Central Share of~ 21. 12 crore 
against which ~ 30.70 crore was released by the GoI towards the State Disaster 

Response Fund (including ~ 1.00 crore for capacity building). The State Government 
transferred an amount of~ 19.42 crore to the SDRF under Public Account along 
with the State ' s Share. An expenditure of ~ 22.59 crore was incmTed on this 
account including capacity building of ~ 0. 77 crore. The Government of India 
re leased~ 31.00 crore for maintenance cost of Roads and Bridges and~ 17.91 crore 

under Forestry against which an expenditure of~ 213. 19 crore and ~ 48.58 crore 
respectively were incurred under non-plan revenue account. 
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1.4 Capital Receipts 

Non-debt capital receipts i.e, Recovery of Loans and Advances by the State during the 
period 2009-10 to 2013-14 was not only meagre but also showed a decreasing trend 
from~ 3.5 1 crore in 2009-10 to~ 0.96 crore in 2013-14. However, capital receipts as 
a whole showed an increasing trend from~ 497.32 crore in 2009-10 to ~ 787.94 crore 

in 2013-14. The borrowing was however, less by~ 47.33 crore over the previous year. 

Table No. 1.14: Trends in growth and composition of receipts 

Recove of Loans and Advances 3.51 2.80 2.10 1.26 
Public Debt Recei ts 493.81 555.9 1 41 7.88 834.01 786.98 
Rate of growth of debt capital 136.62 12.58 (-)24.83 99.58 (-) 5.64 
recei ts(%) 
Rate of growtb of non-debt 8.00 (-) 20.23 (-)25.00 (-) 40.00 (-) 23.8 1 
ca ital recei ts (% 
Rate of rowtb ofGSDP (%) 13.48 16.00 17.43 13.69 9.30 

134.65 12.34 - 24.83 98.88 (- 5.67 

1.4.1 Recoveries of Loans and Advances 

Outstanding loans and advances as on 31 March 20 13 was ~ 11 2.24 crore. During the 
year 20 13- 14, the State Government had given loans to the Government Servants and 
to other Co-operative Societies under Social and Economic Services for various 
developmental activities amounting to ~ 15.77 crore. Only ~ 0.96 crore had been 

recovered from them during the year, of which ~ 0.85 crore was received from the 

Government Servants. As on 31 March 20 14, the outstanding Loans and Advances 
stood at~ 127.05 crore. 

Public Debt Receipts 

1.4.2 Internal Debt receipts from internal sources (market loans, 
borrowings from financial institutions, banks) 

Public Debt receipts during the year 201 3-14 was ~ 786.98 crore out of which a major 

portion was borrowed from Internal source Like market loans ~ 550.03 crore). Loans 
from NABARD and NSSF ~ 150.00 crore and ~ 74.41 crore respectively. The net 

receipts from the internal debt was ~ 61 l. l l crore resulted in ~ 4,719.24 crore of 
internal debt remaining outstanding at the end of the year. 

1.4.3 Loans and Advances from Gol 

Loans and Advances from Gol during 2013-14 was ~ 3.73 crore against~ 3.48 crore 

during 20 12-13. Repayment during the year was ~ 47.77 crore of which~ 16.74 crore 
was written off loans by the concerned Ministries, Government of lndia and adjusted 
during the year against the outstanding loan upto 2009-10 as recommended by the 
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XIIl FC. Outstanding Loans and Advances stood at ~ 335.21 crore as on 31 March 

2014 against ~ 3 79 .24 crore as on 3 l March 20 13. 

1.5 Public Account Receipts 

Receipts and disbursements in respect of certain transactions such as small savings, 
provident funds, reserve funds, deposits, etc., which do not form part of the 
Consolidated Fund are kept in the Public Account set up under Article 266 (2) of the 
Constitution and are not subject to vote by the State Legislatme. Here the Government 
acts as a banker. The balance after disbursements is the fund avai lable with the 

government for use. Detai ls fo r five years are shown in Table No. 1.15. 

Table No. l.15: Public Account Balances 

Table No. 1.15 shows that after disbursement of the fund receipts from the Public 
Account in various heads during last five year period, there was an increasing trend in 

the balances of fonds whjch stood at ~ 3,673. 16 crore as on 3 1 March 2014. The 

overall increase was ~ 489.66 crore (l5 per cent) in 2013-14 over the balance of 
~ 3,183.50 crore in 2012- 13. The Government could use the avai lable funds of 

~ 3,673.16 crore under Publjc Account for development purposes. The major share 

(74 per cent) of the Public Account receipt i.e, ~ 2,712.56 crore was from Small 
Savings, Provident Funds, etc., which bear an interest rate of 8.70 p er cent per annum. 

Out of ~ 65 1.54 crore under Reserve Fund, ~ 529.21 crore were invested in the 

earmarked fund (Sinking Fund). 

During 2013-J 4, the contribution to the net balance of small savings, provident funds 
was ~ 326.99 crore while it was ~ 68.98 crore in respect of reserve funds of which 

~ 50.00 crore was as sinkjng fund. Contribution to the balance of Deposits and 

Advances was ~ 93.69 crore in 2013-14. 

1.6 Application of Resources 

Analysis of the allocation of expenditure at the State Government level assumes 
sigruficance as it is an important aspect of fiscal policy to acrueve developmental 
goals. Within the framework of fisca l responsibility legislations, there are budgetary 
constraints in raising public expenditure financed by deficit or borrowings. It is 
therefore~ important to ensure that the ongoing fiscal correctjon and consolidation 
process at the State level is not at the cost of expenditure, especially the expenditure 
directed towards development of social Service. 
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1.6.1 Growth and Composition of Expenditure 

Chart No. 1.7 presents the trends in total expenditure over a period of fi ve years 

(2009-14) and its composition in terms of 'expenditme by activities' is depicted in 

Chart No. 1.8. 

Chart No. 1.7: Trends in various components of total expenditure 
during 2009-14 
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During the period 2009-10 to 2013-14, tbe total expenditme of the State was on 

increasing trend and stood at~ 7,605.46 crore in 201 3-14 from~ 5,563.57 crore in 

2009- 10 witb an increase of 36. 70 per cent over the period of fi ve years. Revenue 

expenditure increased by 41.1 8 per cent while expenditme in capita l head increased 

by 23. 16 per cent during the period. Disbursement of Loans and Advances increased 

from~ 13.89 crore in 2011- 12 to ~ 18.93 crore in 201 2-13 and thereafter decreased by 

16.69 per cent in 201 3-14 which stood at~ 15.77 crore. 

Out of the total revenue expenditure of ~ 5,948.96 crore during 2013- 14, 76 per cent 
was non-plan and 24 per cent was on plan activities. The trend in composition of 

revenue expenditure (both plan and non-plan) is depicted in Table No. 1.16. 

Table No. 1.16: Trends in Composition of revenue expenditure (Non-plan and Plan) 
during 2009-14 

Non-plan 

Plan 

Total: 4 
(Figures in bracket indicate percentage of tota l expenditure) 

The non-plan revenue expenditme ~ 4,549.02 crore) of the State was significantly 

higher than the XIII FC projection (~ 3,515.03 crore) for the year 201 3-14. The 

percentage of Plan Revenue Expenditure (PRE) to total expenditure fluctuated 

between 19 and 24 per cent during the period 2009-14. Tbe Non-Plan Revenue 
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Expenditure (NPRE) as a percentage of the total revenue expenditure decreased from 
81 per cent in 2009-10 to 76 per cent in 2013-14. The ratio of revenue expenditure to 
total expenditure ranged between 76 per cent and 80 per cent during the last five year 

period. 

The trends in compos1hon of total expenditure by act1v1tles as depicted in 

Chart No. 1.8 shows that the share of General Services to total expenditure ranged 
between 34.07 and 37.62 p er cent and the share of Social Services to total expenditure 
increased gradually from 36.08 per cent in 2009-10 to 40.34 per cent in 2011-12 but 
decreased marginally to 40.30 per cent in 2013-14. The expenditure on Economic 
Services however, showed a declining trend over the years and was 23.49 per cent in 

2013-14 as compared to 24.69 per cent in 2009-10. Payment of grants-in-aid 
however, remained below 2 per cent in all the five years while repayment of Loans 
and Advances was below 1 per cent of the total expenditure during the period. 
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Chart No. 1.8: Trends in Expenditure by activities during last five 
year period 
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Revenue expenditure on some of the components in Social and Economic Services in 
2012-13 and 2013-14 are given below: 

Subsidies 

Table No. 1.17: Actual Revenue Expenditure on different components 
during 2012-13 and 2013-14 

Nil 
0.56 

37.57 
Source: Finance Accounts 20 J 2- l 3 and 2013-14. 

Nil 
Nil 

103.60 

During 2013-14, the actual expenditure incurred under General Education, Medical, 
Public Health & Family Welfare and Subsidies was higher by 16, 32 and 177 per cent 
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respectively over those of 2012-13. Out of the total subsidies of ~ 103 .60 crore, 
~ 89.08 crore was on non-plan head during 2013-14. 

1.6.2 Revenue Expenditure 

Revenue expenditure during 2013-14 increased by 14 per cent over the previous year 
and it was almost the same as percentage of increase in GSDP for the year. On the 
other hand, Revenue receipts increased by 9 per cent (29.34 per cent of GSDP) during 
the year 20 13-14. The revenue surplus as per cent of GSDP decreased from 
7.70 per cent in 2012-13 to 6.52 per cent in 2013-14 as shown in Table No. 1.18. 

Table No. 1.18: Revenue receipts vis-a-vis revenue expenditure and their percentage 
with the GSDP during 2009-14 

((in crore) 

2009-10 I ·•· 2010..:ll 2011-12 2012'-13 2013-14 
Revenue receipts 4,401.3 5 5,168.60 6,476.90 7,050.30 7,650.18 
As percentage of GSDP 28.58 28.93 30.87 29.56 29.34 
Revenue expenditure 4,213.79 4,359.48 4,809.23 5,2 12.88 5,948.96 
As percentage of GSDP 27.36 24.40 22.92 21.85 22 .82 
Revenue surplus 187.56 809. 12 1,667.67 1,837.42 1,70 1.22 
As percentage of GSDP 1.22 4.53 7.95 7.70 6.52 

1.6.3 Committed Expenditure 
The committed expenditure of the State Government on revenue account mainly 
consists of interest payments, expenditure on salaries and wages, pension and 
subsidies. Table No. 1.19 and Chart No. 1.9 present the trends in the expenditure on 
these components during 2009-14. 

Table No. 1.19: Components of Committed Expenditure 

Salaries* & Wa es, of which 2,042.75 2,189.77 2,467.90 3,164.25 2,687.68 
Non-Plan Head l ,802.15 1,875.95 2,003.83 2,859.73 2,307.23 
Plan Head 240.60 3 13.82 464.07 304.52 380.45 
Interest Pa rnents 408.5 1 447.32 493 .27 532.8 1 600.00 590.96 
Ex enditure on Pensions 559.89 654.77 730.02 694.19 720.00 677.25 
Subsidies 11 .07 12.62 89.08 104. 18 

;II 
*Includes grants-in-aid 
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Expenditure on Salary 

Jn 2009-10 the terminal year of XII FC, sa lary and wages expenditure of the State 

stood at 62.94 per cent of revenue expenditure net of interest payment and pension 
which was higher by 27.94 per cent of the XII FC ceiling. Similarly during 2010-11 
to 2013- 14, the salary and wages expenditure were much higher than the XIII FC 
Projections in non-plan revenue expenditure which stood at 57 per cent of revenue 
expenditure net of interest payments and pension during the year. However, during 
2013-14, the salary expenditure was below the budget estimates for the year. The XIII 
FC recommendations vis-a vis the actuals in respect of non-plan revenue expenditure 
is given below: 

Table No. 1.20: XIII FC recommendation vis-a-vis the actuals in respect of Non-Plan 
Revenue Expenditure 

(~ in crore) 

Component ' XW FC Proiection Actual 
2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

Sala1y 1, 505.05 1,528 .20 1,548.67 1,566.06 1,85 1.55 1,875 .95 2,003.83 2,307.23 
(!Jer cent) (53) (52) (46) (45) (53) (50) (50) (50.72) 
Interest Payment 458.61 49 1.49 527.07 565.54 447.32 493.27 532.81 590.96 
(per cent) ( 16) ( 16) (16) ( 16) (13) (13) (13) (1 3.00) 
Pension 455.21 500.73 550.80 605.88 654.77 730.03 694. 19 677.25 
(per cent) (16) ( 17) (16) (1 7) (19) (19) ( 18) ( 14.88) 
Others 407.30 439.68 733.65 777.55 526.07 648.06 762.78 973 .58 
(per cent) (15) ( 15) (22) (22) (J 5) (17) ( 19) (2 1.40) 

Total: 2,826.17 2.960.10 3.360.19 3.515.03 3.479.71 3,747.31 3.993.61 4,549.02 
Source: Fi.nancc Accounts and Xlll FC recommendations 

Figures in parenthesis indicate the percentage with respect to Non-Plan Revenue Expenditure 

Expenditure on Pension Payments 

The table shows that the expenditure on pension payments during 2013-14 was higher 
than the XIII FC projections by ~ 71.37 crore (i.e by 12 per cent). But, the actual 

expenditure on pension was below the budget estimates (RE) ~ 751.00 crore) for the 

year 2013-14. The expenditure on pension decreased by~ 16.94 crore as compared to 
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the previous year. The decrease in expenditure on pension was mainly due to 

extension of retirement age of the State Government Employees from 58 years to 60 

years w.e.f l April 2012. During 2013-14, < 677.25 crore was spent on pension 

payment for 51 ,612 pensioners including 125 MLAs. The pension payment liabilities 

would go up from 2014-15 onwards. 

Interest Payments 

The expenditure on interest payments was on an increasing trend during 2009-14 and 

ranged between 10 and 12 per cent of revenue expenditure during tbe period. Interest 
payments increased by 10.91 per cent during 2013-14 over the previous year mainly 

due to more payments on internal borrowings from market and other fmancial 

institutions by < 38.33 crore and loans from small savings provident funds by< 22.11 

crore. Interest payment on loans from Government of India during the year however, 

decreased by < 2.29 crore. During the last four years of tbe XIIT FC period, interest 

payments was higher than the projection made by the XIII FC except in 2010-11 

whjch could be seen in Table No. 1.20. 

Subsidies 
The subsidies provided by the State include both implicit and explicit subsidies which 

were utilised to bridge the gap between income and expenditure to certain selected 

Departments/Corporations/Government Companies. The State Government paid 

< l 04.18 crore as explicit subsidies relating to Agriculture and other Allied Activities 

and co-operations. Out of< 104.1 8 crore, < 48.08 crore was given as food subsidy 

through the Food, Civil Supplies and Consumers Affairs Department to the BPL and 

AA Y Families including < 4.38 crore for procurement of sugar for distribution 

through PDS. An amount of< 40.00 crore was given to the Tripura State E lectricity 

Corporation Ltd. as subsidy during the year 2013-14. Government stated that the 

subsidy provided to TSECL was for meeting the gap between income and expenditure 

of the Corporation. 

As per information furnished by the Education (School) Department (September 

2014) during 2013-14, expenditure of < 26.23 crore was incmred on distribution 

of free text books ~ 8.98 crore) and free supply of unifonn ~ 17.25 crore) to the 

school going children under the Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan Rajya Mission. Besides, 

< 12.91 crore was incurred towards distributions of books free of cost {State Council 

of Educational Research and Training (SCERT): < 12.79 crore; Tribal Welfare 
Department: < 12.10 lakh} which is treated as implicit subsidy during 2013-14. 

Further, according to the infonnation furnished by the Food, Civil Supplies and 

Consumer Affairs Department (September 2014), under the scheme of National 

Social Assistance Programme (NSAP) the State Govenunent incurred an expenditure 

of< 1.29 crore on Annapurna scheme for distribution of foodgrains to the old age 

women which was treated as subsidy. 
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As per the policy formulated by the State Government it was decided to enforce 
the scheme for free supply of bicycle to students particularly to the girls students 
studying in standards IX and XII during the year 2013-14. But infom1ation about 
the expenditure on that purpose for the year 20 l 3-14 had not been furnished 
(October 2014) by the State Government though called for (September 2014). 

Out of total subsidy of~ 104.18 crore, ~ 89.08 crore was on non-plan revenue account 

during the year which was 1.96 per cent of non-plan revenue expenditure. 

Department-wise explicit subsidy given by the State Govemmenl during lasl five 
years from 2009-10 to 2013-14 are given in Table No. 1.21. 

Table No. 1.21: Department-wise expHcit subsidy given by the Government during 2009-14 

Tribal Welfare De ru1ment 
Welfare of SC, OBC & Minorities 1.99 3.45 
De artment 

3 A riculture De artment 2.64 5.77 6.86 3.86 6.90 
4 Food, Civil Supplies & Consumers 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.32 48.08 

Affairs De artment 

1.6.4 Financial Assistance by State Government to Local Bodies and 
other institutions 

Local Bodies 
Post 73rd and 74111 Constitutional Amendments, the Government of Tripura enacted the 
Tripura Panchayats Act, 1993 and Tripura Municipal Act, 1994 empowering 
Panchayati Raj Institutions (PRis) and Urban Local Bodies (ULBs) to function as 
institutions of self government and to accelerate economic development in rural and 
urban areas which would enable them to function as local self government 

institutions. 

Classification of Local Bodies 

Panchayati Raj Institutions (PRls): Consequent upon the 73rd Constitutional 
Amendment, the Tripura Panchayats Act, 1993 was enacted and three tiers of 
Panchayati Raj system was established in the State comprising Gram Panchayats 
(GPs) at village level, Panchayat Samitis (PSs) at block level and Zilla Parishads 
(ZPs) at district level. All the PRis are governed by Tripura Panchayats Act, 1993. As 
of March 2014 there were 8 ZPs, 35 PSs and 591 GPs in the State. In the Tripura 
Tribal Areas Autonomous District Council (TT AADC) areas, there were 527 Village 
Development Committees (VDCs) and 35 Block Advisory Committees (BACs) which 

were synonymous to GPs and PSs respectively. 

Urban Local Bodies (ULBs): Consequent upon the 74th Constitutional Amendment, 
the Government of Tripura had enacted the Tripura Municipal Act, 1994. There were 
three categories of ULBs in the State e.g. Municipal Corporation, Municipal Councils 
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(MC) and Nagar Panchayats (NPs). All the ULBs were governed by the Tripura 
Municipal Act, 1994. There was one Municipal Corporation, I 0 Municipal Councils 
and nine Nagar Panchayats in the State as of March 20 14. 

Financial Profile 
The quantum of assistance provided by way of grants and loans to local bodies and 
others during the last five years is presented in Table 1.23. 

Table No. 1.22: Financial Assistance to Local Bodies etc. 
(~in crore) 

F.'lnandal usistaneelto lllltl_tutions 2009-10 2011-11 2011-12 2012-13 20~14 
Educational lnstitutions (Aided Schools, 39.76 33.9 1 34.70 37.5 1 34.92 
Aided Colleges, Universities, etc.) 
Municipal Council and Nagar Panchayats 78.52 70.65 132.93 24 1.52 170.76 
Zilla Parishads and Other Panchayati Raj 27.57 29.93 45.04 45.36 37. 12 
Institutions 
Other Institutions 77 .52 125.3 1 5.1 6 6.09 Nil 

Total: 223.37 259.80 217.113 ' 330.48 I 242.80 
AlslsCance as nercentue ef RE 5.38 5.96 453 6.34 4.08 

The quantum of financial assistance to the Zilla Paiishads and other Panchayati Raj 

Institutions and Municipalities increased substantially since 201 2-1 3 due to 
devolution of funds to Local Bodies to faci li tate their functioning as vibrant 

institutions of Local Self Government as per the policy of the State Government. The 
assistance to the Agartala Municipal Corporation and 19 Municipal Councils/Nagar 
Panchayats decreased by ~ 70.76 crore during 2013-14 over the previous year. 

However, overall assistance to the Local Bodies had decreased to ~ 242.80 crore 
during 2013-14 as compared to~ 330.48 crore in 2012-1 3 which was 4.08 per cent of 

revenue expenditure during the year. 

Devolution of Functions, Functionaries and Funds (3Fs) to PRls and ULBs 

The 73rd and 74th Constitutional Amendments gave the constitutional status to PRis 
and ULBs and established a system of unifonn structure, holding of regular elections, 
regu lar flow of funds through Central and State Finance Commission allocations etc. 
As a follow up, the State was required to entrust these bodies such power, functions 
and funds so as to enable them to function as Institutions of self- government. ln 

particular, the PRls and ULBs were required to prepare plans and implement schemes 
for economic development and socia l justice including those subjects enumerated in 
the Eleventh Schedule (related to PRls) and Twelfth Schedule (related to ULBs) of 
the Constitution of India. 

The Tripura Panchayats Act, J 993 had provision for transfer of subjects to different 
tiers of PRJs. The State Government had devolved five subjects6 to PRJs out of 29 

subjects listed in the Eleventh Schedule of the Constitution (August, 2006 & August, 
2007). The remainjng 24 subjects had not been transferred (November 2014). Out of 

6 ( l) Water Resources, (2) Primary School, (3) Adult and Non- Formal Education, (4) Social Welfare 
including Welfare of the Handicapped and Mentally Retarded and (5) Women and Child 
Development. 
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these five subjects, only funds for payment of wages of pump operators and power 
consumption charges had been transferred to the PRis. 

Besides, the transfer of functionaries to PRis was not done which was a prerequisite 
for successful working of local se lf government at the grass-root level. The works of 
the PRls were being performed by the State Government functionaries. The position 
of receipts of funds by PRls from different sources for the last five years is shown in 
the table below: 

Table No. l.23: Source of funds of PRJs d uring 2009-14 
(~in crore) 

Source of funds 2~10 ·· 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-.14 
Panchayat Development Fund (Grants) 21.69 18.40 17.86 18. 14 55.03 
Finance Commission Grants 9.23 11.42 27.18 27.23 2 1.48 
Own Revenue 0.75 0.84 1.10 1.91 Nil 

Total: 31.67 30.66 46.14 47.28 7~1 

Source: Information famished by Rural Development (Panchayats) Department. 

The table shows that the receipt of funds by PRls from different sources had 
decreased in 2010-11 but increased in 2011 -1 2 and 2012-13 mainly due to more 
receipts towards Finance Commission grants. During 2013-14, the grants from 
Panchayat Development Fund increased substantially by ~ 36.89 crore while tbe 

Finance Commission Grants decreased by~ 5.75 crore as compared to 2012-13. 

Details of Expenditure incurred by PRls during 2009-14 are given in Table No. 1.24. 

Table No. 1.24: Utilisation of funds by PRis during 2009-14 

Urban Local Bodies 

~ The Tripura Municipal Act 1994 envisaged transfer of functions of various 
departments of the State Government to ULBs. All the 18 functions listed in 
the XII Schedule of the Constitution had been transferred by the State 
Government to the ULBs. But in practice, functions like fire service, roads and 
bridges were still controlled by the State Government departments. 

~ ULBs receive funds by way of grants both from Central and State 
Government. The collection from own sources as taxes and fees, etc., were 
also substantial. The fund position from various sources during 2012- 13 and 
2013-14 are given below: 
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Table No. 1.25: Source of funds of ULBs during last two years 
(~in crore) 

~~~~:::::s~··;·~z~ ~-,ii~~~~:,~ · ~'·:~; J'~:~ tiY~~~~i>:~~:~~l:<'t:;¥~}~~~r;~.;~~;,;;.~~f~_. . -~-;~ ~- .. :~;~:;\:~fL~~::2~) ·;~ ~~ri~t'i~\if}~r~7=:~:~;~- ~,~~iJt?;f}~~(~~ 
Own Revenue 20.43 29.31 
TUEP 50.00 45.00 
1NNURM 83.8 1 9.48 
TFC/ 13 FC 7.47 19.36 
SCA 4.50 9. 16 
SPA 23.01 36.26 
Share of Taxes 39.60 52.50 

'i~)-:~·'. :~~:·:~~ '2;~~, ~~ ·{.:.~<:;~::-.,~ .. ::<~v.:~{.~~-:· :1~:~~~~~~:.~t~~~:~~ ~~~t~f~t~1~r~:.'!:~~~~~:~~,;.:\:~~:I~~~.:-~.-: :: -: , ~ ~?:.~~·;;~$1.~t:~~i~i~kZ~f: :-.~:~:::r~~ 
As per information furnished (October 2014) by the Urban Development Department 
it was seen that total collection of revenue from own sources by one Municipal 
Corporation (AMC), 10 Municipal Councils and nine Nagar Panchayats functionjng 
under the Tripura Municipal Act 1994 was~ 29.31 crore during 2013-14, of which 

major portion was collected through Agai1ala Municipal Corporation ~ 23.25 crore) 
which includes water and prope11y tax. 

It can be seen from Table No. 1.25 that an amount of~ 45.00 crore was received by 
the 20 Local Bodies during the year as grants from the State Government for 
implementation of Tripura Urban Employment Programme (TUEP) during the year 

2013-14, wrule it was ~ 50.00 crore last year. Finance Commission grants 
substantially increased to~ 19.36 crore during 2013-1 4 while it was {7.47 crore in 

2012-1 3. The funds towards State Plan Assistance and share of taxes also 
substantjally increased in 2013-14 as compared to 2012-13. The information on 
utilisation of funds by the Local Bodies are awaited (November 2014). 

Accounting and Auditing arrangement of PRis and ULBs 

PRis: Rural Development (Panchayats) Depa11ment, Government of Tripura 
instructed PRls to maintain the accounts in New Accounting Structure 2009 w.e.f 
01.04.2010 as devised by the Ministry of Panchayati Raj , Government of India in 
consultation with the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. In practice, the PRis 
started maintaining their accounts as per the new Accounting Stmcture from the year 

2011-12. The State Government had engaged Chartered Accountant (CA) firms to 
introduce Double Entry Accounting System (DEAS) in PRis and they were to train 

the GP staff in the software implementation and ensure preparation of accounts in 
double entry system. 

Government of Tripura, Finance Department framed the 'Tripura Local Fund Audit 
Rules 2011 ' for audit of accounts of local bodies by the Director, Local Fund Audit 
and a gazette notification was issued on 12 January 2012 for implementation of the 
mies. Rule 3 ( l ) provides that the State Government or such authority as it may direct; 
shall appoint a person to be the Director, Local Fund Audit (LFA). 

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India conducts audit of accounts of PRls 
as entrusted by the State Government under standard terms and conditions of 

Technical Guidance and Support (TG&S) module under Section 20( 1) of the CA G's 
DPC Act, 1971. 
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ULBs: Based on the recommendations of Eleventh Finance Commission, the Ministry 

of Urban Development, Go I in consultation with Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India developed the National Municipal Accounts Manual (NMAM) which was based 

on double entry accrual system of accounting. The Urban Development Department, 

Government of Tripura had drafted (June 2010) the 'Tripura Municipal Accounting 

Manual ' based on the NMAM. The Manual was finalised in June 2011. The 

Munucipal Councils and Nagar Panchayats had not implemented the manual. 

As per Section 264, 265 and 266 of the Tripura Municipal Act, 1994, the accounts of 

the Municipality shall be examined and audited by an auditor appointed in this regard 

by the State Government. The State Government shall by rules make provision with 

respect to the maintenance of accounts of the Muni.cipalities and auditing of such 

accounts, including the power of the auditor. The auditor shall submit the audit report 

to the Chairperson of the Municipality and a copy thereof to the State Government. 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India conducts audit of accounts of ULBs as 

entrusted by the State Government under standard tenns and conditions of Technical 

Guidance and Support (TG&S) module under Section 20(1) of the CA G's DPC Act. 

Reporting Arrangement 

Under TG&S atTangement, audit findings on test-check of accounts of PRis and 

ULBs conducted by the CAG are presented in the fonn of Annual Technical 

Inspection Report (ATIR) to the State Government. ATIR for the years 2010-11 , 

2011-12 and 2012-13 were submitted to the State Government. However, the ATIR 

for 2010-11 was placed in the State Legislature on 13 May 2013. 

1. 7 Quality of Expenditure 

The availability of better social and physical infrastructure in the State generally 

reflects the quality of its expenditure. The improvement in the quality of expenditure 

basically involves three aspects viz ., adequacy of expenditure (i.e. adequate provision 

for providing public services), efficiency of expenditure use and its effectiveness 

(assessment of outlay-outcome relationships for selected services). 

1.7.1 Adequacy of Public Expenditure 

In view of the importance of public expenditure on development heads from the point 

of view of Social and economic development, it is important for the Government to 

take appropriate expenditure rationalisation measures and lay emphasis on provision 
of core public and merit goods7 like, delivery of health services to improve quality of 

life and reduce morbidity, providing basic education to all, drinking water and 

7 Core public goods are w hich all citizens enjoy in common in the sense tbat eacb individual 's consumption of 
such a good leads to no subtractions from any other individual's consumption of that good, e.g. enforcement of 
law and order, security and protection of our rights; pollution free air and other environmental goods and road 
infrastructure, etc. Merit goods are commodities that the public sector provides free or at subsidized rates 
because an individual or society should have them on the basis of some concept or need, rather than abili ty and 
willingness to pay the government and therefore wishes to encourage their consumption. The examples of such 
goods include the provision of free or subsidised food for tbe poor to support nutrition, the delivery of health 
services to improve qua li ty of life and reduce morbidity, providing basic education to a ll , drinking water and 
sa1titation etc. 
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sanitation, etc. Expenditure on Social and Economic Services together constitute the 
development expenditure while the expenditure on general services is treated as non­
development expenditure. The trend of development and non-development 
expenditure on revenue heads along with the rate of growth during the period 2009-14 
are as under: 

Table No. 1.26: Development and non-development revenue expenditure 
(~in crore) 

.-.ar::Ji:zJr•tatif•te ..... "· .. , ·'": ..... /.-: .. ··;:::. \'\2009-10 '''. 1:1011&U.> 2011~11 •· 2012-13 ·. I 20fJ_:;l4 
Development expenditure 2,262.65 2,345.88 2,672.97 2,936.80 3,456.18 
(% of total revenue expenditure) (53.70) (53.81) (55 .58) (56.34) (58.10) 
Rate of growth (in per cent) 32.08 3.68 13.94 9.87 17.69 
Non-development expenditure 1,951.14 2,013.60 2,136.26 2,276.08 2,492.78 
(% of total revenue expenditure) (46.30) (46.l 9) (44.42 (43 .66) (41.90) 
Rate of growth (in per cent) 37.72 3.20 6.09 6.54 9.52 
Total revenue expenditure 4,2 13.79 4,359.48 4,809.23 5,212.88 5,948.96 
Rate of growth (in per cent) 34.65 3.46 10.32 8.39 14.12 

The Development expenditure increased by ~ 51~.38 crore (17.69 p er cent) in 

2013-14 over tbe previous year. Tbe Development expenditure as a percentage of 
total revenue expenditure increased marginally from 56.34 per cent in 2012-13 to 
58.1 0 per cent in 2013-14. The development expenditure increased mainly on 
Education, Health, Welfare of Scheduled Castes & Other Backward Classes and 
Social. Welfare under Social Sector and also on Agriculture, Transport and General 
Economic Services under Economic Sector during tbe year. 

Non-development expenditure increased by ~ 216.70 crore (9.52 per cent) in 2013-14 
over the previous year mainly due to increase in expenditure on interest payment by 

~ 58.15 crore. It was observed that non-development expenditure as a percentage of 
total revenue expenditure showed a decreasing trend from 46.30 per cent in 2009-10 
to 41.90 per cent in 2013-14. 

The following table would indicate the fiscal priorities given by the Government 
under various heads of expenditure with reference to GSDP and Aggregate 
Expenditure (AE) during 2013-14 as compared to 2010-11. 

Table No. 1.27: Fiscal Priority of the State in 2010-11 and 2013-14 

(i11 per cent) 
Fiscal Priority by the State AE/GSDP DE/AE SSE/AE CE/AE Education/AE Health/ AE 

2010-11 30.33 60.51 37.20 19.53 17.85 4.58 
2013-14 29.17 63.99 40.30 21.57 16.84 5.38 

AE: Aggregate Expenditure DE: Development Expenditure SSE: Social Service Elpenditure 
CE: Capital Expenditure 
# Development expenditure includes Development Revenue Expenditure, Development Capital Expenditure and Loans 
and Advances disbursed. 
Source: For GSDP, Information furnished by Directorate of Economics and Statistics, Government ofTripura. 

It can be seen that dming 2013-14 Development Expenditure as percentage of 

Aggregate Expenditure increased by 3 .48 per cent as compared to 2010-11. In respect 
of Social Service Expenditure the increase was 3 .10 p er cent. The Capital Expenditure 
as percentage of Aggregate Expenditure increased by 2.04 per cent in 2013- 14 as 
compared to that of 2010-11. Fmther, the expenditure on Education as ratio of 
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Aggregate Expenditure decreased from 17.85 per cent in 2010-11 to 16.84 p er cent in 
2013-14. The expenditure on Health as a ratio of Aggregate Expendirure however, 
marginally increased to 5.38 p er cent during the year from 4.58 per cent in 2010-11. 

The adequacy of Government expendirure both under Revenue and Capital account 
and also Plan and Non-Plan components are reflected in the table below: 

Table No. 1.28: Expenditure on Revenue and Capital (Plan and Non-Plan) 

(~in crore) 

Plan Noa-.Ptaa 
Expenditlire . . · .... . ' .· . · ... . ·········· . · . 

2009-10 2011-u 1011-13 2011-11 2012-lj 

·. 

'\. 

1010..JI 2013-14 2009-10 2010-11 I• .,. 

Revenue 796.63 879.77 1,061.92 l , 219.27 1, 399.94 3,41 7.16 3,479.7 1 3,747.31 3,993.6 1 

Capital 1,263.77 1, 006.70 1,32 1.14 1,450.67 1, 646.94 68.45 5 1.63 76.1 2 32.52 

Total : l ,060.40 J,886.47 2,383.06 l,669.94 3,046.88 3,485.61 3,531.34 3,823.41 4,026.13 

It can be seen from Table No. 1.28 that under the plan head, the total 
expendirure (both Revenue and Capital) increased from~ 2,383.06 crore in 2011-12 
to~ 3,046.88 crore in 2013-14. The capital expenditure in plan head during the last 
five year period increased by 30.32 per cent in 2013-14 from 2009-10 whjle 
the increase in revenue expenditme under the plan head was 75 .73 per cent during 
the period. Increase in capital expendirure under plan head was ~ 196.27 crore 
(13 .53 per cent) in 2013-14 over the previous year mainly under Water Supply and 
Sanitation (by ~ 10.82 crore), Health & Family Welfare (by ~ 23.98 crore) under 
Social Sector and Special Areas Programme (by ~ 18.65 crore) under Economic 
Sector while revenue expendirure under the plan head increased by ~ 180.67 crore 
(14.82 per cent) over the previous year mainly due to increase under Education, 
Sports, Art and Culrure (by ~ 41.80 crore) and Welfare of Scheduled Castes & Other 

Backward Classes (by~ 42.50 crore) in Social Sector. 

Under non-plan head, the revenue expendirure constiruted a major portion 
which stood at ~ 4,549.02 crore in 2013-14. The non-plan revenue expenditure 
(~ 4,549.02 crore) during 2013-14 exceeded the XIII FC Projection(~ 3,515 .03 crore) 
by~ I ,033.99 crore (29.42 p er cent). 

1.7.2 Efficiency of Expenditure Use 

Apart from improving the allocation towards development expenditure8, particularly 
in view of the fiscal space being created on account of decline in debt servicing in 
recent years, the efficiency of expenditure use is al so reflected by the ratio of capital 
expendirure to total expenditure (and/or GSDP) and proportion of revenue 
expendirure being spent on operation and maintenance of the existing social and 
economic services. The higher the ratio of these components to total expenditure 
(and/or GSDP), the better would be the quality of expenditure. While Table No. 1.29 
presents the trends in development expenditure relative to the aggregate expenditure 

8 The analysis of the expenditure data is disaggregated into development expenditure. All expenditure re lating to 
Revenue Account, Capital O utlay and Loans and Advances are categorised into social services and economic 
services which together constitute development expenditure, while expenditure on general services is treated as 
non-development expenditure . 
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of the State during the current year vis-a-vis the previous year, Table No. 1.30 
provides the ratio of capital expenditure and the component of revenue expenditure 
incurred on the maintenance of the selected social and economic services. 

Table No. 1.29: Development Expenditure 

a. Development Revenue Expenditure 

b. Development Capital Expenditure 

c. Development Loans and Advances 

2,262.65 
(40.67 

1,11 8.35 
(20.10 

17.56 
(0.31 

Figures in the parentheses indicate per cent to aggregate expenditure 
Source: Finance Accounts 

(~in crore) 

Table above shows that the development expenditure, combining the expenditure on 
Social and Economic Services increased in absolute terms from~ 4,250.56 crore in 

2012-13 to~ 4,866.80 crore in 2013-14 constituting about 64 per cent of the total 
expenditure of the State during the year. The percentage of development expenditure 
to total expenditure of the State increased by 14.50 per cent during 2013-14 over 
the previous year. The relative share of the revenue development expenditure was 
45 per cent of the total development expenditure while the share in respect of 
development capital expenditure was 18 per cent which was lower than the previous 

year. Out of total amow1t of~ 15.50 crore disbursed as development loans during the 

year, ~ 14.40 crore was disbursed to the Tripura Medical College and Dr. BRAM 
Teaching Hospital, Agartala as interest free loan during the year 2013-14 repayable in 
30 equal installment within the period of 15 years. 

The efficiency of Government expenditure on selected parameters in some major 
areas under Social and Economic Services is depicted in the following table. 

Table No. 1.30: Efficiency of expenditure use in selected Social and Economic Services 
(in er cent) 

12.85 89.97 10.03 l l .23 90.46 9.54 
26.04 80.06 19.94 25.71 72.22 27.79 

Water Supply, Sanitation, and 58.92 12.77 87.23 61.25 29.55 70.45 
Housin & Urban Develo ment 
Otber Social Services 10.68 9.73 90.27 9. 14 5.68 94.32 
Total SS) 22.74 56.04 43.96 21.44 56.18 43.82 
Economic Services ES 
A riculture & Allied Activities 19.2 1 80.79 17.99 39.03 60.97 
lrri ation & Flood Control 80.93 19.07 53.46 90.60 9.40 
Power & Ener 3.60 96.40 58.98 4.73 95.27 
Trans ort 99.09 

TE: Tota l Expenditure (CE+R.E of the sub-sectors); CE: Capital Expenditure; RE: Revenue Expenditure; S&W: 
Salaries and Wages; O&M : Operations and Maintenance. 
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Table above depicts the trend of various component-wise percentages of Revenue and 
Capital expenditure, percentage of expenditure on salary and wages as well as the 

percentage of expenditure on operation and maintenance cost in relation to revenue 
expenditure in Social and Economic Services for the years 2012-13 and 2013-14. 

The above table also shows that the percentage of salary and wages expenditure in 
Social Services during the year 2013-14 had increased to 56.18 per cent mainly due to 
increase in salary expenditure in Water Supply & Sanitation by 16.78 per cent and in 
Education Sector by 0.49 per cent offset by 7.84 per cent in Health and Family 

Welfare Services over the previous year. 

On the other hand, the salary and wages expenditure in Economic Service had 

decreased by 1.25 per cent mainly due to decrease in salary expenditure in Other 
Economic Services by 56.55 per cent under Economic Service during 2013-14. 

However, the combined salary and wage expenditure in Social and Economic 
Services during the year 20 13-14 in relation to the share of total revenue expenditure 
was almost the same as in the previous year. Capital expenditure to total expenditure 

in both these Services decreased over the previous year. 

1.8 Financial analysis of Government Expenditure and Investments 

1.8.1 Financial results of Irrigation Projects 

During 2013-14, Non-Plan revenue expenditure on Minor and Medium Irrigation 
Projects was ~ 36.29 crore. According to Para 6 (x) of Tenns of Reference (TOR) of 
the XIII FC, there was a need fo r ensuring the commercial viability of i1Tigation 

projects, etc., in the State through various means including levy of user charges and 
adoption of measures to promote efficiency. Gumti, Kbowai and Manu were the three 
medium irrigation proj ects in the State of which Gumti Project was still in progress 
after incurring an expenditure of~ 80.76 crore as on 31 March 2014 which was 

started from 198 1-82 with a Budget Estimate of~ 83.01 crore and Revised Estimate 

of~ 90.3 1 crore. There was no commercial Irrigation Project in the State of Tripura 

1.8.2 Incomplete Projects 

As per information furnished by the State Public Works Department, there were 81 

ongoing/incomplete projects as on 31 March 2014 with initial budgeted cost of 
~ 5 crore and above in each case. Category-wise details of ongoing works/projects 

with initial budgeted cost and their cumulative expenditure incurred up to 31 March 
2014 are given in Table 1.31. 
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Table No. 1.31: Category-wise profile oflncomplete Projects 
(\Fin crore) 

No.of Initial Actual CUIDulatlve actual 
Category of incomplete 

Budgeted 
expenditure expenditure as on 

works/projects Works/ Incurred 31.3.2014 (percentage 
Projects Cost durine 2013-14 over aooroved cost) 

Building works 46 459.70 91.16 188.80(41) 
Bridge works 16 130.99 14.99 66.74(51) 
Road woks 10 334.27 60.03 170.87(5 1) 
Water Resource works 9 143.83 11.12 128.62(89) 

Total: 81 1,068.79 177.30 555.03(52) 
Source: Finance Accounts 2013-14. 

Out of 81 ongoing/incomplete projects, 46 are building works most of which pe1tains 

either to the Health or Education Department. There are 26 major projects having 

estimated cost of more than ~ 10 crore each of which 12 were building works 

(Appendix 1.6). 

Further, information pertammg to incomplete projects whose scheduled date of 

completion was up to 31 March 2014 is given in the Table 1.32. 

Table No. 1.32: Category-wise profile oflncomplete Projects which were scheduled to be 
completed by 31 March 2014 

(\Fin crore) 
Name of Projects No. of Incomplete Initial Cumulative actual 

ProJects Budeeted Cost emenditure as on 31.3.2014 
Bui lding works 15 139.89 96.16 
Bridge works 8 51.49 27.57 
Water Resource works 5 46.90 42.53 

.. Total: 28 238.28 166.26 
Source: Frnance Accounts 20 13-14. 

Out of 81 ongoing projects, 28 projects with initial budgeted cost of~ 238.28 crore 

remained incomplete though the completion date of those projects had already 

elapsed as on 31 March 2014. The cumulative expenditure on those 28 projects was 

~ 166.26 crore (70 p er cent of budgeted cost) till March 2014. Out of 28 incomplete 

projects four are major projects having estimated cost of more than ~ 10 crore. As the 

revised date of completion and cost of those 28 projects were not available, the 

expected time and cost overrun could not be assessed. Delay in completion of works 

runs the risk of escalation in the cost of the works. The actual cost oven-un would 

however, be available on c losure of the claims of the construction agencies after 

completion. Besides, due to delay in completion of the projects, the intended benefits 
from those projects did not reach the beneficiaries in the State. 

1.8.3 Investment and Returns 

As on 31 March 2014, Government's investment was~ 1,199.55 crore in 2 Statutory 

Corporations, 12 Government Companies, 25 Co-operatives and local bodies and one 
rural bank (Table No. 1.33). 
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Table No. l.33: Return on Investment 

Investment/Return/Cost of Borrowin2s 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
Investment at the end of the year ( f' in crore) 959.14 1,075.42 1,199.55 

Return on investment(( in crore) 25.95 0.67 0.00 

Return on investment (per cent) 2.71 0.06 0.00 
Average rate of interest on Government borrowing (ver cent) 8.41 8.44 8.53 
Difference between cost of funds and return (per cent) 5.70 8.38 8.53 

Source: Finance Accounts 

Out of~ 1,199.55 crore, ~ 907.67 crore was invested in 12 Government Companies, 

~ 156.38 crore in 2 Statutory corporations and ~ 135.50 crore in 25 Co-operative 

Societies and one Rural Bank. The investment increased from~ 1,075.42 crore at the 

end of March 2013 to~ 1,199.55 crore at the end of March 2014. 

During 2013-14, the Government invested ~ 124.13 crore in those Companies, 

Corporations and Co-operative societies. Out of~ 124.13 crore, ~ 113.15 crore was 

invested in eight Government companies, ~ 10.88 crore was invested in 11 

Co-operative societies and ~ 0.10 crore was invested in one Statutory Corporation. 

Out of an investement of~ 907.67 crore in Government Companies,~ 514.45 crore 

was invested in the Tripura State Electricity Corporation Limited as equity followed 

by ~ 201.48 crore in the Tripura Jute Mills Ltd. upto the end of March 2014. No 

dividend was however received during the year 2013-14. 

1.8.4 Loans and Advances by State Government 

In addition to investments as equity capital in Corporations, Companies and 

Co-operative societies, Government had also been providing loans and advances to 

those Institutions/Organisations. The Government further provides loans to its 

employees for construction of houses and other miscellaneous purposes. 

Table No. 1.34 presents the outstanding loans and advances as on 31 March 2014, 

interest receipts vis-a-vis interest payments during the last five years. 

Table No. 1.34: Average interest receipt on loans advanced by the State Government 
(~in crore) 

Quantum of Loans/Interest 
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

2013-14 
Receipts/ Cost of Borrowines RE Actual 

Opening Balance 70.57 84 .62 82.78 94.57 112 .24 112.24 
Amount advanced during the year 17.56 0.96 13.89 18.93 20.12 15.77 
Amount repaid during the year 3.51 2.80 2.10 1.26 2.00 0.96 

Closine Balance 84.62 82.78 94.57 112.24 NA 127.05 
Net addition of loans 14.05 (-) 1.84 1 l.79 (-) 17.67 2.00 14.81 
Interest Receipts l.2 1 0.98 0.91 1.39 NA 1.27 

Interest receipts as per cent to 1.43 1.18 0.96 l.24 NA 0.99 
outstanding Loans and advances 
Interest payments as per cent to 7.98 6.92 7.18 6.93 NA 6.77 
outstanding fiscal liabilities of the 
State Government. 
Difference between interest payments 6.55 5.74 6.22 5.69 NA 5.79 
and interest receipts (per cent) 

NA: Not available 
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As of March 2014, the balance of loans and advances by the State Government was 

~ 127.05 crore, ofwhicb loans for~ 43.50 crore was outstanding in respect of TSECL 

whi le ~ 30.50 crore remained outstanding from the Society for Tripura Medical 

College and Dr. BRAM Teaching Hospital, Agartaia'. During 20 I 3-14, Interest 

receipts as percentage of outstanding loans and advances was 0.99 against interest 

paid by the Government as percentage of outstanding liabilities being 6.77. During the 

year 2013-14, Loans and Advances disbursed amounted to ~ 15. 77 crore out of which 

~ 15.50 crore was advanced to Society for Tripura Medical College and Tripura State 

Co-operative Bank Ltd. under Plan head. An amount of only ~ 1.00 crore was interest 

bearing @ 10.25 per annum for 3 years. 

1.8.5 Cash Balances and investment of Cash Balances 

It is desirable that the flow of State' s resources matches its expenditure obl igations. 

However, to take care of any temporary mismatches in the flow of resources and the 

expenditure obligations, a mechanism of Ways and Means Advances (WMA)­

ordinary or special and overdraft from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had been put in 

place. The operative limit for normal WMA was ~ 150 crore for the State with effect 
' I 

from J November 2013 and the operative limit for special WMAs had been revised by 
the Bank from time to time. , 

Under the agreement with the RBI, the State Government has to maintain a minimum 

cash balance of~ 29.00 la kb with the Bank. If the balance fe ll below the agreed 

minimum balance on any day, the deficiency is to be made by taking WMAs. 

However, the State had not avai led any Ways and Means Advances (ordinary or 

special) since 2005-06. Table No. 1.35 depicts the cash balances and investments 

made by the State Government out of cash balances during the year 2012-13 and 
20 13- 14 . 

Table No. 1.35: Cash balances and investments of Cash balances 

(~in crore) 
Particulan Opening Cloeiag balance 

balance on OD 
1-4-2013 31-3-2014 

(a) General Cash Balance -
Cash in Treasuries 0.00 0.00 

Deposits with Reserve Bank (-) 127.23 (-) 209.71 

Deposits with other Banks - 0.00 0.00 
Remittances in transit - Local (-) 1.13 (-) 1.13 

Total: (-) 128.36 (-)218.14 
Investments held in Cash Balance investment account 2 305.70 3,460.88 

Total(a): 2,177.34 3.H0.04 
(b) O ther Cash Balances and Investments 

Cash with departmental officers viz ,Public Works Department 2.96 7.98 
Officers, Forest Department Officers,District Collectors 
Permanent advances for contingent expenditure with departmental (-) 0.06 (-) 0.05 

officers 
Investment of earmarked funds 479.21 529.21 

Total lb\! 482.11 537.14 
. Grand total (al+ lb\: 2,659.45 3.787.18 
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The above table shows that~ 2,305.70 crore had been held in cash balance investment 

account while ~ 479.21 crore was in earmarked (sinking fund) fund as on !51 April 

20 14. The funds in Cash balance investment Account increased by ~ 1, 155. l 8 crore 

during the year which resul ted in total cash balance of ~ 3,787. 18 core during 

2013-14. During 2013-14, the balances in respect of cash balance investment account 

and the .earmarked fund were ~ 3,460.88 crore and ~ 529.21 crore respectively. 

The entire balance of ~ 3,460.88 crore under Cash balance investment account 

was invested in Government of India 14 days Treasury bills as on 3 1-3-20 14. 

~ 85. 19 crore was realised as Interest on this account during 2013-14. 

Outstanding balances under the head 'Cheques and Bills' 

Th.is is an intermediary account bead for ini tial record of transactions which are to be 

cleared eventually. Outstanding balance under the major head 8670 cheques and Bi lls 

represents the amount of unencashed cheques. The trend of outstanding amount of 

cheques and bills for the last five years which were required to be cleared are given in 

Table No. 1.36. 
Table No.1.36: Position of outstanding Cheques and Bills 

2009-10 2.53 2.53 Nil 
2010-11 2.53 2.46 - 0.07 
20 11 - 12 2.46 2.42 (- 0.04 
20 12- 13 2.42 2.44 + 0.02 
2013-14 2.44 2.3 1 - 0.13 

The above table shows that there was a slight decreasing trend in the outstanding 

balance of cheques and bills amount and the balance at the end of 31 March 201 4 
stood at~ 2.3 1 crore. 

Fresh borrowings by the State 

The XIII FC suggested that there should be a directed effort by States with large 

balances to utilise existing cash balances before resorting to fresh borrowings. 

Further, it also suggested to consider for utili sing surplus cash balances for lumpsum 

repayment of market borrowings raised for debt swap during the period 2002-05 

which was likely to become due during the next few years. The Reserve Bank of India 

also had reiterated the fact and advised the States to manage their cash balance more 

efficiently. During 201 3- 14, the State Government resorted to fresh borrowings to the 

tune of ~ 783.25 crore of which~ 550.03 crore was from Open Market Borrowings 

(OMB), ~ 74.40 crore from National Small Savings Fund and ~ 158.82 crore from 

other Financial Institutions. The repayment on borrowings during the year was 

only ~ 172. 14 crore. On the other hand, as pointed out in Para 1.8.5, the balance in 

Cash Balance Investment Account at the beginning of the year 2013- I 4 was 

~ 2,305.70 crore. Despite the huge balance in Cash Balance Invesbn ent Accounts, the 

State Government resorted to fresh_ borro~ing to the tune of ~ 783.25 crore. The 

overall interest payment during 2012-13 was~ 590.96 crore. 
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1.9 Assets and Liabilities 

1.9.1 Growth and Composition of Assets and Liabilities 

In the Government acc9unting system, comprehensive accounting of fixed assets like 
land and buildings owned by the Government is not done. However, the Government 
accounts do capture the financial liabi lities of the Government and the assets created 
out of the expenditure incurred. Appendix 1.7 gives an abstract of such liabilities and 
the assets as on 31 March 2014 compared w ith the corresponding position on 
31 March 2013. While the lia~i lities in the Appendix consist mainly of internal 
borrowings, loans and advances from the Go!, receipts from the Public Account and 
Reserve Funds, the assets comprise mainJy the capital outlay, loans and advances 
given by the State Government and cash balances. 

The FRBM Act of the State had defined the total liabilities as follows: "The total 
liabilities means the liabilities under the Consolidated Fund and the Public Account 
of the State and shall also include borrowings by the public sector undertakings and 
the special purpose vehicles and other equivalent instruments including guarantees 
where principal and/or interest are to be serviced out of the State budget". 

The ratio of assets to liabilities increased from 2. 17 in 2012-13 to 2.22 
in 20 13-14. 

1.9.2 Fiscal Liabilities 

The trends in outstanding fiscal liabilities of the State are presented in Appendix 1.7. 
The composition of fiscal liab ilities during the current year vis-a-vis the previous year 

are presented in Chart Nos. 1.10 & 1.11. 

Chart No. 1.10: Composition of 
outstanding fiscal liabilities as on 31 

March 2013 

Internal 
Debt: 

4,108.13 

( rin crore) Public 
Account 

Liabililies: 
3 195.70 

Advances 
from 
GOI: 

379.24 

Chart No.1.11 : Composition of 
outstanding fiscal liabilities as on 31 

Internal 
Debt: 

4,719.24 

March 2014 
(~in crore) 

Public 
Account 

Liabilities 
:3,683. 16 

fro m 
GOI: 

335.2 1 

The outstanding fiscal liabilities of the State as on 3 1 March 2013 was ~ 7,683.07 

crore which increased by ~ 1,054.54 crore (13.73 per cent) to ~ 8,737.61 crore at the 
end of3 1 March 2014. Outstanding liabi lities increased on account of internal debt by 

~ 611 .11 crore (15 per cent) and Public Account by ~ 487.46 crore ( 15 per cent) offset 

••• 
36 

Audit Report on State Fina nces for the year 201 3-14 

-· 



·. 

.. 

Finances of the State Government 

by decrease in loans and advances from Gol by~ 44.03 crore (12 per cent) over the 

previous year. The State failed to contain the outstanding liabi lities within the revised 

estimated liabilities of~ 8,482.84 crore for the year 2013-14. During 2013-14, the 

percentage of Internal Debt liabilities to total revenue receipts was 62 per cent while 

the percentage of total liabilities to revenue receipts was 114 per cent. 

During the last five year period of 2009-10 to 2013-14, the outstanding liabilities 

consistently increased from ~ 5,777.80 crore in 2009-10 to ~ 8,737.61 crore in 

2013-14. The percentage of outstanding liabilities to GSDP during 2013-14 was 33 .51 

against the projection in the Fiscal Indicator in the MTFP statement (44.2 per cent) 

and was also within the projection (44 per cent) made in XIII FC. 

1.9.3 Transactions under Reserve Fund 

As on 31 March 2014, two types of Reserve Funds viz; (i) Interest bearing and 

(ii) Non-Interest bearing reserve funds were operated by the Government of Tripura: 

i) Interest Bearing Reserve Funds 

According to the recommendation of XIII Finance Commission, the State 

Government constituted the State Disaster Response Fund under the Major Head-

812 1 as interest bearing Reserve Fund during the year 2010-11. As per the guidelines 

of the fund, the share of contribution between the Central and State Government to 

the fund was 90: 10. During 2013-14 Government of India released ~ 30.70 crore 

including ~ 1 crore for capacity building against which the State Government 

contributed only ~ 2.1 8 crore as its share during the year instead of~ 3.07 crore 

resulting in short contribution towards the fund by ~ 0.89 crore. Fm1her, out of 

~ 30.70 crore received from the Government of India the State Government 

transferred only ~ 2 1.82 crore towards the fund during the year. Hence revenue 

surplus for the year 2013-1 4 was overstated by ~ 9.77 crore ~ 8.88 crore + 
~ 0.89 crore). During the year 2013-14, ~ 3. 17 crore expenditure was incurred on 

natural calamities. At the end of March 2014, an unspent ba lance of~ 116.88 crore 

was lying in this account which is required to be invested in authorised securities with 

nationalised banks as per the guidelines which had not been done by the State 

Government. 

ii) Reserve Funds not Bearing Interest 

Two major heads comprising 8222 - Sinking Funds and 8235 - General and Other 
Reserve Funds had been operated by the Government in this category of Reserve 

Funds. Sinking Funds is Earmarked Fund under the non-interest bearing RF created 

by t~e Government as per recommendation of XII FC. The accumulated funds in this 

Investment Account was ~ 529 .21 crore at the end of 31 March 2014 including an 

amount of ~ 50.00 crore transfe~d from Revenue by booking it as expenditure 

during 2013-14 resulting in increase of cash balance to that extent at the end of _,. 
March 2014. 
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Under maJor head 8235 - General and Other Reserve Funds, an amount of 
~ 0.33 crore was credited during 2013-14 out of which ~ 0.25 crore was credited from 

Guarantee Redemption Fee/Commission received during the year from four 
Co-operative Societies. The closing balance in thi s fund stood at~ 5.46 crore at the 

end of 31 March 2014 from~ 5.12 crore at the end of March 2013. 

1.9.4 Contingent liabilities 

Status of Guarantees 
Guarantees are contingent liabilities on the Consolidated Fund of the State in case of 
default by borrower for whom the guarantee bad been extended. Under Article 293 of 
the Constitution of India the State Legislature passed the limits of annual incremental 
risk weighted guarantees to I per cent of the GSDP of that year within which 
Government may give guarantee on the security of the Consolidated Fund of the 
State. 

The State Government also introduced 'The Tripura Government Guarantee 
Redemption Fund Scheme' in 2007 and decided to charge I per cent Guarantee 
Redemption Fee on the fresh guarantee to cover the risk of the liabilities which may 
arise on invocation of the guarantees. 

Table No. 1.37: Status of Guarantees - Contingent Liabilities 
(~in crore) 

.••... < : ··.•.· ... ·· ·.· ..• PartieUlars ·.. . .... · .(>:;\ .. ··• .... l~lO •· . •loto;;;1v <20UfD ? f.;':,20w13· . IS:C2Dl$;tj ·: 
Maximum amount guaranteed during 76.66 6. 10 99.99 121.42 25.00 
the year 
Outstanding amount of guarantees, of 29.54 35.64 115.72 193 .27 187.80 
which 

i) Principal 24.25 30.35 115.64 193 .19 187.72 
ii) Interest 5.29 5.29 0.08 0.08 0.08 

Ceiling fixed by the State Government I % of I % of I % of I % of 1% of 
act, if any GSDP GSDP GSDP GSDP GSDP 
Outstanding amount of guarantee to 0.67 0.69 1.79 2.74 2.45 
Revenue Receipts (per cent) 

During 2013-14, the State Government had given fresh guarantees amounting to 
~ 25 .00 crore for repayment of loans raised by four Co-operative Societies. The 

Government received ~ 0.25 crore as guarantee commission/fee from the four 

Co-operative Societies. However, the Guarantee fees of ~ 0.30 crore receivable on 

the guarantees given by the State Government for the year 2012-13 had not been 
received till the end of March 2014. As on 31 March 2014, outstanding guarantees 
stood at~ 187.80 crore including interest of~ 0.08 crore against~ 193.27 crore at the 

end of 2013. Maximum outstanding guarantee was in respect of Power Corporation : 

amounting to~ 121.91 crore. However, the incremental guarantee liability of the State 
had decreased which was within the limit fixed by the Legislature for the year. 

Off Budget Borrowings 

There was no off-budget borrowings for the year 2013-14. As such, the Government 
had not exceeded the annual permissible limit of 0.5 per cent of the GSDP for off­
budget borrowings according to the TFRBM Act, 2005. 
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1.10 Analysis of Borrowings of Government 

(i) Debt Management 

Table No. 1.38: Public Debt Management 
(~i11 crore) 

Partlculan 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

i) Total Public Debt received 493.8 1 555.9 1 4 17.88 834.0 1 786.98 
ii) Less : Debt Repayment 470.82 505.92 549.64 653.05 2 19.9 1 
iii) Less : Net Di sbursement of (+) 14.05 (-) 1.84 (+) 11.79 (+) 17.67 (+) 14.8 l 
Loans and Advances by the State 
Net Debt Utilised (i) - (ii) - (iii) (-) 8.94 (-) 5 1.83 (+) 143.55 (+) 163.29 (+) 552.26 
Ratio of Net Debt Util ised to 0.02 0.09 0 .34 0.20 0.70 
Total Debt Received (per cent) 

f iscal defi cit is usually fmanced by way of borrowings by the State. T he table shows 

that during 20 13-1 4 the State Government borrowed funds from the Open Market and 

Gol amounting to ~ 786.98 crore and repaid ~ 2 19.91 crore during 2013-1 4 and 

~ 376.59 crore was paid as interest on outstanding debt. 

(ii) Debt Profile 
A time series analysis of Public Debt for the previous fi ve years an d per capita debt 

are given in Table No. 1.39. 

Table No. 1.39: Per capita debt 

Year 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
Total Debt 3,4 15.4 1 3,765.48 3,965.84 4 ,487.37 5,054.45 
(\Fin crore) 
Population* 35,57,000 35,99,000 36,73,9 17 36,83,000 37,25,000 

Per capita Debt 9 ,601 .94 10,462.57 10,794.58 12, 184.00 13,568.99 
(in~ 

Source: *Info rmation fu rnj shed by Directorate of Economic & Statistics, Government ofTripura . 

The per capita debt of the State increased from~ 12,184.00 in 20 12-13 to ~ 13,568.99 

in 2013-14 registering an increase of 1 1.37 per cent during the year. During the same 

period, the percentage increase of outstanding public debt was 12.64 per cent which 

was 19.39 per cent of GSDP. 

Table No. 1.40: Maturity Profile of Outstanding Debt 
(~ill crore) 

Amount of Debt Maturing Between Between Between Between 
2014-15 2016-17 2018-19 2020-21 2022-23 

Particulars 
& & & & onwards 

2015-16 2017-18 2019-20 2021-22 
(A) Intenal Debt. of which 630.91 509.75 770.30 797.85 2,010.37 
(i) Market loans 337.48 236.94 506.00 585.00 1,195.03 
(ii) Loans.from Financial 179.69 159.07 150.56 99.11 76.03 

Institutions 
(iii) NSSF Loans 113.74 113.74 113.74 113.74 739.3 1 
(B) Loans from Government 62.22 61.60 61.49 61.29 88.39 

of India. of which 
(i) Plan Loans 6 1.0 I 60.49 60.45 60.3 1 85.28 
(i i) Non-Plan Loans 1.2 1 I. I 1 l .04 0 .98 3. 11 
(C) .·· Average Jnterest rate 7.50 8.50 8.80 8.80 12.50 
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During 2013-14, an amount of~ 172.14 crore (Market Loan: ~ 77.67 crore; NSSF: 

~ 56.87 crore and Loans from Other Financial Institutions:~ 37.60 crore) was due and 

paid by the State Government. As on 31 March 2014, the outstanding amount of 

internal debt stood at~ 4,719.18 crore which would mature for repayment till the year 

2035-36. There was outstanding Central Loans of~ 334.99 crore which would mature 

for repayment till the year 2052-53 at an interest rate of 7 to 14 per cent per annum. 

Out of outstanding Central Loans of~ 334.99 crore, ~ 233.60 crore was raised by 

the Government at the interest rate of 7 per cent to 7.99 per cent, ~ 82.01 crore at 

9 p er cent to 9.99 per cent and~ 19.38 crore at the interest rate of 10 p er cent to 13.99 

per cent. Total outstanding debts of the Government are shown in Appendix 1.7. 

(iii) Debt Sustainability 

Debt sustainability refers to the state's ability to maintain a constant debt-GDP ratio 

over a period of time. Thus, it implies State's ability to service its debt. 

Apart from the magnitude of debt of State Government, it is important to analyse 

various indicators that determine the debt sustaioability9 of the State. This section 

assesses the sustainability of debt of the State Government in terms of debt 

stabilisation 10; sufficiency of non-debt receipts 11; net availability of borrowed funds 12; 

burden of interest payments (measured by interest payments to revenue receipts ratio) 

and maturity profile of State Government securities. Table No. 1.41 analyses the debt 

sustainability of the State according to these indicators for the period of three years 
beginning from 20 L 1-12. 

Table No. 1.41: Debt Sustainability: Indicators and Trends 

D ebt Stabi lisation 

(+) 857.77 (+) 168.91 (-) 136.20 
(-) 13 1.76 (+) 180.97 (+) 567.07 

7.62 7.56 7.72 

The above table shows that the Debt of the State had been quite stable since 2011-12 

as the quantum spread plus primary deficit remained positive. During 2013-14, the 

sufficiency of non-debt receipts of the State was (-) ~ 136.20 crore against 

9 The debt sustainability is defined as the ability of the State to maintain a constant debt-GDP ratio over a period of 
time and also embodies the concern about the ability to service its debt. Sustainability of debt therefore a lso refers 
to sufficiency of liquid assets to meet current or committed obligations and the capacity to keep balance between 
costs of additiona l borrowings with returns from such borrowings. It means that rise in fiscal defic it should match 
with the increase in capacity to service the debt. 
10 A necessary condition for stabi li ty states that if the rate of growth of economy exceeds the interest rate or cost of 
public borrowings, the debt-G DP ratio is likely lo be stable provided primary balances are either zero or positive or 
are moderately negative. Given the rate spread (GS DP growth rate - interest rate) and quantum spread (Debt*rate 
spread), debt sustainability condition stales that if quantum spread together with primary deficit is zero, debt­
GSDP ratio would be constant or debt would stabi lise eventually. On the other hand, if primary deficit together 
with quann1m spread turns out to be negative, debt-GSDP ratio would be rising and in case it is positive, debt­
GSDP ratio would eventually be falling. 
11 Adequacy o f incremental non-debt receipt of the State to cover the incremental interest liabilities and 
incremental primaiy expendin1re. The debt sustainability could be s ignificantly fac ilitated if the incremental non­
debt receipt could meet the incremental interest burden and the incremental primary expenditure. 
12 Defined as the ratio of the debt redemption (Principal + Interest Payments) to total debt receipts and indicates 
the extent to which the debt receipts arc used in debt redemption indicating the net availability of borrowed funds. 
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~ 168.91 crore in 2012-13, which indicated that incremental non-debt receipts was not 

able to cover the incremental interest burden. The net Availability of Borrowed Funds 
was positive during the last two years and stood at~ 567.07 crore during 2013-14. 

(iv) Market Borrowings 

To augment the resources of the State for undertaking development activities the State 
Government may borrow funds from the open market. The limit of borrowing for a 
particular financial year is fixed by the Planning Commission of Government oflndia 
under Article 293 of the Constitution of India. 

During last five year period from 2009- 10 to 20 13-14, the position of funds raised 
from open market as well as the repayment are given in Table No. 1.42. 

Table No. 1.42: Market borrowing during 2009-14 

(~in crore) 

Year O...tnl Amom ' gout 
.>. 

Closiq · ··~·(t}/ ., 

IHllaaee ... raised Nnald b8lanee Dectwt(i')') , .... 
2009-10 l ,191.94 350.00 98.0l 1,443.93 25 1.99 
2010-11 l,443.93 285.00 92.88 1,636.05 192.12 
201 1-12 t ,636.05 300.00 73.47 1,862.58 226.53 
2012- 13 1,862.58 645.00 11 9.43 2,388.15 525.57 
2013- 14 2,388.15 550.03 77.67 2,860.5 1 472.36 

Source: Finance Accounts. 

It would be seen from Table No. 1.42 that during the period 2009- 14, the State 

Government borrowed ~ 2, 130.03 crore from the open market and repaid 

~ 461.46 crore during the years resul ting in net addition to the internal debt liability of 
the State amounting to ~ 472.36 crore during the period. Interest rates on the market 

borrowings ranged between 7.77 per cent and 9.67 per cent during the past five years 
up to 2013-14. The State Government raised market loan of~ 550.03 crore during 

2013-14 which was redeemable by 2024 at the annual interest rate ranging between 
9.39 and 9.67 per cent. Total internal debt of the State as on 31 March 2014 stood at 
~ 4,7 19.24 crore including interest bearing market loan of ~ 2,860.45 crore 

(Appendix 1.7). 

(v) Cash Balance Investment 

The position of the cash balance investment account during last five year period upto 
20113-14 are detailed in Table No.1.43. 

2009-10 744.35 260.05 
2010-l 1 260.05 657.41 22.26 
201 1-12 657.4 1 1,104.30 48.9 1 131.13 
2012-13 l , 104.30 2,305.70 66.49 148.40 
2013-14 2,305 .70 3,460.88 85.20 185.51 

From the balances of cash balance investment account it was seen that while the 
balance had decreased in 20 10-11 , it substantially increased from~ 260.05 crore in 
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2010-11 to ~ 2,305. 70 crore in 2013-14. As on 31 March 2014, the entire balance was 
invested in Government of India 14 days Treasury Bills with RBI. 

1.11 Fiscal Imbalances 

Three key fiscal parameters - revenue, fisca l and primary deficits - indicate the extent 
of overall fiscal imbalances in the finances of the State Government during a specified 
period. The nature and quantum of deficit is an indicator of the prudence of fiscal 
management of the Government. Further, the ways in which the deficit is financed 
and applied are also important pointers to its fi scal management. This section presents 
trends, nature, magnitude and the manner of financing these deficits and also the 
assessment of actual levels of revenue and fiscal deficits vis-a-vis targets set under 
FRBM Act/Rules for the financial year 2013-14. 

1.11.1 Trends in Deficits 

Cha r t 1.12 presents the trends in deficit/surplus indicators over the period 2009-14. 

Chart No. 1.J 2:trends in Deficit/Surplus indicators for the last five years 
(~in crore) 

N 
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Iii Revenue Deficit/Surplus Iii Fiscal Deficit/Surplus Iii Primary Deficit/Surplus 

The State was ab le to achieve revenue surplus during 2009-14 and it ranged between 
1.22 and 7.95 per cent of GSDP during the period. During 2013- 14 the revenue 
surplus was ~ 1701.22 crore (6.52 per cent of GSDP) which was overstated by 
~ 518. 73 crore (unspent balance of ~ 501.99 crore under Central Scheme (CS)/ 

Centrally Sponsored Scheme (CSS) and written off amount of~ 16.74 crore of Gol 

loan) during the year. However, as per information furnished by the State 
Government, a substantial amount under the CS/CSS remained unspent due to release 
of funds by GoI at the end of March 2014. The State had witnessed primary surplus 
during 2009-14 except 2009- 10 and it stood at 2.44 per cent of GSDP during 2013-14. 
There was fiscal deficit in two out of last five year period upto 2013-14 though the 
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State had achieved fiscal surplus of ~ 45.68 crore during 201 3- 14 against 

~ 336.56 crore in 2012-1 3. 

1.11.2 Composition of Fiscal Deficit/Surplus and its Financing Pattern 

The financing pattern of the fiscal deficit/surplus had undergone a compositional shift 
as reflected in the table below: 

Table No. 1.44: Decomposition and Financing Pattern of Fiscal Deficit 
(~in crore) 

Particulan 2011-12 2012-13 201$14 
I 2 3 4 

Decomposit ion of Fiscal Deficit(-) I Surplus(+) (+) 258.62 (+) 336.56 (+) 45 .68 
Fiscal Deficit/Surplus as percentage to GSDP (+) 1.23 (+)1.41 (+) 0.18 
Revenue Deficit (-) I Surplus(+) (+) 1,667.67 (+) 1,837.42 (+) l ,701.22 
Capita l Expenditure 1,397.26 1,483. 19 1,640.73 
Net Loans and Advances (-) 1 l.79 (-) 17.67 (-) 14.8 1 
Finanein2 Pattern of Fiscal Deficit(-) I SufolUs C+1 

Market Borrowings (Net) (+) 54.28 (+)377. 17 (+) 472.36 
Loans from Gol (Net) (-)75.09 (-)59.52 (-) 44.04 
Special Securities lssued to NSSF (Net) (-) 159.77 (-) 134.0 1 (+) 17.53 
Loans from Financial Institutions (Net) (+) 24.06 (-)2.67 (+) 121.22 
Small Savings, Provident Fund, etc. (Net) (-) 17.80 (+)47.01 (+) 326.99 
Deposits and Advances (Net) (-)9.08 (-)26.04 (-) 14.8 1 
Suspense and Misc. (Net) (-) 32.67 (-) 19.34 (+) 19.68 
Remittances (Net) (+)45 .13 (+)10.31 (-) 45.97 
Others (RF) (Net) (+) 35.40 (+)0.82 (+) 18.65 
Increase(+) I decrease(-) in cash balance (+)681.80 (+)l ,138. 10 (+) 1,127.74 

The source of funds of the State Government comprises of revenue receipts, non-debt 
capital receipts, public debt receipts and net receipts from public accounts. The State 
Government received a substantial amount of ~ 4,699.50 crore from Central 

Government as grants during the year 201 3-14 and with this amount the total revenue 
receipts stood at~ 7 ,650.18 crore. The revenue expenditure was only ~ 5,948.96 crore 

resulting in revenue surplus of ~ 1,701.22 crore during 201 3-1 4. The State had been 
enjoying revenue surplus since 2005-06 and with gradual improvement in its fiscal 

policy implementation the State had also begun to have fiscal surplus from 2011-1 2. 
~ 45.68 crore fi scal surplus during 2013-14 was derived after meeting the capi tal 

expenditure and disbursement of loans and advances during the year. Besides, the net 
availability of borrowed funds was ~ 567.07 crore excluding the written off Central 

Loans during the year 201 3-14. 

1.11.3 Quality of Deficit/Surplus 

Table No. 1.45 indicates the extent to which the deficit/surplus had been on account 
of enhancement in capital expenditure which may be desirable to improve the 
productive capacity of the State's economy. 
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Table No. J .45: Primary deficit/Surplus - Bifurcation of factors 

,,z f: ~ f i+ 
4,404.86 3,805.28 l ,332.22 5,155.06 - 750.20 

20 10-11 5, 17 1.40 3,9 12. 16 1,058.33 4,971.45 1,259.24 (+ 199.95 
20 11-1 2 6,479.00 4,315.96 1,397.26 5,727. 11 2,163.04 + 75 1.89 
20 12-13 7,05 1.56 4,680.07 1,483.1 9 6,182. 19 2,371.49 + 869.37 
2013- 14 7,65 1.14 5,358.00 1,640.73 15.57 7,014.50 2,293. 14 (+ 636.64 

The non-debt receipts of the State during 2009- 14 were sufficient to meet the primary 
revenue expenditure. The non-debt receipts increased by 73.70 per cent from 
~ 4,404.86 crore in 2009-10 to ~ 7,651.14 crore in 2013-14. The primary revenue 

expenditure however, increased by 40.80 per cent from ~ 3,805.28 crore in 2009-10 to 
~ 5,358.00 crore in 2013- 14. During the period (2009-14) Capital Expenditure grew 

by 23. 16 per cent. The State had a primary surplus of~ 636.64 crore during 20 13- 14 

against~ 869.37 crore in 201 2-1 3 with a decrease of~ 232.73 crore during the year. 

1.12 Conclusion and Recommendations 

Surplus/Deficit 
The fiscal position of the State viewed in terms of key fiscal parameters - revenue 
surplus, fiscal deficit, primary deficit, etc., indicated that the State had maintained 
revenue and primary surplus during the last five years except in 2009-10 where the 
State had witnessed primary deficit. During the current year, revenue surplus and 
primary surplus of the State came down as compared to the previous year. Fiscal 
surplus also came down during 2013-14 to ~ 45 .68 crore from ~ 336.56 crore in 
2012-13. 

Revenue Receipts 

During 2013-14, ~ 6,329.75 crore (83 per cent) of the total revenue was from the 

Government of India as State share of central taxes ~ 1,630.25 crore (21 per cent) and 
Grants-in-aid ~ 4,699.50 crore (62 per cent) . The Own Tax Revenue of the State 

constituted ~ 1,073 .91 crore (14 p er cent) of the total revenue receipts. The OTR 

during 201 3-14 remained above the normative assessment of ~ 809 .48 crore made by 
the XIII Finance Commission for the State but it bad remained below the State's own 
projections of~ 1,257.30 crore in RE. The non-tax revenue constituted~ 246.52 crore 

(3 per cent) of the revenue receipts of~ 7 ,650.18 crore which was higher than the 
projection made by the XIII FC (~ 170.29 crore) but below the estimates made by the 

State~ 278.00 crore) for the year. 

The tax compliance measures have been enforced by the State Government. The 
Government should maintain the same momentum. 
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Expenditure of the State Government 

During 2013-14, the Revenue expenditure increased to ~ 5,948.96 crore (78 per cent 
of the total expenditure) from~ 5,212.88 crore in 2012- 13 recording a growth of 

~ 736.08 crore over the previous year. On the other hand, capital expenditure in 

2013-14 increased by~ 157.54 crore over the previous year which as a percentage of 
total expenditure remained constant as in the previous year. 

During 201 3-14, the development expenditure ~ 4,866.80 crore) increased by 
~ 616.24 crore over the previous year and constituted about 64 per cent of total 

expenditure. The relative share of the revenue development expenditure was 
45 per cent of the total expenditure while the share in respect of capital development 
expenditure was only 18 per cent. The expenditure pattern of the State thus, revealed 
that there was an increasing pressure on revenue expenditure. On the other hand, 
capital expenditure marginally decreased by less than one per cent in 2013-14 
compared to the previous year. 

The expenditure on non-plan salary component during 2013-14 was also significantly 
higher by~ 741.17 crore (around 47 per cent) than the assessment made by the XIII 

FC for the State~ 1,566.06 crore). 

The high proportion of salaries to total revenue expenditure much beyond the 
assessment of the XIII FC may have adverse impact on the State's financial health as 
the State 's own resources are meagre. 

Fiscal Correction Path 

During 201 3-14, the State had revenue surplus which stood at ~ 1, 70 1.22 crore which 

decreased by~ 136.20 crore from~ 1,837.42 crore in 2012-13 and the fiscal surplus 

stood at ~ 45.68 crore against ~ 336.56 crore in 2012-13. The fiscal surplus as 
percentage of GSDP of the State during 201 3-14 stood at 0.18 per cent of GSDP 
against the target of fiscal deficit of 3.00 per cent as projected in the TFRBM Act, 
2005 for the year 2013-14. 

Keeping in view the recommendations of the XIII Finance Commission, the State 
should continue to maintain fiscal surplus to achieve the targets as fixed in the FRBM 
in the ensuing years. 

Fiscal Liabilities 

The percentage of outstanding liabilities to GSDP during 2013-14 was 33.51, which 
was lower than the projection (44.20 per cent) in the Medium Term Fiscal Policy 
Statement (MTFPS) and the projection made in the TFRBM Act. During 2013-14, 
interest receipts as percentage of outstanding loans and advances by the Government 
was 0.99 per cent whereas interest paid by the Government as a percentage of 
outstanding liabilities was 6. 77. 

Investment and Returns 

Investment of Government money m Government Companies and Statutory 
Corporations are increasing year after year but no return from the investments had 
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been received by the Government during 2013-14. The average rate of interest on 
Government borrowings was 8.53 per cent during the year 2013-14. 

Ther State Government may review the functioning of the Companies and Statutory 
Corporations to improve their efficiency. 

. ' 
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND 

BUDGETARY CONTROL 

, 

2.1 Introduction 

2.1.1 Appropriation Accounts are accounts of the expenditure, voted and charged, of 

the Government for each financial year compared with the amounts of the voted 

grants and appropriations charged for different purposes as specified in the schedules 

appended to the Appropriation Acts passed under Article 204 and 205 of the 

Constitution of lndia. These Accounts li st the original budget estimate, supplementary 

grants, surrenders and re-appropriations distinctly and indicate actual capital and 

revenue expenditure on various spec ified services vis-a-vis those authorised by the 

Appropriation Act in respect of both charged and voted items of budget. The 

Appropriation Accounts thus facilitate management of finances and monitoring of 

budgetary provision and are therefore, complementary to Finance Accounts. 

2.1.2 Audit of appropriation by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India seeks 

to ascertain whether expenditure actually incurred under various grants was within the 

authorisation given under the Appropriation Act and that the expenditure required to 

be charged under the provision of the Constitution was so charged. 

2.2 Summary of Appropriation Accounts 

The summarised position of actual expenditure during 2013-14 against 60 Grants/ 

Appropriations was as given in Table No. 2.1: 

Table No. 2.1: Summarised Position of Actual Expenditure vis-a-vis Original/Supplementary 
provision 

(ri11 crore) 

Original grant/ Supplementary Actual Savings (-)' Nature or expenditure gnat/ Total appropriation annronrlatioa expenditure* Estess(+) 

Voted I. Revenue 6,334.74 69 1.78 7,026.52 5,489.52 (-) 1,537.00 
II. Capital 2,288.68 840.9 1 3, 129.59 1,66 1.12 (-)1 ,468.47 
111. Loans and Advances 45.59 I. I 0 46.69 25.88 (-)20.8 1 

Total Voted 8.669.01 L,533.79 10,202.80 7,176.52 (-)3,026.28 
C harged IV. Revenue 615.8 1 10.37 626.1 8 605.36 (-)20.82 

V. Capital 272.28 5 1.26 323.54 0.0 f-)323.54 
V I. Public Debt-Repayment 105.54 0.22 105.76 2 19.91 (+) 11 4. 15 

Total C har2ed 993.63 61.85 1,055.48 825.27 (-)230.21 
Appropriation to Cont ingency Fund (if any' 

Grand Total: 9.662.64 1.595.64 11.258.28 L OOl.79 '-"-156.49 
* These are gross expenditure including actual recoveries in 6 Grants ( Grants No. 13, I 5, 27, 29, 3 1 and 5 I) amounting lo 

~ 176.42 crorc (Revenue: ~ 145.92 crore and Capital: ~ 30.50 crore). 

The overall savings of~ 3,256.49 crore was the resul t of saving of~ 3,268.46 crore in 
57 Grants/ Appropriations offset by excess of ~ J 1.97 crore in five Grants/ 
Appropriations. 

In Revenue Account, major savings was mainly in Finance ~ 183.55 crore), Tribal 

Welfare (~ 287.06 crore), Welfare of Scheduled Castes and Other Backward Classes 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 ••• 47 



Financial Management and Budgetary Control 

~ 128.9 1 crore), Public Works (R&B) (~ 30.93 crore), Panchayati Raj 
(~ 79.70 crore), Urban Deveploment (~ 56.40 crore), Public Works (Water Resources) 

~ 35.3 l crore), Rural Development ~ 48.82 crore), Home (Po l ice)(~ 135.08 crore), 
Education (Social) ~ 79.99 crore), Family Welfare & Preventive Medicine 

(~ 169.22 crore) and Education (School)(~ 84.02 crore) Departments. 

Total excess expenditure of ~ I 1.97 crore occurred mainly in Co-operation 

~ 1.28 crore), Horticulture (~ 1.91 crore), Information Technology ~ 1.14 crore), 

Public Works (Drinking Water and Sani tation) (~ 2.28 crore) and Industries and 
Commerce(~ 0.06 crore) Departments. 

Reasons for savings/ excess had not been intimated by the Departments concerned 
(August 201 4). 

2.3 Financial Accountability and Budget Management 

2.3.J Appropriation vis-a-vis Allocative Priorities 

The outcome of the appropriation audit revealed that out of overall savings of 
~ 3,256.49 crore, ~ 1,989.75 crore (61.10 per cent) savings occurred in 33 cases in 
which the savings exceed ~ 10 crore in each cases (Appendix 2.1). 

It was also seen that in 24 cases (Appendix 2.1) actual expenditure was Jess than 
even the original provision. There were savings of more than ~ I 00 crore each in 

three cases under Revenue viz., (i) Home (Police) ~ 135.08 crore), (ii) Finance 
(~ 183 .55 crore) and (iii) Family Welfare & Preventive Medicine (~ 169.22 crore) 

departments and in one case under Capital i. e., Finance~ 306.72 crore) Department. 
Abnormal savings indicated that the basis for assessment of original as well as 
supplementary requirements were not realistic. 

Reasons for savings had not been intimated (August 2014) by the departments. 

2.3.2 Persistent Savings 

In 29 cases, there were persistent savings of more than ~ 1 crore each during the last 

fi ve year period (Appendix 2.2). Out of 29 cases, in 13 cases the savings were more 
than ~ 10 crore while in 11 cases the savings were more than 10 per cent of their 

provision during the year 2009-10 to 201 3-14 as detailed in Table No. 2.2. 

Table No. 2.2: List of Grants indicating Persistent Savings of~ 10 crore and above 

during 2009-14 
(~in crore) 

Namber and name of Grant 
Amount of savina 

SL 2009-10 2010-11 1011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
No. 

Revenue-Voted 
I. 10 - Home (Police) Department 18.35 17.77 49.29 47.48 135.08 

(3) (3) (8) (7) (16) 

2. 19 - Tribal Welfare Department 56.6 1 123.25 11 0.87 177.22 287.06 
( 14) (26) (2 1) (27) (34) 
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Table No. 2.2: List of Grants indicating Persistent Savings of~ 10 crore and above 
during 2009-14 (concld.) 

( fin crore) 

SI. Number and name of Grant ~JO Amount of savin25 
2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 No. 

Revenue-Voted 
3. 20 - Welfare of Scheduled Castes & 42.92 7 L.40 78.77 163.68 128.91 

Other Backward Classes Department (28) (40) (37) (49) (38) 
4 Education (Social) Department 14.36 28.73 27.28 52.27 79.99 

(8) (1 5) (12) (21) (24) 

Caoltal-Voted 
5 I 3 - Public Works (Roads and 23.02 64.74 3 1.98 21.29 49.15 

Buildings) Department ( 11 ) (34) (19) (I I) ( 19) 
6 15 - Public Works (Water Resources) 27.05 79.65 58.45 42.84 44.05 

Department (55) (74) (68) (55) (66) 
7 19 - Tribal Welfare Department 305.80 263.69 195.9 1 354.83 283 .25 

(4 1) (42) (32) (42) (33) 
8. 20 - Welfare of Scheduled Castes & 189.9 1 169.99 118.96 204.98 191.34 

Other Backward Classes Department (48) (50) (35) (44) (39) 
9. 27 - Agriculture Department 39.72 59.96 86.99 82.87 79.79 

(66) (68) (79) (68) (69) 
10. 34 - Planning and Coordination I 0 1.67 155.82 86.60 155.90 230.88 

Department (97) (98) (95) (97) (97) 
11. 39 - Education (Higher) Department 34.71 22.88 27.47 24.88 19.43 

(54) (47) (4 1) (39) (62) 
12. 40 - Education (School) Department 32.73 17.3 1 21.96 41.11 30.65 

(44) (35) (27) (52) (35) 
13. 43 - Finance Department 101.37 204.88 30 1.52 365.76 306.72 

(99) (99) (99) (99) (99) 

NB: Percentage of total provision in brackets. 

Analysis of the savings revealed that: 

);;>- There were increasing trend of savings in Revenue Account during the last 
five year period. The savings with reference to the provision increased from 
three to 28 per cent in 2009-10 to 16 to 38 per cent in 201 3-14 and in Capital 
head the percentage of savings ranged between 19 and 99 per cent as 

compared to the provision during the current year. The highest percentage of 
savings to original provision occurred persistently during the five year period 
(2009-14) in Grant No. 43 in respect of Capital Account which was 
99 per cent. In Grant No. 34, the percentage of savings in Capital head was 
95 per cent and above each year during the period. 

2.3.3 Expenditure without Provision 

As per the Financial Rule, expend iture should not be incurred on a scheme/service 

without provision of funds. It was however, noticed that expenditure of Z 73.27 crore 
was incurred in 13 Grants/ Appropriations without any provision in the original 
estimates/supplementary demands and without any re-appropriation orders to this 
effect. Details of the scheme/service where expenditure were incurred without any 
provision of funds are detailed in Appendix 2.3. 

There were 12 cases under four Grants/Appropriations, where expenditure of 

Z 1 crore in each case (Appendix 2.3) was incurred without making any provision 
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during the year out of which in one case the amount involved was more than 

~ 10 crore as detailed below in Table No. 2.3. 

Table No. 2.3: Expenditure above~ 10 crore incurred without provision during 2013-14 
(fin crore) 

Number and Amount of 
Name of Head of Head of Service expenditure Jteasons/ltemarks 
Grants/ Account without 

Annroorlations __ orovision 
" ··~ 

19: Tribal 2225 Welfare of Scheduled Caste , 
Welfare Scheduled Tribes and Other Reasons for 

Department Backward Classes incurring 

02 Welfare of Scheduled Tribes expendi ture without 

794 Special Central Assistance for 
budget provision 
had oot been 

Tribal Sub-Plan intimated (August 
34 Tribal Sub-Plan 
15 Special Central Assistance (Plan) 15.77 

20 14). 

2.3.4 Excess over provision relating to previous years requiring regularisation 

As per Article 205 of the Constitution of India, it is mandatory for a State 

Government to get the excess over a Grant/ Appropriation regularised by the State 
Legislature. Although no time limit for regularisation of expenditure had been 

prescribed under the Article, the regularisation of excess expenditure is done after the 

completion of discussion of the Appropriation Accounts by the Public Accounts 

Committee (PAC). Summarised pos1tlon of excess expenditure requmng 
regularisation for the last 13 years are given in the table below: 

Table No. 2.4: Excess over provision r elating to previous years requiring regularisation 

(f i11 crore) 

Year 
Number of Excess over Status or 

Grants Annroorlations provision - tlon . 
2000-01 5 (5, 10, 3 1, 45, 5 1) 4 ( 13, 14, 25, 43) 81.92 
2001-02 10(5, 7, 10, 14, 17, 22, 24,3 1, 41 , 45) 4 (1 3, 35, 43, 49) 275.57 
2002-03 6 (6, 7, 10, 36, 45, 47) 4 ( 12, 14, 3 1, 43) 266.77 
2003-04 3 (5, 28, 36) 2(31, 43) 233.55 
2004-05 11 (2, 4, 6, l 4, 18, 22, 33, 36, 40, 54, 55) 3 ( 1,3 1, 43) 321.67 

2005-06 5 (6, 15, 39, 45, 56) 2 (I 43) 14.58 Not 

2006-07 3 (22, 41 , 42) 3 ( 13, 20, 43) 14.85 regularised ti ll 

2007-08 3 (23, 28, 36) 2 (43, 48) 22.90 3 1 March 2014 

2008-09 5 (22, 31 , 35, 4 1, 56) 2 (2, 43) 16.56 
2009- 10 3 (23, 24, 29) I (14) 62.18 
20 10-1 1 8 (1 3, 14, 16, 22, 24,31, 41, 56) 5 ( I, 2, 13, 48) 20.63 
20 11- 12 8 (16, 23, 24, 35, 36, 37, 43, 56) I (35) 69.76 
20 12-13 9(12, 24,25, 28,30, 37, 42, 47, 56) I (10) 8.04 

Total: 1.408.98 

Expenditure incurred in excess of the Budget Estimates under both Voted Grants/ 

Charged Appropriations by various Departments of the State Government were 

regularly. featured in the Reports of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on 

State Finances, Government of Tripura. As on 31 March 2013, there was an excess 

expenditure of~ 1,408.98 crore requiring regularisation. 
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Apart from regularly featuring the excess expenditure requiring regularisation in the 
Audit Reports, the Accountant General (Audit) has taken up the matter with the 
Government for early regularisation. The Government have considered for 
regularising the expenditure of { 1,331.18 crore for I I years, i.e from 2000-0 l to 

2010-11 incurred in excess of the Budget Estimates under both Voted Grants and 
Charged Appropriation by various Departments of the State Government. 

The Government have referred to the Public Accounts Committee (PAC) for 
consideration of regularising the excess expenditure in its sitting held on 
12111 February 2014. Subsequently, the Committee in its l l31

h Report stated that all 
aspect of regularising the excess expenditure incurred by various Department of the 
State Government during the last 11 years was considered on the basis of relevant 

Appropriation Accounts, and reasons for excess expenditure furnished by the 
Government. The Committee recommended that Government should control their 
excess expenditure in different services and take necessary steps to reduce excess 
expenditure beyond the amount granted by the Assembly for each financial year. The 
Government also assured the committee that prompt steps would be taken to 
regularise excess expenditure in future. 

The Committee recommended for regularisation of the excess expenditure amounting 
to { 1,331.18 crore incurred over the Budget Estimate under Voted Grants/Charged 

Appropriation by the State Legislature at the earliest opportunity. 

On further query (September 2014) on the development of regularisation of 
{ 1,331 .18 crore excess expenditure pertaining to tbe year from 2000-01 to 2010-11 

as recommended by the PAC and the excess expenditure incurred in the subsequent 

years from 201 L-12 to 2012-13 amounting to { 77.80 crore, the Government Stated 
(October 2014) that necessary action have been taken for regularisation of the excess 
expenditure for the year 2000-01 to 2010-11 by presenting it to the Tripura 
Legislative Assembly and the Tripura Legislative Assembly passed "The Tripura 
Appropriation Acts, 2014" (Acts No. 4 to 14) and regularised the excess expenditure 
(October 2014). The Government further stated that steps have already been taken for 
regularisation of the excess expenditure for the years 2011-12 and 2012-13 for placing 
the same to the PAC. 

2.3.5 Excess over provision during 2013-14 requiring regularisation 

An excess expenditure aggregating { 11.97 crore was also incurred in six Grants/ 

Appropriations which exceeded the approved provision during the year 2013-14 and 
'- is required to be regularised by the State Legislature under Article 205 of the 

Constitution. Details are given in Appendix 2.4. 

2.3.6 Unnecessary/Excessive/Inadequate supplementary provision 

Supplementary provision aggregating to { 1,014.40 crore obtained m 26 cases 
(t l crore or more in each case) during the year proved unnecessary as the 

expenditure was less than the original provision as detailed in Appendix 2.5. In five 
cases, supplementary provision of { 30.91 crore proved insufficient, by { I crore or 
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more in each case, l ~aving an aggregate excess expenditure of~ 11.90 crore over the 

supplementary provision (Appendix 2.6). fn 23 cases, supplementary provision of 

~ 472.01 crore was obtained against actual requirement of~ 209.44 crore, resulting in 

excess supplementary provision as well as savings of~ 262.57 crore in those cases, as 

detailed in Appendix 2.7. 

2.3. 7 Excessive/unnecessary re-appropriation of funds 

Re-appropriation is transfer of funds within a grant from one unit of appropriation to 

another unit where additional funds are needed. During 2013-14, where savings were 

anticipated, injudicious re-appropriation proved excessive or insufficient and resulted 

in savings/excess of over ~ I crore in each sub-head in 32 Grants/Appropriations as 

detailed in Appendix 2.8. 

In 32 out of 188 Sub-heads m 13 Grants/ Appropriations (Appendix 2.8), savings/ 

excess of more than ~ I 0 crore in each case occurred due to injudicious, insufficient 

or excess ive re-appropriation of funds during the year 2013-14. This indicated that 

re-appropriations were done without proper assessment of actual requirement. 

Further, scrutiny of detailed Appropriation Accounts for the year 2013-14 revealed 

that in some major heads under 18 Grants/ Appropriations, re-appropriations were 

done without the knowledge of the Legislature (Appendix 2.9) instead of including 

the same in the budget as a new service/ instrument. The reasons for the 

re-appropriation was stated to be 'based on actual requirement' . 

2.3.8 Unexplained re-appropriation 

According to the Financial Rules, reasons for additional expenditure and savings 

should be explained with case specific comments and vague expressions such as 

"based on actual requirements'', "release/sanction of fund by the Government of 

India", etc., should be avoided. Test-check of re-appropriation orders in respect of 

Grant No. 20 issued by the Finance Department revealed that out of total 193 cases, 

re-appropriation in 135 cases (70 per cent) was done where the reasons attributed 

were large ly commented upon with expression like ' based on actual requirement' 

wh ich was in violation of Financial Rules besides being arbitrary and vague. 

2.3.9 Insufficient surrenders 

Scrutiny of Appropriation Accounts revealed that there were substantial savmgs 

(cases where more than 50 per cent of total savings were not surrendered) in respect 

of 30 Grants/ Appropriations. Out of the total provision of~ 3,846.56 crore in these 30 

cases, ~ 1, 139.41 crore (30 per cent) of total provision was available for surrender. Of 

this, ~ 934.86 crore (82 per cent of available savings) was not surrendered during the 

year 201 3-14. It is noticeable that as much as 99 per cent of avai lable savings was not 

surrendered under two Grants (Grant No. 6 and 21) and 90 to 98 per cent were not 
surrendered in another 10 Grants (Grant No. 11, 16, 21, 23, 24, 34, 42, 43, 52 and 54). 

The detail s of such cases are given in Appendix 2.10. Reasons for not surrendering 

~ 934.86 crore were not stated. 
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2.3.10 Surrender in excess of actual savings 

In six cases, the amounts surrendered were in excess of actual savings which indicated 

inadequate budgetary control in those departments. As against savings of { 3,082.94 

crore, { 4,832.19 crore was surrendered resulting in excess surrender of { 1,749.25 

crore. Details are given in Appendix 2.11. In two out of six cases, the amount of 

excess surrender was above { 2 crore while in one case it was above { JO crore. 

2.3.11 Anticipated savings not surrendered 

As per Financial Rules, the departments incurring expenditure are required to 

surrender the Grants/Appropriations or portion thereof to the Finance Department as 
and when the savings are antic ipated. At the close of the year 201 3-14, there were 45 

Grants/Appropriations in which savings occurred ({ 10 lakb and above in each case) 

but no amount was surrendered by the departments concerned. The amount involved 

in those cases was { 619.5 1 crore (Appendix 2.12). Out of 45 in 19 cases the savings 

were more than rupees one crore while in 15 cases there were savings of more than 

{ 10 crore. The major departments invo lved were (i) Public Works (Roads and 

Buildings) Department, (ii) Education (Higher) Department, (iii) Home (Police) 

Department, (iv) Relief and Rehabilitati.on Department, (v) Panchayanti Raj 

Department, (vi) Forest Depa1t ment, (vii) Urban Development Department, 

(viii) Finance Department, (ix) Family Welfa re and Preventive Medicine Department 

and (x) Welfare of Minorities Department. 

Besides, in two Grants, there were no anticipated savings and even the expenditure 

was in excess of the provision. Though there were no savings, the Controlling 

Officers (Appendix 2.13) surrendered an amount of { 3.87 crore during 201 3-1 4, 

which was indicative of poor financial management and control over expenditure. 

2.3.12 Rush of expenditure 

In order to utilise the total resources at the di sposal of the Government to the best 

advantage, the departmental heads/controlling officers at whose disposal a grant is 

placed are required to keep constant watch over the progress of expenditure under 

different units of appropriation so that timely action can be taken to surrender fu nds 

that cannot be utilised instead of spending them hastily or in an ill-considered manner 

at the close of the financial year. 

According to the Financial Rules, rush of expenditure in the closing month of the 

fi nancial year should be avo ided. Contrary to this, in respect of 17 Grants/ 

Appropriations more than 20 per cent (Appendix 2.14) of the total expenditure i.e, 

more than 15 per cent of the total provision was incurred in the last month of the 

financial year. In 11 Grants more than 30 per cent of expenditure was incurred during 

March 2014. On an average, expenditure in the month of March 2014 was 75 per cent 

of the expenditure incurred in the fourth quarter of the financial year 201 3-14 under 

the 17 Grants/ Appropriations. 
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Rusb of expenditure at tbe close of the year can lead to infructuous, nugatory or ill 
planned expenditure. The departments should spread the expenditure uniform ly 
throughout the year as far as practicable without holding tbe funds till the end of the 
financial year. 

2.4 Expenditure controls 

2.4.1 Pendency in submission of Detailed Countersigned Contingent (DCC) Bills 
against Abstract Contingent (AC) Bills 

As per sub-rules 11 (ii) and 14 of Rule 27 of the Delegation of Financial Powers 
Rules, Tripura, 2007, drawal of the amount in AC Bills should be adjusted in DCC 
Bills by submitting to countersigning officer within 60 (sixty) days from the date of 
the drawal of the amount and the Head of the Department shall countersign all DCC 
Bills and forward them to the Accountant General (Accounts & Enti tlement), Tripura 
within 90 (ninety) days from the date of the drawal of the AC Bill. 

Total number of unadjusted AC bills as on 3 1 March 201 3 was 17,433 involving 
{ 150.72 crore which increased to 18,398 bills involving { 156.34 crore as on 

31 March 2014. The year-wise position of outstanding AC bills fo r the last four years 
are given in Table No. 2.5. 

Table No. 2.5: Year-wise break-up of outstanding AC Bills as on 31 March 2014 
(fin crore) 

Outstanding AC Biiis as oa 31 Oa ........ AC Bills aoall 
Year Marehl013 Marcia 2014 , :,: . 

No.ofBIDs Amount No. of BUii Amount 
Up to 20 I 0-1 l 3, 134 34.49 760 14.24 

2011 - 12 4,750 48.85 2, 149 27.93 
20 12-13 9,549 67.38 3,6 18 18.93 
20 13-14 - - 11 ,87 1 95.24 
Total: J7-4l~~ 150.72 1"398 J 5'.34 

Source: Appropriation Accounts 2013- 14. 

It was noticed that the amount of AC Bills for { 34.49 crore involving 3, 134 bills that 

remained unadjusted for the year upto 201 0-11 came down to { 14.24 crore involving 

760 bills while for the year 2011 -12 it came down to { 27.93 crore involving 2, 149 

bills from { 48.85 crore invo lving 4,750 bills which indicated that 59 per cent of the 

total outstanding amount was adjusted during the year. However, as on 31 July 20 14, 
the outstanding AC bills reduced to 17 ,8 J 3 invo lving { 146.97 crore, as per 
information received from office of the Accountant General (A&E). 

Department-wise breakup of AC Bills involving { 95.24 crore drawn during the year 

2013-1 4 are given in Appendix 2.15. Year-wise position of substantial amounts drawn 
on 13,832 AC Bills involving { 11 5.12 crore by six maj or departments out of which 

{ 51.99 crore involving 5,530 AC Bills for the previous years upto 2012-13 remained 

un-adjusted as on 3 1March 20 14 are given below: 
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Table No. 2.6: Year-wise break-up of AC Bills outstanding in respect of some major 
departments 

(rin crore) 
. . ,. <-· Amount 8f'AG BOii SL Name of Department Year 

-·._ No. of 
OUCIWldlag 81OR31 

No. ACBillS Marcb2014 
I. Revenue Department Upto 2010-1 l 164 2.34 

20 11- 12 515 6.30 
20 12-13 563 1.96 
20 13-14 2 189 12.92 

Total: 3431 23.52 
2. Tribal Welfare Department Upto 20 10-11 152 3.30 

20 11 - 12 419 6.94 
2012- 13 876 5.51 
2013-14 2915 20.20 

Total: 4362 35.95 
3. Welfare of SC/OBC and Uoto 2010-1 I 183 4.45 

Minorities Department 201 1-1 2 218 4.59 
2012-13 854 3.61 
20 13-14 2394 16.02 

Total: 3649 28.67 
4. Education (School) Department Upto 20 10-l I 108 l.50 

20 11 -12 136 l.34 
20 12-13 168 1.96 
20 13- 14 I 91 J0.91 

Total: 603 15.71 
5. Education (Social) Uoto 20 10- 11 107 2.10 

20 11 - 12 469 3.08 
2012-1 3 496 2.3 1 
20 13-14 143 0.72 

Total: 1215 8.21 
6. Rural Department Upto 20 10- 11 46 0.55 

201 l-12 8 0.03 
20 12- 13 48 0.1 2 
20 13- 14 470 2.36 

Total: 572 3.06 
Grand Total: 13,832 115.12 

Non-adjustment of AC Bills for long periods and failure of controlling authority in 

enforcing strict financial discipline is fraught with the risk of misappropriation of 

funds. 

2.4.2 Retention of funds in Current Deposit Accounts (CD Ale) 

As per Rules 290 of the Central Treasury Rules (CTR), no money shall be drawn from 

the treasury unless it is required for immediate disbursement. It is not permissible to 

drnw money from the treasury in anticipation of demands or to prevent the lapse of 

budget grants. 

According to the orders of the State Government issued on l l 1h July 2005, all 

treasuries pass bills and make payments to the Current Deposit Account (CD Ale) and 
Saving ·Bank Account of the DDOs maintained with different banks rather than the 

beneficiaries of the bill. The DDOs had also been authorised to issue cheques from 
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those accounts to the beneficiaries in contravention of provision contained in Rule 

437 of CTR. 

As per infomiation received from the State Government an amount of { 82. 13 crore 

was lying unspent in the bank accounts of different DDOs as on 31 March 2014. 

2.5 Outcome of review of selected Grants 

2.5.1 Introduction 

A review of Grant No. 19 operated in the Tribal Welfare Department of the State, 
was undertaken mainly to assess the efficiency in budgeting process, control and 
monitoring of revenue and capital expenditure under both plan and non-plan heads for 

the year 2013-14. 

The Secretary to the Government of Tripura, Tribal Welfare Department was the 
administrative bead of the Department. 

The summarised position of budget provision and actual expenditure thereagainst 

during 2013-14 in respect of Grant No. 19 is given below: 

Table No. 2.7: Budget provision and actual expenditure 

Source: Appropriation Accounts - 2013-14 

Table above shows that against the total budget provision of { 1,698.96 crore, 
expenditure of { 1, 128.65 crore was incurred, resulting in an overall savings of 
{ 570.31 crore during the year 2013-14. Supplementary provision of { 412.82 crore 
(Revenue: { 169.73 crore; Capital: { 243.09 crore) was obtained during the year 
2013-14. 

Further, scrutiny of budget records of the State Government for the year 2013-14 
revealed that, out of total original budget provision of { 1,286.14 crore under 
Grant No. 19, { 291.46 crore (Plan: { 241.04 crore; Non-Plan: { 50.42 crore) was 

allocated against the Tribal Welfare Department for the year 2013-14. Rest of the 
Funds were allocated against 34 devlopment Departments under the Tribal Sub-Plan 
(TSP) under this grant. While preparing the Revised Estimates, the Finance 
Department allocated/released the TSP funds to the respective Development 
Departments in their respective grants under which they were functioning. 

It was noticed that out of 34 development Departments, 19 Departments did not utilise 
TSP funds (both Revenue and Capital) fully during the year 2013-14 resulting in 
savings of more than { one crore in every case which amounted to net savings of 

{ 364.51 crore during the year (Appendix 2.16). Maximum amount of savings was in 
respect of Public Works (Roads and Buildings) Department mainly on account of 
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Capital heads~ 95.68 crore) offset by excess expenditure of { 5.58 lakb in Revenue 
account. 

The summarised position of allocation of funds and expenditure against the Tribal 
Welfare Department for the year 2013-14 are given below: 

Table No. 2.8: Budget and expenditure of Tribal Welfare Department 
for the year 2013-14 

The table above shows that against the revised estimates of { 369 .19 crore, the Tribal 

Welfare Department incurred { 279.74 crore during the year resulting in a savings of 

{ 89.45 crore mainly on account of less expenditure in plan bead during 2013-14. 

2.5.2 Unnecessary Supplementary Provision 

Scrutiny of Appropriation Accounts revealed that against the total prov1s1on of 
{ 1,698.96 crore, { 1,128.65 crore was incurred during the year 2013-14 by the Tribal 

Welfare Department, resulting in saving of { 570.31 crore during the year. This 

r savings was due to more supplementary provision both in revenue as well as capital 
account as the actual expenditure of both the heads was less than even the original 
budget provision by { 117.33 crore and { 40.16 crore respectively which indicated 
that the supplementary provisions were made though unecessary. 

\ 

2.5.3 Inadequate surrender of savings 

On scrutiny of detailed Appropriation Accounts of the State Government for the 
year 2013-14, it was noticed that in Revenue Account there was a savings 

of { 287.06 crore which was the result of less expenditure mainly under major 
beads 2225 (Z 45.25 crore); 2217 (Z 42.70 crore); 2235 ~ 34.90 crore) and 2202 

({ 23. 71 crore) during the year 2013-14. On the other hand, there was a savings of 

{ 283.25 crore in capital head mainly due to less expenditure in major beads 4210 

({ 15.68 crore); 4225 ({ 12.26 crore); 4059 (Z 4.79 crore); 4701 ({ 4.43 crore); 4217 

(Z 7.72 crore) and 5055 ({ 3.61 crore) during the year. 

Though the amount of { 287 .06 crore was available for surrender in respect of 

Revenue Account, only { 37.52 crore was surrendered in this account by the 

Department while { 181.88 crore was surrendered in the capital account against the 
available funds of{ 283.25 crore. 
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2.5.4 Pessistent savings 

During the last five year period 2009-14, there was a huge savings in every year under 

Grant No. 19 out of which only 35 to 62 per cent savings were surrendered during 
the period. Details of the savings and the amount surrendered are given in the table 

below: 

Table No. 2.9: Pessistent savings during last five year period 2009-14 

(fin crore) 

~~ff~~~~~-:~:~~~ ~ ;~~ :,:~-~·D: :~.~~ ~.' ~,~~xt~r:F?~~~:~;:~~.~~:3xA~~.::£:~}f. :·'.tt~t ~~j~~/,~k;:~:~:£:~S;~f~~r. i~~~~i~flifi ~!l~~=~:J~~~tt;l~~~~lI!it~?<~~ 
Revenue: 56.61 123.25 110.87 177.22 287.06 

Capital: 305.80 263 .69 195.91 354.83 283.25 

Total savings: 362.41 386.94 306.78 532.05 570.31 

Amount and percentage of 127.75 241 .12 1.1 6.34 242.33 319.40 
savings surrendered : (35%) (62% ) (38%) (46%) (56% ) 

Persistent savings indicated that Budgeting process in the Department was unreali stic 

due to which the Department cou ld not utilise the total funds during the period. 

2. 6 Conclusion and Recommendations 

There was an overall saving of ~ 3,256.49 crore and excess expenditure of 

~ 11 .97 crore against 57 Grants/ Appropriations during 2013-14. The excess 

expenditure of ~77.80 crore over provision in 2011-12 and 2012-13 increased to 

~ 89.77 crore in 2013-14. This excess requires regu lari sation by the Legislature under • 

Article 205 of the Constitution of India. Rush of expenditure was also observed at the 

end of the year 2013-14. In respect of Grants/ Appropriations, more than 50 per cent 
of the total expenditure during the year was incurred in the last month of the financial 

year. In 45 cases, there were savings of more than~ 10 lakh each but the same were 

not surrendered till the end of the year. The Abstract Contingent Bi ll s were not 

adjusted for long periods and therefore, invites the risk of fraud and misappropriation. 

Budgetary controls should be strengthened in all the Government departments, 

particularly in the departments where savings/excess persisted for last five years. 

A close and rigorous monitoring mechanism should be put in place by the DDOs to 

adjust the Abstract Contingent Bills within sixty days from the date of drawal of the 

amount as required under the extant Rules. The Departments should follow more 

reliable mecbanjsms in budgeting and control over expenditure to avoid persistent 

savmgs or excess. 
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CHAPTER3 FINANCIAL REPORTING 

A sound internal financial reporting with relevant and reliable information 
significantly contributes to the efficient and effective governance by any 
Government. The compliance with financial rules, procedures and directives as well 
as the timeliness and quality of reportbtg on the status of such compliance is thus 
one of the attributes of good governance. The reports on compliance and controls, 
assist the State Government to meet its basic stewardship responsibilities, and in 
decision making. This Chapter provilles an overview and status of the State 
Government on the compliance with various financial rules, procedures and 
directives during the current year. 

3.1 Delay in submission of Utilisation Certificates 

Rule 212(l) of General Financial Rules 2005 provides that Utili sation Certificates 

(UCs) should be submitted by the grantee Institutions or Organisations concerned for 

the grants received fo r specific purposes unless specified otherwise within l 2 months 

of the closure of the financial year and after verification, these should be forwarded to 

the Accountant General (Accounts and Entitlement) by the department concerned. 

As per information furnished by the Accountant General (A&E), Utilisation 

Certificates (984) for an amount of~ 533.77 crore paid as grants to the grantee 

Institutions/Organisations upto the year 2013- 14 were outstanding as on 

3 1 March 2014, of which 554 Nos. of UCs pertained to the previous years involving 

~ 3 75.5 1 crore. The major departments involved are (i) Triba l Welfare Department 

(~ 107.67crore); ( ii) Power Depa1iment (~ 66.75 crore); (iii) Welfare of SC and OBC 

Department (~ 63.04 crore); (iv) Rural Development Department(~ 55.27 crore) and 

(v) Health Department (~ 45 .25 crore). Department-wise outstanding UCs are given 

in Appendix 3.1. 

The year-wise break-up of amount of grants for which the Utili sation Certificates 

were awaited as on 31 March 2014 are given below: 

Table No. 3.1 : Year-wise break-up of grants awaited for Utilisation Certificates 

as on 31 March 2014 

Year 
Amount of grants 

No. of UCs outstanding (tin crore) 
Upto 2010- 11 76.75 6 

20 11-12 36.97 32 
201 2-13 26 1.79 516 
20 13-14 158.26 430 
Total: 533.77 984 
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The UCs ( 430) involving grants of~ 158.26 crore paid during the year 2013-1 4 was 

excluding the amount disbursed during 2013-14 which were due for submission of 

UCs only in 2014-15. 

Due to delay in submiss ion of UCs, particularly for the year upto 20 l 0-11 and 

2011-12, it could not be ascertained whether the Grants were utilised by the grantee 

lnstitutions/Organisations for the purpose for which it was sanctioned. Thus, steps 

may be taken by the Departments to obtain the UCs expeditiously from the grantee 

Tnstitutions/Organisations. 

3.2 Non-submission/delay in submission of accounts 

ln order to identify new Institutions which attract audit under Sections 14 and 15 of 

the Comptroller and Auditor General' s (Duties, Powers and Conditions of Service) 

Act, 197 1, the State Government/Heads of the Departments are required to furnish to 

Audit every year detailed information about the financial assistance given to various 

Institutions, the purpose of assistance granted and the total expenditure of the 

Institutions. None of the departments could submit the same though specifically called 

for. 

Substantially funded Autonomous Bodies/Authorities are required to submit their 

annual accounts for audit by the C&AG under the provision ibid. The annual accounts 

of 40 Autonomous Bodies/Authorities due up to 2013-14 had not been received as of 

October 20 14 by the Accountant General (Audit). The number of those accounts 

(Appendix 3.2) along with their age-wise pendency is presented in Table No. 3.2. 

Table No. 3.2: Age-wise Arrears of Annual Accounts due from Autonomous Bodies 

1 - 4 
5 - 8 
9-12 

13 & above 
5. Since ince tion to 2013-14 9 

Out of 40 Autonomous Bodies/Authorities, nine Autonomous Bodies/Authorities did 
not submit their Accounts since their inception. Accounts for 11 bodies were 

outstanding for more than five years in which in two cases the Accounts were 

outstanding for more than ten years. Pending submission of annual accounts, all the 

Bodies were asked to intimate the amount of grants received during the current year. 

But, 35 Grantee Bodies/ Authorities, out of 40 bodies did not furnish the information 

about the amounts of grants received during the year 2013-14. 
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3.3 Delay in submission of Accounts/Audit Reports of Autonomous Bodies 

Several Autonomous Bodies had been set up by the State Government in the fi eld of 

Education, Industries, Housing, Tribal Areas, etc. A large number of these Bodies arc 

audited by the Comptrnll er and Auditor General of India (CAG) covering operational 

activities and accounts, conduct of regulatory and compliance audi t of transactions, 

review of interna l controls and financial management, e tc. The audit of accounts of 

fi ve Bodie in the State have been entrusted to the CAG for which Separate Audit 

Reports are prepared for placement before the Legislature and the audit of the Ttipura 

Tribal Areas Autonomous District Council (TTAADC) is done as mandated in the 

Sixth Schedule of the Constitution of Lndia. The status of rendering of accounts to 

.Audit, issuance of Separate . Audit Report . (SA R) and i!s placement i!1 the 

Legislature/Council are indicated in Appendix 3.3. Delay in placement of SARs in 

the Legislature/Council after issuing them is summari sed in Table No. 3.3. 

Table No. 3.3: Delay in submission/placement of Separate Audit Reports 

Placement of Delay in 
Name of the SAR in the placement of SAR 

No. Autonomous Bodies 
Year of SAR Date of issue 

Legislature/ in the Legislature 

I. 

2. 

~ 

.) . 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Council (as on 31.10.2014) 
Tripura Board of 1998-99 to 200 1-02 26-4-20 10 Not yet 6 to 64 months 
Secondary Education 

2002-03 to 2005-06 12- 12-20 11 placed 

2006-07 to 2009-10 l 0-04-20 14 

Tripura Housing and 1990-9 1 to 1992-93 03-07-2007 Not yet 7 to 87 months 
Construction Board 

03-06-2009 p laced 
1993-94 to 1996-97 

1997-98 to 200 1-02 23-02-20 11 

2002-03 to 2009-10 12-03-20 13 

Tripura Khadi and 2008-09 to 20 10-11 06-09-20 13 24.02.2014 ---
Village Industries (5 months 
Board. delay) 
Tripura Tribal Areas 2009- 10 & 20 10-11 08-01-20 14 22.08.2014 ---
Autonomous District & (4-7 
Counci l I 0-04-20 14 months 

delay) 
Tripura State Legal 20 10- 11 to2012-13 2 1-03-20 14 Not yet 7 months 
S<:!rvice Authority placed 
Tripura Building & 2007-08 to 20 11-1 2 0 1- 11-20 12 26.02.20 14 ---
Other Construction ( 15 months 
Workers' Welfare delay) 
Board . 

Table No. 3.3 shows that 12 SARs of Tripura Board of Secondary Education 

pertaining to the period 1998-99 to 2009-1 0, 20 SARs of Tripura Housing and 

Construction Board pertaining to the period J 990-9 1 to 2009- 10 and three SARs of 

Tripura State Legal Service Authori ty pertaining to the period from 20 10-1 1 to 
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2012-13 issued between July 2007 and April 2014 were not yet been placed in the 

State Legislature even after a lapse of six to 87 months (as on 31-10-2014). Three 

SARs in respect of Tripura Khadi and Village Industries Board for the period 2008-09 

to 20 I 0-11 , two SARs in respect of TT AADC pertaining to the period from 2009-10 

and 20 J 0-11 and five SARs in respect of Tripura Building & Other Construction 

Workers' Welfare Board for the period 2007-08 to 2011-12 issued between 

November 2012 to April 20 J 4 were placed in the State Legislature with a delay 

ranging from four to 15 months from the date of issue. 

Thus, non-placement of the Audit Reports relating to the Autonomous Bodies in the 
Legislature violates the statutory provis ion of informing the Legislature about the 

financial activities and status on year to year bas is. 

3.4 Reconciliation of Receipts and expenditure 

As per the General Financial Rule, all the Controlling Officers were required to 

reconcile the receipts and expenditure booked by them every month during the 

financial year with that recorded in the books of the Accountant General (Accounts & 

Entitlement). During the year 201 3-14, all the 60 Controlling Officers of the State 

reconciled their receipts and expenditure amounting to ~ 7,650. 18 crore and 

~ 7,589.69 crore respectively. 

3.5 Suspense balances 

The balances under Suspense and Remittance Heads as ref!ected in tbe Government 

Accounts are on net basis by aggregating the outstanding debit. and credit balances 

under various heads. 

At the end of 31 March 2013, there was a net debit balance of ~ 118.67 crore in 

suspense heads which increased to ~ 138.6 1 crore at the end of 31 March 20 14. 

The major contributing factor fo r the increase in net debit balance was the cash 

settlement suspense account (Debit:~ 135.12 crore) during the year 2013-14 against 

~ 128.74 crore in 201 2-1 3. 

3. 6 Conclusion and Recommendation 

Reconciliation of the Government receipts and expenditure was done with that of 

expenditure booked in the books of Accountant General (Accounts and Entitlement) 

by all the Controlling Officers during 2013- 14. 

However, the practice of non-furnishing of Utili sation Certificates in time against 

grants received, non-furnishing of detailed information about financial assistance 

received by various Institutions and non-submission of accounts in time indicates 

non-compliance with financial rules. There were also delays in placement of Separate 
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Audit Reports to Legislature and arrears in finalisation of accounts by the 

Autonomous Bodies/ Authorities. There is a need to ensure that the audit reports of the 

Autonomous Bodies are placed in the legislature on time and submission of UCs 

within the prescribed time should be obtained from the recipients of grants. 

Agartala 
The 

.. 
, 1 6 FE 8 2015 

New Delhi 
The 

Countersigned 

(R. K. AGRAWAL) 
Accountant General (Audit), Tripura 

(SHASHJ KANT SHARMA) 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
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Appendix 1.1 

Part A 

Structure and Form of Government Accounts 

Structure of Government Accounts: The accounts of the State Government are kept in 
three parts (i) Consolidated Fund, (ii) Contingency Fund and (iii) Public Account. 

Part I: Consolidated Fund 

All revenues received by the State Government, all loans raised by issue of treasury bills, 
internal and external loans and all moneys received by the Government in repayment of loans 
shall form one consolidated fund entitled 'The Consolidated Fund of State' established under 
Article 266(1) of the Constitution oflndia. 

Part II: Contingency Fund 

Contingency Fund of State established under Article 267(2) of the Constitution is in the 
nature of an imprest placed at the disposal of the Governor to enable him to make advances to 
meet urgent unforeseen expenditure, pending authorisation by Legislature. Approval of the 
Legislature for such expenditure and for withdrawal of an equivalent amount from the 
Consolidated Fund is subsequently obtained, whereupon the advances from the Contingency 
Fund are recouped to the Fund. 

Part III: Public Account 

Receipts and disbursement in respect of certain transactions such as small savings, provident 
funds , reserve funds , deposits, suspense, remittances etc which do not form part of the 
Consolidated Fund, are kept in the Public Account set up under Article 266 (2) of the 
Constitution and are not subject to vote by the State Legislature. 
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Appendix 1.1 
Part B 

Layout of Finance Accounts 

The new format of Finance Accounts introduced from the year 2009-10, has been divided into 
two Volumes - Volume 1 and 11. Volume I represents the financial statements of the 
Government in summarized form whi le Volume II represents detailed financial statement. The 
layout of the Finance Accounts is chalked out in the following manner: 

VOLUME 1 
Statement 1 Statement of Financial Position 

Statement 2 Statement of Receipts and Disbursements 
Statement 3 Statement of Receipts (Consolidated Fund) 
Statement 4 Statement of Expenditure (Consolidated Fund) 

By Function and Nature . 
Notes to Accounts 
Appendix I: Cash Flow Statement 

VOLUME 2 PART I 
Statement 5 Statement of Progressive Capital expenditure 
Statement 6 Statement of Borrowings and other Liabilities 
Statement 7 Statement of Loans and Advances given by the Government 
Statement 8 Statement of Grants-in-aid given by the Government 
Statement 9 Statement of Guarantees given by the Government 
Statement 10 Statement of Voted and Charged Expenditure 
PART II 
Statement 11 Detailed Statement of Revenue and Capital Receipts by minor 

heads 
Statement 12 Detailed Statement of Revenue Expenditure by minor heads 
Statement 13 Detailed Statement of Capital Expenditure by minor beads 
Statement 14 Detailed Statement of Investments of the Government 
Statement 15 Detailed Statement of Borrowings and other Liabilities 
Statement 16 Detailed Statement on Loans and Advances given by the 

Government 
Statement 17 Detailed Statement on Sources and Application . of funds for 

expenditure (other than revenue account to end of 2009-10) 
Statement 18 Detailed Statement on Contingency Fund and other Public 

Account transactions 
Statement 19 Detailed Statement on Investments of earmarked funds 
Part III: Appendices 
II Comparative Expenditure on Salary 
Ill Comparative Expenditure on Subsidy 
IV Grants-in-aid (Scheme wise and Institution wise) 
v Externally Aided Projects 
VI Plan Scheme expenditure (Central and State Plan Schemes) 
VII Direct transfer of funds to implementing agencies 
VIII Summary of Balances 
IX Financial results of Irrigation Schemes 
x Incomplete Works 
XI Maintenance expenditure with segregation of salary and non-

salary por tion 
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Appendix 1.1 
PartC 

Methodology Adopted for the Assessment of Fiscal Position 

The norms/Ceilings prescribed by the TFC for selected fi scal variable along with its 
projections for a set of fi scal aggregates and the commitments/projections made by the State 
Governments in their Fiscal Responsibility Acts and in other Statements required to be laid in 
the legislature under the Act (Para 1.2) are used to make qualitative assessment of the trends 
and pattern of major fiscal aggregates. Assuming that GSDP is the good indicator of the 
performance of the State's economy, major fiscal aggregates like tax and non-tax revenue, 
revenue and capital expenditure, internal debt and revenue and fi scal deficits have been 

presented as percentage to the Gross State Domestic Product (GSDP) at current market prices. 
The buoyancy coefficients for relevant fiscal variables with reference to the base represented 
by GSDP have also been worked out to assess as to whether the mobilization of resources, 
pattern of expenditure, etc., are keeping pace with the change in the base or these fiscal 
aggregates are also affected by factors other than GSDP. 

The GSDP figures and other calculation wherever related to GSDP may vary with those 

appearing in the previous years Audit Reports as the GSDP figures are updated periodically 
and adopted as furnished at the time of preparation of this Report. 

The definitions of some of the selected terms used in assessing the trends and pattern of 
fisca l aggregates are given below: 

List of terms used in the Chapter I and basis for their calculation 

Term Basis for calculation 
Buoyancy of a parameter Rate of Growth of the parameter + GSDP Growth 
Buoyancy of a parameter (X) with respect to Rate of Growth of the parameter (X) + Rate of Growth 
another parameter of the parameter (Y) 
Rate of Growth (ROG) {(Current year Amount + Previous year Amount) minus 

1} * 100 
Average Trend of growth over a period of 5 years 
Share shift/Shift rate of a parameter Trend of percentage shares, over a period of 5 years, of 

the parameter in Revenue or Expenditure as the case 
may be 

Development Expenditure Social Services +Economic Services 
Weighted Jnterest Rate (Average interest paid by Jnterest payment I [(amount of previous year ' s Fiscal 
the State) Liabilities+ current year's Fiscal Liabilities)/21* 100 
Interest spread GSDP growth - Weighted Interest rates 
Quantum spread Debt stock* Interest Spread/100 
Interest received as per cent to loans outstandjng Interest received I [(opening balance + closing balance 

of loans and advances)/2]* I 00 
Revenue deficit Revenue receipt - revenue expenditure 
Fiscal deficit Revenue Expenditure + Capital Expendihire + Net 

Loans and Advances - Revenue Receipts -
Miscellaneous Capita] Receipts 

Primary deficit/surplus Fiscal deficit/surplus - Interest payments 
Balance from current revenue (BCR) Revenue receipts minus plan grants and non-plan 

revenue expenditure excluding debits under 2048 -

Aooropriation for reduction or avoidance of debt. 
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1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Appendix 1.1 
PartD 

State Profile 

Density of Population (persons per sq km) 
All India Avera e 

Literacy 
(AU India Avera e) 
Gross State Domestic Product (GSDP) 
2013-14# 
Per capita income of the State, 2012-13 
(All India Average) 

2001 

31 ,99,203 
305 
325 

73.2 per cent 
64.8 ercent 

2011 
10,491.69 

36,73,917 
350 
382 

87 .2 per cent 
73.0 er cent 

~ 2,6072.57 crore 
Q 

~ 60,963.00 (A) 
t 68,757.00 (A) 

Source: Economic Review of Tripura - 2012-13, Directorate of Economics and Statistics, 
Government of Tripura; (A)= Advance Estimate. 
#Quarterly review report of the Finance Minister for the third Quarter 201 3-14; 

(Q)= Quick Estimate. 
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Appendix 1.2 

Abstract of Receipts and Disbursements for the year 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.1) 

- Dlsbanemeats 

Appendices 

(~in crore) 

2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 
Particulan .· Partttalan Non-Plan Piao Total 

·Section-A : Revenue 
. 

~\ 
7,050.30 I. Revenue 7,650.18 5,212.88 I. Revenue 4,549.02 1,399.94 1 5,948.96 ~ 

Receipts Expenditure I 

1,004.65 -Tax Revenue 1,073.91 2,167.48 General Services 2,330.48 14.81 "-i,3.4Y.t9 
178.75 -Non-Tax 246.52 2,055.37 Social Services 1,306.67 1,101.22 2,407.89 

Revenue 
1,493. 18 -State's Share of 1,630.25 976.39 -Education, Sports, 980.45 156.35 11 36.80 

Union Taxes Art and Culture 
1,289.76 -Non-Plan Grants I, 150.62 230.49 -Health and Family 164.36 139.35 303.71 

Welfare 
2,691.59 -Grants for 3,004.78 211.65 -Water Supply, 30.96 179. 17 210.13 

State/Union Sanitation, Housing 
Territory Plan and Urban 
Schemes Development 

33.34 -Grants for 35.21 19.46 -Information and 12.23 9.23 21.46 
Central Plan Broadcasting 
Schemes 229.82 -Welfare of 13.74 260.68 274.42 

321.04 -Grants for 424.04 
Scheduled Castes, 

Centrally 
Scheduled Tribes 
and Other 

Sponsored Plan 
Backward Classes 

Schemes 
37.99 -Grants for 84.85 18.53 -Labour and 13.41 7.68 21.09 

Special Plan Labour Welfare -
Schemes (NEC) 

366.69 -Social Welfare and 88.79 348.7 1 437.50 
Nutrition 

2.34 -Others 2.73 0.05 2.78 
881.43 Economic Services 764.38 283.91 1,048.29 
358.5 1 -Agriculture and 242.5 1 J 82.47 424.98 

Allied Activities 
163.53 -Rural 98.29 54.90 153. 19 

Development 
2.20 -Special Areas - 7.77 7.77 

Programme (NEC) 
4 1.28 -Irrigation and 39.46 1.39 40.85 

Flood Control 
42.25 -Energy 42.63 1.1 5 43.78 
53.58 -1 ndustry and 23.99 26.90 50.89 

Minerals 
153.55 -Transport 226.79 0.29 227.08 
18.46 Communication 21.34 - 21.34 
3.73 -Science, 1.22 3.84 5.06 

Technology and 
Environment 

{ 44.34 -General Economic 68.1 5 5.20 73.35 
Services 

.. 
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Appendix 1.2 (contd .. ) 

Abstract of Receipts and Disbursements for t he year 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.1) 

(~in crore) 
i<{'iS%/, :::.>=>·=:::-.;',: .·:. -·.,1Yr.:::·:·'.'.·'\ .=··;,.·.::><:·. ::.o: ':''. '://">\., /· ·:-:-">' ,::; /~ •.. Q>;,.:;.::\<.'..>i::.:· _. = ··'· 
-~~Wit!~:'.'" ·=··;\;S.'2iJ) ...., ,,:t,.;:';~, -13\\ ';·'+>:'.'t .,. ':'/, ·;,•:\1'.·'··;;~14::.;:>·y··._ -. 

:> ~W\i•~\\:': ~~J'.Ih{ftj-~~~>~ ;:_;;;= . "· -~j<::?/'~JT .-.~ f~ c ,.._, > ~ . ·= -- ·· ., ·. 
f ./W, x; . >/·:·. '.'':. 0:··. '/.i' •; < ·;:;; :·; ' . :· ·. ·: ) •\ :··_.:·: ._;, ''& ' •>: ·> -'>) < I · .. 

108.60 Grants-in-aid and 147.49 - 147.49 
contributions 

- n. Revenue deficit - - 1,837.42 ll. Revenue surplus - - 1,701.22 
carr ied over to carried over to 
Section-8 Section-B 

7,050.30 Total : Section A 7,650.18 7,050.30 Total 7,650.18 
~"~~;q:, '''.:-K,; :8\t.:t;:;;•~;:;,,, .. "'slaG::,>/_;2- 7

-. ,;y ;'{:~f;:\'·S.ietl0n48 :?J.lttirs>··· ,,.,,,.,,>,-·:\\::''< . '.:.:-;. C·:: :'-.'.' ·: .. ..... 
" ·. .. 

l ,521.35 m. Opening cash 2,659.45 - m. Opening - - - -
balance includ ing overdraft from 
permanent advance Reserve Bank of 
and cash balance Ind ia 

(~~ investment 
- rv. MiscelJaneous - - /1 1,483.19 lV. Capital O utlay (-)6.21 1,646.94 1,640.73 ~ capital receipts 

' 188.08 General Services 2.43 243.18 245.61 
605.00 Socia.I Services (-)4.02 661.21 657.19 

l.26 V. Recoveries of 0.96 143.94 -Education, Sports, - 143.79 143.79 
loans and advances Art and Culture 

1.1 7 From Government 0.85 8 1.14 -Health and Family 0. 10 105.02 105. 12 
servants Welfare 

0.09 From others 0. 11 262.28 -Water Supply and - 273.10 273. 10 
l ,837.42 VI. Revenue 1,701.22 Sanitation -

surplus brought 
down 

834.01 VU. Public debt 786.98 41.46 -Housing and - 58.99 58.99 ~ 

receipts Urban 
Development 

830.53 Lntemal debt other 783.25 51.47 -Welfare of (-) 4. 12 62.87 62.87 
than Ways and Scheduled Castes, 
Means Scheduled Tribes 

and Other 
Nil Net transactions Nil 9.53 Backward Classes 

under Ways and lnfonnation and - 8.43 8.43 
Means Advances Broadcasting 
including Overdraft 

3.48 Loans and advances 3.73 14.18 -Social Welfare - 6.79 6.79 
from GO! and Nutrition 

1.00 -Others - 2.22 2.22 
2, l 73.68 vm. Public 2,631.12 690.11 Economic Services (-) 4.62 742.55 737.93 

Account receipts 
709.93 Small savings and 8 12.95 104.45 -Agriculture and (-) 6.62 99.84 99.84 

provident funds etc. Al.lied Activities 
11.59 Reserve fund 22. 15 13.73 -Rural - 17.63 17.63 

Development 
75.00 Sinking fund 50.00 65.16 -Special Areas - 83.8 1 83.81 

(earmarked fund) Programme 
154.04 Deposits and 294.37 70.92 -Irrigation and - 46.93 46.93 

Advances Flood Control 
77.27 Suspense and 80.06 76.4 1 -Energy - 62.95 62.95 

Miscellaneous 
1,145.85 Remittances 1,37 1.59 28.42 -Industry and - 37.90 37.90 

Minerals 
"' 6,367.72 3 10.92 -Transport 1.50 362.95 364.45 
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Abstract of R eceipts and Disbursements for the year 2013-14 
(R~ference: Paragraph 1.1) 

Recllbt! ~ .... 

Appendices 

( f i11 crore) 

2012-13 Pai'tieulan 2013-14 2012-13 PU1lcalan . . 2013-14 
IX. Closing 4.65 -Science, Technology - 5. 16 5.16 
overdraft from and Environment 
RBI 

15.45 -General 0.50 25.38 25.38 
Economic Services 

- -Communication - - -
18.93 Loans and Advances 0.27 JS.SO IS.77 IS.77 

Disbursed 
For Power Projects - - -

0.28 -To Government 0.27 - 0.27 
Servants 

18.65 -To others - 15.50 15.50 
Revenue deficit - - -
brou2ht down 

312.49 Repayment of Public 219.91 219.91 
Debt 

281.28 -Internal Debt other - - 172.14 
than Ways and Means 
Advances 

- -Net transactio11s - - -
- under Ways and 

Means Advances 
including Ovcrdrafi 

.... 31.21 -Repayment of Loans 
and Advances to 

- - 47.77 

Central Government 
1,893.66 Public Account 2,11 6.13 

Disbursements 
I 470.66 -Small Savings and 485.96 

Provident Funds 
10.77 -Reserve Fund 3.17 

180.08 -Deposits and 201.65 
Advances 

96.61 -Suspense 99.74 
1,135.54 -Remittances 1,325.6 1 
2,6S9.4S Cash Balance at end 3,787.19 
(-) 1.13 -Cash in Treasuries (-) 1. 13 

2.90 -Departmental Cash 7.93 
Balance including 
pennanent advance 

479.21 - Investment of 529.21 
eannarked funds 

2,305.70 -Cash Balance 3,460.88 
investment 

(-) 127.23 -Deposit with Reserve (-) 209.70 
. Bank of India 
6.167.72 petal : Sedlon 8 1m.13 -~7.72 Tetal: SedlOa B ... ... ·.··· .,··· 

. . .. .... 7.7'19.73 

... 
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Appendices 

Appendix 1.3 

Department-wise provision and expenditure of Gender Budget during 2009-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.1.4) 

N•e 9f ... e Departm•t .. 
·.· ···· Year ·· 

Revenue Department 
Family Welfare & Preventive 
Medicine 
Labour Organisation 
Tribal Welfare Department 
Agriculture Department 
Health Services 
Scheduled Castes & Other Back 
Classes Welfare Department 
Animal Resource Development 
Department 
lnformation & Cultural Affairs 
Department 
Youth Affairs & Sports Department 
Urban Development Department 
Education (Higher) Department 
Rural Development (Panchayat) 
Department 
Rural Development Department 
Horticulture Department 
Education (Social Welfare & Social 
Education) Department 
Education (School) Department 

Total: 
Source: Budget at a Glance. 

• • • \ 

72 

(fin crore) 

2 1.1 5 30.89 26.05 41.24 30. 11 19.76 7.49 7.76 41.24 30.11 

0.20 0.65 0. 16 0.53 2.38 0.07 0.51 0.10 0.39 0.44 
9.03 14.23 13.05 15.74 15.74 11.86 0.04 7.94 13. l l 11.96 

29.16 20.00 75.18 56. 1 l 46.25 14.82 0.09 15.66 9.33 6.06 
J 2. 14 20.5 1 18.64 43.49 36.51 18.20 7.60 8.82 7.87 37.65 
5.55 5.90 2.65 4.26 4.18 5.73 1.72 J .49 3. J 6 3.28 

2.50 2.45 1.90 1.95 2.00 2.4 1 0.01 1.36 J.O 1 1.5 l 

1.40 1.80 0.75 0.82 0.72 J.35 0.65 0.58 0.63 0.45 

0.57 0.83 0.5 l 0.80 l.26 J .45 0.24 0.38 0.80 0.80 
l.16 5.57 4.18 J 8.66 17.66 1.16 0.66 3.23 18.66 14.00 
1.1 9 1.42 2.84 11 .98 17.29 l. 14 1.33 2.00 2.42 12.97 
8.41 10.38 7.25 6.68 16.61 6.28 3.45 3.03 5.38 5.75 

137.81 14.49 19.46 71.33 47.63 136.93 97.62 14.69 50.58 37.24 
2.90 3.00 17.73 5.5 1 10.16 2.29 3.75 6.28 6.48 3.35 

93. 14 133.28 85.13 103.20 67.90 88.03 51.53 50. 14 100. 19 56.25 

23.33 28.00 27.73 38.00 41.85 23.33 17.25 18.00 28. 18 3 1.00 

350.84 294.84 304.64 421.44 360,is 335.76 ·. 1945i 142.86 .· 289.93 254.56 

' 
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Appendices 

Appendix 1.4 

Statement showing the funds directly released by the Government of India to the State 
Implementing Agencies and the Non-Governmental Organisations during 2012-13 and 

2013-14 on various schemes through outside the State Budget 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.2.2) 

Name of the Scheme/Programme N"ame of the Implementing Agency Amount1 'in lakh) 
2012-13. ... 2013-14 

National Bamboo Mission Sadar Forest Development Agency 50.00 57.75 
National AIDS Control Programme Tripura State AIDS Control Society 53 1.47 670.66 
In 
National Rural Heal.th Mission State Health & Family Welfare Society, Tripura 3,874.94 10,961.18 
(NRHM & JllT) Centra lly Sponsored 
Scheme 
DRDA Administration DRDA, South Tripura - 74.36 

DRDA, Dhalai 37.69 60.68 
DRDA, North - 65.9 1 
DRDA, West Tripura 54.89 65.9 1 
DRDA, Gomati , Tripura 53.25 78. 16 
DRDA, Unakoti , Tripura 46.70 79.30 
DRDA, Khowai - 59.87 
DRDA, Sepal1ijola - 74.62 

Total : 192.53 858.81 
Mahatma Gandhi National Rural State Employment Guarantee Fund, Tripura 76,889.88 94,366.49 
Employment Guarantee Scheme 
Rural Housing, IA Y DRDA, North - 1,458.21 

DRDA, West Tripura 2,082.47 900.59 
DRDA, Dhalai I, 19 1.80 2,297.56 
DRDA, South Tripura 1,003.73 1,667.04 
DRDA Gomati, Tripura J,003.74 2,038.43 
DRDA Unakoti, Tripura 904.58 1,7 12.36 
DRDA, Kbowai - 1,403.01 
DRDA, Sepahijola - 1,323.23 

Total: 6,186.32 12,800.43 
Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan (SSA) SSA Rajya Mission, Tripura 12,010.1 1 15,991.09 
Support to NGOs/Institutions/SRCs SRC Agartala 42. 18 41.43 
for Adult Education & Skill Jan Shikshan Sansthan, Agartala 12.74 41.41 
Development (Merged Schemes of Total : 54.92 82.84 
NGOs, JSS) 
Science & Technology Programme NB Institute for Rural Technology 6.49 3.22 
for Socio Economic Development orth-east India Centre for Mass Communication & 3.79 1.10 

Cultural Research 
Voluntary Health Association ofTripura - 17. 18 
Minority Development Organisation, South - 0.69 
Ramnagar 

Total : 10.28 22. 19 
State Science & Technology Tripura State Council for Science & Technology, 8.50 76.20 
Programme Agartala 
Environment Information Education Tripura State Pollution Control Board 29.77 65.64 
& Awareness 
Pollution Abatement Tripura State Pollution Control Board - 23 .1 6 

Scheme for Human Resource Ash ray - 1.00 
Development FPT 
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15 

16 

17 
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24 

Appendix 1.4 (contd .. ) 

Statement showing the funds directly released by the Government of India to the State 
Implementing Agencies and the Non-Governmental Organisations during 2012-13 and 

2013-14 on various schemes through outside the State Budget 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.2.2) 

·. Amount .<t in lakh) Name of the Scheme/Programme Namt Of the Implemendng Agency 
2012-13 2013-14 

Deen Dayal Disabled Rehabilitation North Tripura Deaf & Dumb School 6.06 16.94 
Scheme SJE Abbay Mission, Ramnagar Road No. I" & 2"0 1.48 8.20 

Crossing, South Agartala, West Tripura 
Total : 7.54 25.14 

MPs Local Area Development District Magistrate, West Tripura 750.00 1,000.00 
Scheme MPLA[)s 
Promotion & Dissemination of Art & North East India Centre for Mass Communication - 1.1 3 
Culture and Cultural Research 

Sabujkoli Welfare Society - 0.75 
Cultural Campaign - 0.75 
Natyabhumi 2.25 9. 15 
Tripura Theatre 1.50 5.48 
Push Kumar Debbarma - 2.78 
Classic 0.87 1.38 

Total: 2.62 21.42 
Integrated Watershed Management State Level Nodal Agency, Department of 2,525.37 4,780.74 
Programme (fWMP) Agriculture, Tripura • 
Crime and Criminal Tracking Tripura Pol ice Computerisation Agency - 411.06 • 
Network and system 
Support to State Extension Tripura State Agriculture Management & Extension 388.80 396.75 
Programme for Extension Reforms Training Institute (T-SAMETI) 
Technology Development Tripura State Council for Science & Technology 14. 13 4.00 
Programme Voluntary Health Association ofTripura 72.65 26.60 

NB Institute for Rural Technology - 6.45 
Total : 86.78 37.05 

Rasbtriya Madhyamik Sbiksha Rashtriya Madhyamik Shiksha Abhiyan Rajya 7,01 7.66 2,365.44 
Abhiyan (RMSA) Mission 
Research information and Mass Tribal Research and Cultural Institute, Government - 10.00 
Education, Tribal Festivals and ofTripura 
Others 
Baba Saheb Ambedkar Hastashilpa Tripura Women's Welfare Society 5.42 0.75 
Yikas Yojana 
Design & Technical Upgradation Women's Welfare Society - 0.66 
Scheme Human Welfare Council ofTripura - 5.59, 

Women's craft Society ofTripura - 5.75 
Udayan Yuva Sangha, Tripura - 3.75 
Urban and Rural Development Society - 0.9Q 
Bankimnagar Women Development Society, Jirania, 5.00 0.84 
Tripura 
Ananya Social Welfare & Advancement Society - 0.90 
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Appendices 

Appendix 1.4 (contd .. ) 

Statement showing the funds directly released by the Government of India to the State 
Implementing Agencies and the Non-Governmental Organisations during 2012-13 and 

2013-14 on various schemes through outside the State Budget 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.2.2) 

Name of the Scbeme/J>rogramme Name of the Implementing Agency 
Amount (t in lakh) 
2012-13 2013-14 

lcharbil Women 's Welfare Society - 0.90 

North Eastern Handicrafts Research Society - 2.93 
Tripura Bamboo Mission - 4.50 
Millenium STEPS, Tripura - 0.78 

Total : 10.42 27.50 
Grants in aid to NGOs for STs Khumpui Burue Badal - 1.07 
including coaching and Allied 
Scheme and award for Exemplary 
Services 
Human Resource Development Human Welfare Council, Tripura 1.25 5.1 0 
(HRD) Women's Welfare Society - 0.89 

North Eastern Handicrafts Research Society - 3.38 

Women's Craft Society, Tripura - 4.1 8 

Total: 1.25 13.55 
National Mission on Micro Irrigation Small Farmer Agri-Business Consortium, Tripura - 100.00 
National Project for Cattle & Buffalo Tripura Livestock Development Agency 340.00 55 .70 
Breeding 
Marketing Support and Services and Human Welfare Council, Tripura - 3.46 
Export Promotion Scheme Merit Research Society - 1.05 

Total : - 4.51 
National Rural Drinking Water SWSM, Tripura, Agartala 10,059.11 8,993.20 
Programme 
Panchayat Yuva Krida & Khel Tripura Sports Council 91.55 9 1.32 
Abhiyan (PYKKA) 
Research and Development Agartala Government Medical College and GB Pant - 0.2 1 
Department of Biotechnology Hospital 
Skill Development Society for Entrepreneurship Development 47.00 573.28 

AJEEVIKA Swama Jayanti Gram Tripur Rura l Lively Hood Mission - I 383.74 
Swarojkar Yojaoa 
National Food Security Mission Tripura State Agriculture Management & Extension 1,078.89 3,408.77 

Training Institute (T-SAMETI), Tripura 

Propagation of RTI Act, Strentheing Tripura lnfommtion Commission 5.00 8.50 
capacity Building and awareness 
generation of effective 
implementation of the RTI Act 
Assistance to Disabled Persons for District Disabil ity Rehabilitation Centre (DDRC), - 20.00 
Purchase/Fitting Tripura 

District Rehabilitation Society for Differently Abled - 5.27 
Persons, Dhalai 
DDRC North Tripura (Indian Red Cross Society, 11.25 11 .30 
North Tripura) 

... Total: .. ,, 11.25 36.57 
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Appendix 1.4 (concld.) 

Statement showing the funds directly released by the Government of India to the State 
Implementing Agencies and the Non-Governmental Organisations during 2012-13 and 

2013-14 on various schemes through outside the State Budget 
(R~ference: Paragraph 1.2.2) 

Name of the Seheme/Programme Name of the Implementing Ageney Amouat'" inJMla) 
2012-13 2013-;14 

Human Resource Development Ramkrislrna Mahavidyalaya 30.00 13.00 
Biotechnology 

Raj iv Gandhi Panchayat RD (Pancbayat) Department 8.82 696.58 
Sashaktikaran Abhiyan (RGPSA) 

Afforestation & Forest Management Stale Forest Development Agency, Tripura 350.3 1 1,198.76 

State Scheduled Castes Development Tripura SC Co-operative Development Corporation 57.65 77.00 
Corporations Limited 

Support to National State Scheduled Tripura Science Forum 4.60 5.36 
Tribes Finance and Development 
Corporations 

Capacity Building and Technical 1 L and FS cluster Development initiative Ltd. - 38.64 
Assistance 

Schemes Arising out of the DDRC North Tripura (Indian Red Cross Society, 11.81 11 .80 
lmplemcntation of the Person wi th North Tripura) 
Disbili ties SJE (Equal Opportunities District Rehabilitation Society for Differently Abled 10.05 11.70 
Protection of Rights & Participation) Persons, Dhalai 
Act, 1995 Total: 21.86 23.50 
Central Rural Sanitation Programme SWSM, Tripura, Agartala 305.73 l,40 l.4r 
Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana Tripura Rural Roads Development Agency, Tripura 33,858.53 9,883.32 
(PMGSY) 
Advocacy and Publici ty Ashray - 3.00 

Buddhist and Tibetan Studies Bahujan Hitaya Education Trust, Sabroom, South - 12.50' 
Tripura 

Mog socio Cultural Organisation - 2.00 

Total: - 14.50 
Comprehensive Handloom Directorate of Hand loom, Handicraft and Sericulture, - 96. 18 
Development Scheme (CH OS) Government ofTripura 
NER-Textile Promotion Scheme Directorate of Hand loom, Handicraft and Sericulture, - 18.50 

Government ofTripura 

Assistance to fHMS FC!s etc. Institute of Hotel Mangement Catering Technology - 400.00 
and Applied Nutrition Society, Tripura 

Scheme for setting up of 6000 Model RMSA Rajya Mission - 1,001 .00 
Schools at Block 

North Eastern Council Tripura Stat Council for Science and Technology - 51.9 1 

Social Security for unorganised Tripura State Labour Welfare Society - 1,869.2? 
workers including RSBY 

Biotechnology for Societal Agartala Government Medical College and GB Pant - 10.90 
Development Hospitl (AGMC) , 

Memorials, Centenaries and Others Ashray - 3.75 
Development oflnfrastructure for Principal and Medical Superintendent AGMC & - 125.00 
Promotion of Health Research GBPH, Agartala 

.'·: ' 
' Gralld Total:>, : ::.: :.· :.,.·: .,_,, '::· ' · 1 ····~- . ..,:, f ' 
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Appendix 1.5 
Time Series Data on State Government Finances 

(Reference: Paragraphs 1.3) 

(fin crore) 

Particulars '" .. 2009-10 2010-11 .. 2011:..12 2012-13 2013-14 
Part A. Receipts ~ "" ~;,., 

~·· 
'i , J., <} i.~ 

l. Revenue Receipts 4,401.35 5,168.60 6,476.90 7,050.30 7,650.18 

(i) Tax Revenue 527.0 1 622.34 858.02 1,004.65 1,073.91 
( 12) ( 12) (13) ( 14) (14) 

Taxes on Agricultural Income 0.01 0.01 0.04 0. 10 0.83 
(#) (#) (#) (#) (#) 

Taxes on Sales, Trade, etc. 374.93 444.93 666.32 763.07 837.09 
(71) (7 L) (78) (76) (78) 

State Excise 6 1.09 85.85 94.68 114.00 115. 18 
( 12) (14) ( 11) ( 11 ) ( 11 ) 

Taxes on Vehicles 37. 14 2 1.9 1 25. 18 30.73 36.79 
(7) (4) (3) (3) (3) 

Stamps and Registration Fees 18. 15 24.23 30.73 36.7 1 39.24 
(3) (4) (3) (4) (4) 

Land Revenue 5.55 15.25 9.33 26.44 8.07 
(1) (2) ( I ) (3) ( I ) 

-Other Taxes including taxes on com modities 30.14 30.16 3 L.74 33.60 36.71 
and services (6) (5) (4) (3) (3) 
(ii) Non-Tax revenue 125.40 13 1.79 2 14.22 178.75 246.52 , (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) 
( iii) State's share of Union taxes and duties 706.34 l ,122.36 1,307.56 1,493. 18 1,630.25 

(16) (2 1) (20) (2 1) (21) 
( iv) Gran ts-in-aid from Government of Lndia 3,042 .60 3,292 .11 4,097. 10 4,373.72 4 ,699.50 . (69) (64) (63) (62) (62) 
2. Misc. Capital Receipts NIL NIL NTL NTL NIL 
3. Recoveries of Loans and Advances 3.51 2.80 2.10 1.26 0.96 
4. Total Revenue and Non-debt Capital 

Receipts (1 +2+3) 4,404.86 5,171.40 6,479.00 7,051.56 7,651.14 
5. Public Debt Receipts 493.81 555.91 417.88 834.01 786.98 

Interna l Debt (excluding Ways and Means 
Advances and Overdrafts) 490.5 1 552.55 411.8 l 830.53 783.25 

Net transactions under Ways and Means NIL NlL NTL N IL N CL 
Advances and Overdrafts 
Loans and Advances from Government of 3.30 3.36 6.07 3.48 3.73 
lndia 

6. Total Receipts in the Consolidated 4,898.67 5,727.31 6,896.88 7,885.57 8,438.12 
Fund (4+5) 

'i.7. Contingency Fund Receipts NfL NIL NIL NIL NlL 
8. Public Account Receipts 2,293.48 1,859.71 2,083.38 2,173.68 2,631.J 2 
9. Total Receipts of the State (6+7+8) 7,192.15 7,587.02 8,980.26 10,059.25 11,069.24 

# Negligible 
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Appendix 1.5 (Contd .. ) 

Time Series Data on State Government Finances 
(Reference: Paragraphs 1.3) 

Particulars 2009-10 2010-11 I 2011-12 
Part B. ExDenditure/Disbursement 
10. Revenue Expenditure 4,213.79 4,359.48 4,809.23 

(76) (80) (77) 
Plan including CSS 796.63 879.77 1,06 1.92 

( 19) (20) (22) 
Non-plan 3,4 17. 16 3,479.7 1 3,747.3 l 

(8 1) (80) (78) 

General Services (including 1,855.52 l ,9 12. 18 2,032.76 
Interest Payment) (44) (44) (42) 
Economic Services 701.91 678.55 743.9 1 

( 17) (16) (16) 
Social Services l ,560.74 l ,667.33 1,929.06 

(37) (38) (40) 
Grants-in-aid and Contributions 95.62 101.42 103.50 

(2) (2) (2) 
11. Capital Expenditure 1,332.22 1,058.33 1,397.26 

(24) (20) (22) 
Plan including CSS 1,263.77 1,006.70 1,32 1.14 

(95) (95) (95) 
Non-Plan 68.45 51.63 76. 12 

(5) (5) (5) 
General Services 2 13.87 126.37 176.73 

( 16) (l 2) (l 3) 
Economic Services 671.93 583.57 640.37 

(50) (55) (46) 
Social Services 446.42 348.39 580.16 

(34) (33) (4 1) 
12. Disbursement of Loans and Advances 17.56 0.96 13.89 
13. Total (10+11+12) 5,563.57 5,418.77 6,220.38 
14. Repayments of P ublic Debt 193.94 205.70 217.52 

lntemal Debt (excluding Ways and Means 165.24 173.77 172.63 
Advances and Overdrafts) 
Net transactions under Ways and Means NIL NIL NIL 
Advances and Overdrafts 
Loans and Advances from Government of 28.70 3 1.93 44.89 
India 'l' 

15. Appropriation to Contingency Fund NIL NIL NIL 
l 6. Total Disbursement out of Consolidated 5,757.51 5,624.47 6,437.90 

Fund (13+14+15) 
17. Contingency Fund Disbursements NIL NIL NIL 
18. Public Account Disbursements l ,849.24 1,608.36 1,860.56 
19. Tota l disb ursement by the State 7,606.75 7,232.83 8,298.46 

(16+17+18) 

II' Includes Ways and Means Advances from Go!. 

(('in crore) 

2012-13 2013-14 

5,212.88 5,948.96 
(78) (78) 

1,2 19.27 1,399.94 
(23) (24) 

3,993.6 1 4,549.02 
(77) (76) 

2, 167.48 2,345.29 
(42) (39) 

881.43 1,048.29 
(17) ( 18) 

2,055.37 2,407.89 
(39) (40) 

108.60 147.49 
(2) (3) 

1,483.19 1,640.73 
(22) (22) 

1,450.67 1,646.94 
(98) (100) 

32.52 (-) 6.2~ 
(2) (#) 

188.08 245.61 
(13) (15) 

690.11 737.93 · 
(46) (45) 

605.00 657. 19 
(4 1) (40) 

18.93 15.77 
6,715.00 7,605.46 

312.49 219.91 
28 1.28 172. 14 

NTL NIL 

31.2 1 47.77 

NIL NlL 
7,027.49 7,825.31 

NIL NIL 
1,893.66 2,116. 1~ 

8,921.15 9,941.50 
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Appendix 1.5 (Contd .. ) 

Time Series Data on State Government Finances 

(Reference: Paragraphs 1.3) 

Particulan 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 
Part C. Dtjiclts 

20. Revenue Deficit(-)/ (+) 187.56 (+) 809.12 (+) 1,667.67 
Surplus(+) (1-10) 
21. Fiscal Deficit(-) I Surplus(+) (-) 1158.71 (-) 247.37 (+) 258.62 
(4 - 13) 
22. Primary Surplus(+)/ Deficit(-) (-) 750.20 (+) 199.95 (+) 751.89 
Pan D. Other ""'1. 
23. Interest payments (percentage of Revenue 408.51 447.32 493.27 
ex pen di tu re) (10) (10) (10) 
24. Financial Assistance to local bodies etc. 223.37 259.80 217.83 
25. Ways and Means Advances/Overdraft availed NIL NIL NIL 
(days) 
26. Interest on Ways and Means NIL NIL NIL 
Advances/Overdraft~ in crore) 
27. Gross State Domestic Product (GSDP)M 15,402.70 17,867.73 20,981.74 

(P) 

28. Outstanding Fiscal Liabilities* 5,777.80 6,462.90 6,873.63 
(year-encl) 
19. Outstanding guarantees (yea r-end) 29.54 35.64 115.72 
30. Maximum amount guaranteed during the 76.66 6.10 99.99 
year 
3 l. Number of incomplete projects1 13 18 39 

• 32. Capital blocked in incomplete projects I 12.88 125.10 249.37 

Part E: Fiscal Health Indicators 
I Resource Mobilization . •.. ' 

Own Tax revenue I GSDP (ratio) 3.42 3.48 4.10 

Own Non-Tax Revenue I GSDP (ratio) 0.81 0.73 J.02 

Central Transfers I GSDP (ratio) 24.14 24.71 25.76 

II Expenditure Management 
Total Expendi ture I GSDP (ratio) 36.12 30.33 29.65 

Tota l Expenditure I Revenue Receipts (ratio) 126.41 104.84 96.04 

Revenue Expenditure I Total Expenditure (ratio) 75.74 80.45 77.31 

Expenditure on Social Services I Total Expenditure 36.08 37.20 40.34 
(ratio) 
Expenditure on Economic Services I Total 24.69 23.29 22.25 
Expenditure (ratio) 
Capital Expenditure/ Total Expenditure (ratio) 

- '!, 
23.95 19.53 22.46 

Appendices 

(~in crore) 

2012-13 2013-14 

(+) 1,837.42 (+) 1,701.22 

(+) 336.56 (+) 45.68 

(+) 869.37 (+) 636.64 

532.81 590.96 
(10) (10) 

330.48 242.80 
NIL NIL 

NlL NIL 

23,854.70 26,072.57 
(A) (Q) 

7,683.07 8,737.61 

193.27 187.80 
121.42 25.00 

14 28 
79.70 166.26 

4.2 I 4.12 

0.75 0.95 

24.59 24.28 

28.15 29. 17 

95.24 99.42 

77.63 78.22 

39.62 40.30 

23.40 23.49 

22.09 21.57 

1 Number of incomplete projects from the year 2009-10 to 20 13- 14 involving~ fi ve crore and above. 
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Appendix 1.5 (Concld.) 

Time Series Data on State Government Finances 

(Reference: Paragraphs 1.3) 

Revenue surplus I GSDP (ratio) 1.22 4.53 7.95 7.70 6.52 

F iscal Surplus I GSDP (ratio) (-)7.52 (-) 1.38 (+) 1.23 (+) 1.41 (+) 0.18 

Primary Deficit (surplus) I GSDP (ratio) (-) 4.87 (+) 1.12 (+) 3.58 (+) 3.64 (+) 2.44 

Revenue Surplus I Fiscal Surplus (ratio) (-) 16.19 (-) 327.09 (+) 644.83 (+) 545.94 (+) 3 ,724.21 

P rimary Revenue Balance I GSDP (ratio) 3.89 7.05 10.31 9.94 2.44 

Fisca l Liabilities I GSDP (ratio) 37.51 36.17 32.76 32.21 33.51 

Fiscal Liabilities I RR (ratio) 131.27 125.04 106.1 2 108.97 11 4.08 

Primary deficit vis-a-vis quantum spread 427.95 11 8.52 229.47 458.26 5.43 

Return on Investment(~ in crore) Nil 5.64 25.95 0.67 Nil 

Balance from Current Revenue~ in crore) (-) 769.32 (-) 407.79 (-) 136.94 (+) 265.16 (-) 397.72 

Financial Assets I Liabili ties (ratio) 1.80 1.84 2.04 2.17 2.22 

*Apart from public debt, includes other liabilities (i.e., Small savings e tc., Reserve fund and Deposit). 
"" GSDP figures have been arrived at on current market prices as per info rmation furnisbed by the Directorate of 

Economic & Statistics, Government ofTripura. 
Note: Figures in brackets represent percentage to total of each sub-heading . 
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Appendix 1.6 

Major ongoing capital works/projects remained incomplete up to the end of 31 March 2014 

Construction of new teaching L-l ospital Block 
in GBP Hos ita l and AGMC, A artala. 

2 Construc tion or new Raj Bhavan at Capital 
com lex, A a11ala. 

3 Upgradation or Netaj i Subash Regional 
Coachino Centre, Aoratala. 

4 Constuction of Po lytechnic Institution in North 
Tri ura District. 

5 Vert ical expansion of New Teaching Hospital 
at AGMC, A rarta la. 

6. Construction of college teachers' Education 
Centre, Kumar •hat. 

7. Construction of I I 1 B TSR Headquarters at 
Pathal iaohat, West Tri ura. 

8 Construction of I No.(G+4) sto ried o ffice 
buildin for Education Directorate, A artala. 

9. Construction of 480 seated Eklavya Model 
residentia l school at Raj nagar under Khowai 
Sub-div ision, West Tri ura. 

I 0. Construc tion of 2 nos. 5000 MT capacity Food 
odown at ISTT Madhabbari, Jirania. 

I I . Construction of proposed Y igyan Gram at 
A arta la. 

12. Constaruction of boundary wall around 81 BN 
TSR 1-1 at Lalcharra. 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 1.8.2) 

28-08-2006 7/20 14 

04-5-2012 5/20 14 

12/20 10 11 /20 12 

17-6-2011 NA 

13-07-20 12 12-07-2014 

13-10-201 1 6/2014 

20-7-2012 7/2014 

10/201 3 10/20 15 

17-3-20 12 3/20 14 

NA 3/20 15 

6/8/20 13 6/8/201 5 

8/2/2009 3/20 15 

14. 13 NA 

2 1.57 NA 

24.70 NA 

11 .26 NA 

50.89 A 

15.67 A 

10.07 NA 

14.70 NA 

16.00 NA 

10.07 NA 

19.49 NA 

12.74 NA 

9.85 

7.00 

22.7 1 

3.43 

26.78 

15.00 

7.0 1 

2.96 

3.63 

1.20 

0. 50 

A 

(fin crore) 

Work in progress 
80% 

Work in progress 
(35% 

Work in progress 

Work in progress 

Work in progress 
(70% 

Work in 
ro css 95%) 

Work in progress 
( 75% 

Work in progress 

Work in progress 
(86%) 

Work in progress 

Works in progress 

Work iJ1 progress 
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Appendix 1.6 (contd .. ) 

Major ongoing capital works/projects remained incomplete up to the end of 31 March 2014 

(Reference: Paragraph 1.8.2) 

Date/year of Target date/year Revised Cost, Cumulative 
SI. No. Name of Project Budgeted Cost ex~upto ConuneneeDlent of CoDlpletion lfany ·. 31 March 2014 
Bridee Works 

13 Construction of RCC bridge over tiver Kbowai 30-07-2009 NA 10.61 NA 10.99 
near Moharcherra, Kalvanour. 

14 Construction of RCC bridge over river Khowai 05-01-2010 NA 10.61 NA 8.37 
near Baganbazar, Kalyanpur. 

15 Construction ofRCC bridge over river KJ10wai, 05-05-2010 N A 13.78 NA 0.67 
Teliamura. 

16 Construction of RCC bridge (2 Nos.) over 16-11-2007 12/2013 10.58 NA 8.96 
Tributary of river Manuaud cbowmanu-
Gobindabari road. 

17 Construction of RCC bridge over Tributary of 18-7-2009 12/2014 13.78 NA NA 
nver Ma nu on road from Seoratali to 
Phahanuura. 

Roadworks 
18 improvement of road from Jogend.ranagar to NA 6/2015 36.80 NA NA 

Takariala. 
19 Upgradation of road from Bishalgarh- 25-01-20 11 12/2015 99.06 NA 6 1.08 

Boxanagar-Sonamura-Barapathari-Belonia 
portion from Office-tilla, Bishalarh. 

20 Upgradation of road from Bishalgarh- 25-01-2011 12/2013 115.57 NA 73.28 

Boxanagar-Sonamura-Barapatbari-Belonia 
portion from RCC bridge at Sonamura. 

2 1 Construction of Link road towards Indo- OJ-06-20 12 09/2014 17.26 NA 13.04 

Bangladesh Border from Charomanu to IBB 
road upto 23 km. 

22 Improvement of road leading to newly 31-10-2013 10/2015 22.67 NA 7.06 

constructed Sub-division HQ. Karbook, 
Amarpur. 

(fin crore) 

StatuS/pr~ 
of worlC, lf any 

Work in progress 
(90%) 

Work in progress 

Work in progress 

Work in progress 
(80%) 

Work in 
progress( 40%) 

Work in progress 

Work in progress 
(95%) 

Work in progress 
(65%) 

Work in progress 
(70%) 

Work in progress 
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Appendix 1.6 (concld.) 
Major ongoing capital works/projects remained incomplete up to the end of 31 March 2014 

(Reference: Paragraph 1.8.2) 

SL No. 

23 Improvement of road from Dharmanagar- 20-12-2013 12/2015 35.98 NA 
Tilthai. 

Water Resources 
24 Anti-erosion work along bank of river Feni for 09-09-2010 08-09-2011 12.04 NA 

protection of India side bank at vulnerable 
location from Ranirbazar to Ramchandranagar 
under Sabroom Sub-division. 

25 Anti-erosion work along bank of 1iver Feni for 13-1 0-2010 12-10-2011 11.33 NA 
protection of India side bank at vulnerable 
location from Jalia to Beltala under Sabroom 
Sub-divison. 

26 Oomati Medium project/construction of Head 1981-82 9/2014 83.01 90.3 1 
work, Canal system/cross drai.nage, road 
cross in etc. 

Source: Finance Accounts 201 3-14. 
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11.59 

5.36 

80.76 

Appendices 

Work in progress 
(95%) 

Work in progress 
(80%) 

Work in progress 
(95%) 
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4,108.13 

379.24 

2,385.57 
98.23 

484.33 
217.57 

10.00 
8,965.34 

112.24 

2.19 
116.22 
110.54 

2,659.45 

2,388.09 
0.06 

11 2.30 
1,215.53 

392 

0.20 
6.86 

340.57 
0.47 

19.70 

J 1.44 

1,075.42 

12,572.35 

57.49 
J 1.25 
43.50 

(-) 1. 13 
2.90 

479.21 

Appendix 1.7 

Assets and L iabilit ies 
(Reference: Paragraph 1.9.1) 

Internal Debt 
Market Loans bearing interest 
Market Loans not bearing interest 
Loans from LIC o f IJ1d ia 
Special Securities to Nationa l Small Savings Ftmd of Central 
Government 
Loans from other IJ1stitutions 

Loans and Advances from Central Government 
Pre- I 984-85 Loans 
Non-Plan Loans 
Loans for State Plan Schemes 
Loans for Central Plan Schemes 
Loans for Centrally S onsored Plan Schemes 
Wa s and Means Advances 
Loans for S ecial Schemes 

Smal l Savinos, Provident Funds, etc. 
Reserve Fund bearin interest 
Reserve Fund (includino Sinkino Funds) 
De osits not bearin interest 
Contin enc Fund 

ear 

Investment in Government Companies and Statutory 
Cor orations, etc . 
Other Ca Ji ta I Out la on General , Social and Economic Services 

Loans and Advances b the State Government 
Other Dcve lo ment Loans 
Loai1s to Government Servants 
Loans for Power Pro"ects 

Olher Advances 
Sus Jense and Miscellaneous Ba lances 
Remittance Balances 
Cash Balance 

Cash in Treasuries and loca l remittance 
De a11menta l Cash Balance includin Jermanent advances 
Investment of earniarked funds 
Cash balance investment 

2,860.45 
0.06 

96.47 
1,233.06 

529.20 

0.20 
6.24 

3 15.55 

3.35 

9.87 

1,199.55 

14,088.95 

72.87 
10.67 
43.50 

((' i11 crore) 

4,719.24 . 

335.21 

2,712.56 
116.88 
534.66 
309.06 

10.00 
10,666.56 
8,965.34 
1,701.22 

127.04 

0.97 
135.90 
64.57 

3 787 . . 19 
(-) 1. 13 

7.93 
529.2 1 

** Minus balance was the net difference between receipts and disbursement of the State Government for the year 20 12-1 3 and 20 13-14 
after incor oratin all adj ustments made b RBI for the ear 20 12- 13 and 201 3-14 res ectivel . 

Explanatory Notes for Appendices 1.2 and 1.5 

The abridged accounts in the foregoing statements have to be read with comments and explanations in the Finance Accounts, 
Government accounts being mainly on cash basis, the surplus on Government account, as shown in Appendix l . 7, indicates 
the position on cash basis, as opposed to accrual basis in commercial accounting. Consequently, items payable or receivable 
or items like deprec iation or variation in stock figures, etc., do not figure in the accounts. Suspense and M isce llaneous 
balances include cheques issued but not paid, payments made on behalf of the State and other pending settlements, etc. There 
was a difference of~ 3.54 crore (Net credit) betv;een the figures reflected in the Accounts (Credk ~ 209.70 crore) and that 
intimated by the Reserve Bank of lndia (Debit: ~ 206. 17 crore) under "Deposits witl1 Reserve Bank". The difference of 
~ 3.54 crore has been reduced to~ 3.32 crore as of June 2014 . 

• • • 
84 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 



3. 
4. 

5. 

6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 
I I. 
12. 
13. 
14. 
15. 
16. 

" 7. 

20. 
2 1. 

22. 
23. 
24. 
25. 
26. 
27. 
28. 
29. 
30. 

3 1. 

Appendices 

Appendix 2.1 

Statement of various grants/appropriations with savings of~ 10 crore and above 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 1) 

( fin crore) 

6 - Revenue De artment 11 3.06 19.23 3 1.66 
I 0 - Home (Police) De art.men! 736.67 96.14 832.81 135.08 
13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) 31 1.09 23.78 334.87 30.93 
De artment 
15 - Public Works (Water Resource) 120.23 120.45 85. 14 35.3 1 
DeJartment 0.22 
22 - Relief and Rehabi litation De artment 10.58 16.91 27.49 15.49 12.00 
23 - Pancha ati Ra· De artment 193.96 56.1 8 250.14 170.45 79.69 
27-A iculture De Jartment 152.33 0.32 152.65 127.87 24.78 
29 - Animal Resource Development 58.54 0.98 59.52 49.39 10.13 
De Jartment 
30 - Forest De artment 62.01 8.49 70.50 56.23 14.27 

105 . .l I 10.28 115.40 66.58 48.82 
144.74 29.57 174.31 117.91 56.40 
102.77 6.39 109.16 89.85 19.3 1 

1020.38 17.83 1038.21 954.19 84.02 
3 18.02 11.06 329.08 249.09 79.99 
917. 18 917.18 733.63 183.55 
212.54 69.96 282.50 113.28 169.22 

IO- Home (Police) De artment 
13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) 73.50 49. 15 
De artment 
14 - Power De art111e111 30.20 34.24 64.44 49.96 14.48 
15 - Public Works (Water Resource) 66.47 66.47 22.43 44.04 
De artment 
16 - Health De artment 24.62 27.09 5 1.71 27.37 24.34 

11 5.93 115.93 36. 14 79.79 
35 - Urban Develo ment De aitment 4.69 33.70 38.39 25.56 12.83 
39 - Education (H ioher) De artment 24.75 25 .82 50.57 3 1.15 19.42 
40 - Education School) De artment 28.27 58.41 86.68 56.03 30.65 
4 1 - Education (Social) De artment 23.06 1.53 24.59 7.2 1 17.38 
43 - Finance De artment 307.00 307.00 0.28 306.72 
49 - Fire Service Or anisation 12.38 10.33 22 .7 1 11.41 11.30 
52 - Family Welfa re and Preventive 15. 13 17.l l 32.24 18.32 13.92 
Medicine 
57 - Welfare of Minorities Department 12.42 34.72 47. 14 13.83 33.3 1 
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Appendix 2.2 

List of Grants indicating Persistent Savings of more than~ 1 crore during 2009-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.2) 

(~in crore) 

3 - Genera l Administration (SA) 3.02 1.46 3.32 7.22 8. 14 
De artment 
5 - Law Department l.99 7.27 19.04 22.00 22.1 9 

6 - Revenue Department l.92 20.35 4.05 29.67 3 1.66 

I 0 - Home (Police) Department 18.35 17.78 49.29 47.48 135.08 

12 - Co-operation Department 1.34 l.72 2.74 3.35 3. 12 

19 - Tribal Welfare Department 56.61 123.25 11 0.87 177.22 287.06 

20 - Welfare of Scheduled Castes 42.92 7 1.40 78.77 163.68 128.91 
De artrnent 
26 - Fisheries Department l.44 2.80 2.53 4.09 6.97 

27 - Agriculture Department 22.29 8.64 100.99 69.52 24.78 

29 - Animal Resource Development 8.46 6. 10 5.13 8.27 10. 13 
De a1trnent 
30 - Forest Department 4.78 I l.60 6. 11 5.3 1 14.27 

35 - Urban Development Department 27.40 4.52 16.77 26.34 56.40 

39 - Education (Higher) Department 3.41 19.6 1 11 .66 14.83 19.3 1 

40 - Education (School) Department 38.77 4. 10 12.25 79.88 84.02 

41 - Education (Social) Department 14.36 28.73 27.28 52.27 79.99 

51 - Public Works (Drinking Water and 7.36 7.27 4.30 2.30 l.27 
Sanitation De artment 
52 - Family Welfare and Preventive 10.06 8.56 4.93 103.07 169.22 
Medicine 

6 - Revenue Department 17.5 1 2. 17 5.34 23.53 4.31 

13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) 23.02 64.74 31.98 2 l.29 49. 15 
De artment 
15 - Public Works (Water Resource) 27.05 79.65 58.45 42.84 44.05 
De artment 
16 - Health Department 13.63 8.59 4.84 30.80 24.34 

19 - Tribal Welfare Department 305.80 263.69 195.91 354.83 283.25 

20- Welfare of Scheduled Castes 189.91 169.99 11 8.96 204.98 191.34 
De artment 
27 - Agriculture Department 39.72 59.96 86.99 82.87 79.79 

34 - Planning and Coordu1ation 101.67 155.82 86.60 1. 55.90 230.88 
De artment 
39 - Education (Higher) Department 34.71 22.88 27.47 24.88 19.43 

40 - Education (School) Department 32.73 17.31 2 1.96 41. 11 30.65 

43 - Finance Department 101.37 204.88 301.52 365.76 306.72 

52 - Family Welfare and Preventive 8.42 4.27 18.5 1 14.26 13.92 
Medicine 
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Appendix 2.3 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

No. and Name of Grant/ Head of Head of Service Amoantof 
Annronriation Account E-mendlture 

6 - Revenue Department 4250 Capital Outlay on Other Social Services 
800 Other Expenditure 
05 Establishment 
67 Construction ofTehshil Kachhari (Plan) 8.00 

10 - Home (Police) 4055 Capital outlay on Police 
Department 21 I Police Housin.g 

70 State Share 
10 Home (Police) (Non-Plan) 21.50 

13 - Public Works (Roads 5054 Capi tal outlay on Roads & Bridges 
and Buildings) 04 District and Other Roads 
Department 337 Roads Works 

56 Non Lapsable 
38 State Share ofNLCPR (Plan) 45.19 

17 - lnfom1ation, Cultural 4250 Capital outlay on otbe Social Services 
Affairs and Tourism 800 Other Expenditure 
Department 95 Special Central Assistance 

01 SCA (Plan) 99.67 
18 - General 2235 Socail Security and Welfare 
Administration (Political) 60 Other Social Security and Wel fa re Programmes 
Department 102 Pensions under Social Security Schemes 

02 Pension 
02 Pension to Dependent of Martycs (Non-Plan) 1.12 

19 - Tribal Welfare i) 2225 Welfare of Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes 
Department and Other Backward Classes 

02 Welfare of Scheduled Tribes 
102 Economic Developmem 
55 Block Grant 
01 Under Article 275 ( I) (Plan) 532.82 

ii) 794 Special Central Assistance for Tribal Sub-Plan 
34 Tribal Sub-Plan 
15 Special Central Assistance (Plan) 1,576.57 

iii) 800 Other Expenditure 
34 Tribal Sub-Plan 
01 Ashram Schools (Plan) 0.70 

iv) 25 15 Othe Rura l Development Programmes 
00.1 Direction and Admi.nistration 
30 Rural Development 
03 Expenditure on Community Development 59.81 

(Plan) 
v) 2401 Crop Husbandary 

109 Extension and Farmer's Training 
70 State Share 
59 State Share Agricultural Technology 3.40 

Management Agency (plan) 
vi) 345 1 Secretariat - Economic Services 

091 Attached Offices 
05 Establishment 
18 Establishment Cell (Plan) 0.40 

vii) 22 17 Urban Development 
01 State Capital Development 

191 Assistance to Municipal Corporation 
43 Finance Commission 
24 ULBs (Normal Areas) (Plan) 465.00 
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(~in /akh) 

Reasons/ Remarks 

Reasons not Intimated 

-do-

-do-

Due to 
misclassification 

-do-

Reasons not Intimated 

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-
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Appendix 2.3 (contd .. ) 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

viii) 2202 Gelleral Education 
03 Universit and Hi her Education 

l 03 Government Colle es and Institutes 
75 S ecial Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 

ix) 2203 Technical Education 
105 
70 

x) 112 En ineerin I Technicla Colle es and Institutes 
70 State Share 
39 Hi her Education (Plan) 

xi 2552 North Eastern Areas 
03 Universit and Hi her Education 

103 Universit and Hi her Education 
57 North Eastern Area Develo ment 
59 State Contribution for NEC Projects (Plan 

xii) 22 10 Medical and Public Health 
06 Public Health 

107 Public Hea lth Laboratories 
89 C.S. Scheme - IV 
22 Upgradation of Regional Food Laboratory at 

A artala, Tri ura CSS 
xiii) 4250 Capital outlay on Education, Sports, Art and 

Culture 
800 OtJ1er Ex enditure 

05 Establishment 
67 Construction ofTehshil Kachhari (Plan) 

xiv)42 16 Ca italoutla onHousin 
0 I Government Residential Buildinos 

I 06 General Pool Accomodation 
52 Housin 
11 Medical (Plan 

xv) 13 School Education (Plan) 
xvi) 5054 Ca ital outla on Roads & Brid cs 

04 District & Other Roads 
337 Road works 

56 No ta sable 
38 State Share ofNLC PR Ian 

xvij 421 0 Ca ita l outla on Medical and Public Health 
0 I Urban Health Services 

110 Hos ital & Dis ensarees 
56 Non-La sable 
38 Medical (Plan) 

xviii) 4225 Capital outlay on Welfare of Scheduled Castes, 
Scheduled Tribes and Other Backward Classes 

190 Investments on Public Sector and other 
unde1taki.J1 s 

95 S ecial Central Assistance 
0 I SCA (Plan) 

xix) 4408 Capital Outlay on food Storage and Ware 
Housin 

38 State Share ofNLCPR (Plan) 

4 1.72 

8.37 

16.74 

4.81 

1.1 8 

8.00 

1.2 l 
I I.I I 

27.18 

73.23 

50.00 

12.59 

(fin /akh) 

Reasons llOt Jntimated 

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-
-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-
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Appendix 2.3 (contd .. ) 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

(fin lakh) 

· · ~ .. amt Name ofGIUt/ H.eadofili '" • 
:; .. 

/ ·.•· •···• i ·. . .··;>< •':_ 1 -L~~t:or~;: t/1t~ii~ . HeadOf~ . 
.· Annionrtatton AeeoU.nt ... . .. ·• "' . E~ture (·:··· .: ... •.· .. i·•·<··v-··•\ ..... ..• 7 ·" 

xx) 4515 Capital outlay on other Rural Development Reasons not Intimated 
Programmes 

103 Rural Development 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 77.49 

xx i) 95 Special Central Assistance -do-
01 SCA (Plan) 15.00 

xxii) 4552 Capital outlay on North Eastern Council -do-
02 Storage and Warehousing 

101 North Eastern Council 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
27 Agriculture (Plan) 90.79 

xxiii) 4403 Capital outlay on Animal Husbandarv -do-
105 Ex tension and Training 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 31.36 

xxiv)4406 Capital outlay on Forestry and Wild Life -do-
01 Forestry 

800 Other Expenditure 
70 State Share 
30 Forest (Plan) 8.1 3 

xxv) 4059 Capital outlay in Public Works -do-
60 Other buildings 

OSI Construction 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 96.00 

xxvi) 4215 Capital outlay on Waer Supply and Sanitation -do-
01 Water Supply 

800 Rural Development 
89 C.S. Scheme - IV 
27 Multi Sectoral Development Programme for 76 1.83 

Minority Concentration Block (CSS) 
xxvi i) 5425 Capital outlay on other Scientific and -do-

Environment Research 
600 Other Services 

75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (Plan) 20.00 

xx viii) 42 17 Capital outlay on Urban Development -do-
800 Other Expenditme 

95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 21.39 

xxix) 4070 Capital outlay on other Administrative Services -do-
800 Other Expenditure 

75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (Plan) 13.42 

xxx) 95 Specia l Central Assistance -do-
01 SCA (Plan) 173.67 

xxi) 4202 Capital outlay on Public Works -do-
03 Sports & Youth Services 

102 Sports Stadium 
56 Non-Lapsable 
84 lnclusive Education for the Disabled at 172.2 1 

Secondary Stage (Plan) 
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No. 
7. 

Appendix 2.3 (contd .. ) 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

· No. -:!.~a.me ofGntnt/ Head of · ... .. . .• 
Amount of Head of Service ' • ro~riafton Account I .. .. Emendlture 

20 - Welfare of Scheduled i) 2220 Imformation and Publicity 
Castes Department 60 Others 

106 Field Publicity 
21 Tourism & Publicity 
05 Field Publicity (Plan) 3.19 

ii) 2059 Public Works 
80 General 

053 Maintenance &Repairs 
79 Other Maintenance Expenditure 
01 Public Building (Non·Plan) 1.66 

iii) 2225 Welfare of Scheduled Castes, Schedu led Tribes 
& Other Backward Classes 

01 Welfare of Scheduled Castes 
800 Other Expenditure 
86 C.S. Scheme- I 
41 Special Central Assistance (CSS) 659.45 

iv) 03 Welfare of Backward Clases 
102 Economic Development 
33 Welfare Programme 
27 Other Backward Classes Welfare (Plan) 3.75 

v) 2851 Vi llage and Small Industries 
102 Small Scale Industries 
29 Industries Development 
14 Ooeration & Maintenance (Plan) 0.30 

vi) 2515 Other Rural Development Programmes 
001 Direction & Administration 

30 Rural Development 
03 Expenditure or Community Development 37.46 

(Plan) 
vii) 3451 Secretariat Economic Services 

09 1 Attached Offices 
05 Establishment 
18 Establishment Cell (Plan) 0.14 

viii) 22 17 Urban Development 
01 State Capital Development 

191 Assistance to Municipal Corporation 
43 Finance Commission 
24 ULBs (Normal Areas) (Plan) 255.00 

ix) 2202 Genera l Education 
03 University & Higher Education 

103 Government Colleges & i11stitude 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 22.94 

x) 2203 Technicla Education 
i) 105 Polytechnics 

70 State Share 
39 Higher Education (Plan) 4.59 

xi) 11 2 Engineering I Technical Colleges & Institutes 
70 State Share 
39 Higher Education (Plan) 9. 18 

xii) 2552 North Eastern Areas 
03 University & Higher Education 

103 University and Higher Education 
57 North Eastern Areas Development 
59 State Contribution of NEC Projects (Plan) 2.68 

( fin Lakh) 

Reasons/ Remarks 

Reasons not Intimated . 

. 
·dO· 

·do-

-do· 

-do-

·dO· 
> 

-do-

·dO· 

-do-

-do-

: 

·dO· 

.. 
I 

·dO· 
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Appendix 2.3 (contd .. ) 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

NO. ud Name of Gnat/' Head of Head of Sen'ice Amount of 
A - Account Emenditnre 

xiii) 22 10 Medical & Public Health 
06 Public Health 

107 Public Health Laboratories 
89 C.S. Scheme - IV 
22 Upgradation of Regional Food Laboratory al 0.61 

Agartala, Tripura (CSS) 
xiv) 4250 Capital outlay on Other Social Srvices 

800 Other Expenditure 
05 Esta bl ishmelll 
67 Construction ofTehshil Kachari (Plan) 6.49 

xv) 4216 Capital outlay on Housing 
01 Government Residenlal Buildi ngs 

106 Genera l Pool Acoommodetion 
52 Housing 
03 General Administration (Plan) 0.29 

xvi) 05 Ja il (Plan) 1.56 
xvii) 13 School Education (Plan) 8.77 

xvii i) 4225 Capital outlay on Welfa re of Scheduled Castes, 
Scheduled Tribes & Other Backward Classes 

02 Welfare of Scheduled Caste 
190 Investments tn Public Sector & other 

Undertakings 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 58.50 

xix) 03 Welfare of Backward Classes 
102 Economic Development 
33 Welfare Programme 
27 Other Backward Classes Welfare (Plan) 11.25 

xx) 190 lnvcstmen6ts in Public & Other Undertakings 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 60.00 

xx i) 4515 Capital outlay on Other Rural Development 
Programme 

103 Investments Ill Public Sector & Other 
Undertak ings 

75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 48.43 

xxii) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 9.38 

xxiii) 4403 Capital outlay on Animal Husbandry 
109 Extension and Training 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 17.64 

xx iv) 4406 Capital outlay on Forestry & Wild Li fe 
01 Forestry 

800 Other Expenditure 
70 State Share 
30 Forest (Plan) 7.64 

xxv) 4059 Capital outlay on Public Works 
60 Other Buildings 

05 1 Construction 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 41.00 

xxvi) 4217 Capital outlay on Urban Development 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 201 3-14 
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(fin /aklt) 

Reasons/ Remarks 

Reasons not Intimated 

-do-

-do-

-do-
-do-
-do-

-do-

·-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-
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Appendices 

SL 
No. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11 . 

12. 

Appendix 2.3 (contd .. ) 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

No; ud Name of Gnat/ Bedor Read ofServke Amoaatof 
Annmnrlatioa Aceoaat E1nendlture 

01 State Capital Development 
800 Other Expend iture 
95 Special Cenlral Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 11.73 

xxvii) 4070 Capital outlay on Other Administrative 
Services 

800 Otber Expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 Stale Share of SCA (Plan) 4.25 

xxvii i) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 94.47 

xxix) 421 5 Capita l outlay on Water Supply and Sanitation 
01 Water Supply 

800 Other Expenditure 
89 C.S. Scheme - IV 
27 Multi Sector Development Programme for 476.15 

Minority Concentration Block (CSS) 
xxx)4210 Capital outlay on Medical & Public Health 

02 Rura l Health Services 
103 Primary Health Centre 
9S Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 120.38 

23 - Panchayati Raj 2Sl 5 Other Rural Development Programmes 
Department 800 Other Expenditure 

34 Tribal Sub-Plan 
26 Vi llage Committee Election (Non-Plan) 3.03 

30 - Forest Department i) 4406 Capital outlay on Forestry and Wi ld Life 
01 Forestry 

IOI Forest Conservation, Development and 
Regeneration 

88 C.S. Scheme - HI 
46 Project Elephant (CSS) I.OS 

ii) 800 Other Expenditure 
70 State Share 
30 Forest (Plan) 4.74 

35 - Urban Development i) 4217 Ca1Ji tal Outlay on Urban Development 
Department 01 State Capital Development 

OSI Construction 
7S Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 308.3S 

ii) 800 Other Expenditure 
95 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 35.88 

36 - Home (Jai l) i) 4070 Capital Outlay on Other Administrative 
Department Services 

800 Other Expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (Plan) 15.30 

ii) 95 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 290.90 

43 - Finance Department 76 10 Loans to Government Servants etc. 
800 Other Advances 
99 Others 
51 State Government Employees (Non-Plan) 0.15 

( f in laklt) 

ReuODsl ReD'larks 

Reasons not Intimated' 

-do-

-do-

-do-

Reasons not Intimated 

. 

' 
-do-

. 

-do-

Reasons not Intimated 

-do-

-do-

:-

-do-
. 

-do-
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Appendix 2.3 (concld.) 

Statement of Expenditure without budget provision during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.3) 

57 - Welfare of Minorities 
Department 

Welfare of Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes 
and Other Backward Classes 

03 Welfare of Backward Classes 
800 Other Ex enditure 

95 S ecial Central Assistance 
0 I SCA (Plan) 

ii) 2235 Social Securit and Welfare 
03 National Social Assistance Prorrramme 

800 Other Ex enditure 
95 S ecial Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan 

iii) 4225 Capital Outlay on Welfa re of Scheduled Castes, 
Scheduled Tribes and Other Backward Classes 

03 Welfare of Backward Classes 
190 Investments in Public Sector and Other 

undertakinos 
95 S Jecial Central Ass istance 
0 I SCA (Plan) 

iv) 800 Other Ex enditure 
95 S Jec ial Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan 
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45.00 
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(~in /akh) 

Reasons not Intimated 

-do-
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.4 

Statement of various grants/appropriations where excess expenditure occurred during the 
year 2013-14 which are required to be regularised 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.5) 
(~in fakir) 

SL Grant Name of the Grant/Appropriation Total Grant/ Total Excess 
No. No. Appropriation expenditure expenditure 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

Revenue - voted 
I. 28 Horticulture Department 3,092.66 3,283.44 190.78 

2. 56 Information Technology Department 289.82 404.24 114.42 

Capital - voted 
3. 12 Co-operation Department 616.94 744.99 128.05 

4. 24 Industries and Commerce Department 1,629.45 1,635.25 5.80 

5. 5 1 Public Works (Drinking Water and 3,932.62 4, 160.7 1 228.09 
Sanitation) Department 

6. 56 In formation Technology Department 503.95 1,033.65 529.70 

Total : 10,065.44 11,262.28 1,196.84 

••• 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.5 

Cases where supplementary provision (~ 1 crore and above in each case) proved 
unnecessary during the year 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.6) 
( fin crore) 

' .·. ·' ·: I : 
I Aetua1 :. ·, 8a\.1Ril out of SQ~~ 

~:r': 1\~~iA··-isr( 
Oliglaal is> }e;Ji~-b : 

1./ -~~~· • . ·. 
proVISIOn 

I· e~~'~·! I ·.'i1>~~':t:v. .·. . :' ·.·· , ..... -.-: ... . .··".:: .; ... 

Reve.lq~f?'A'ZVi'"\:) ···· ' ·· < .. •· / . ··,.·: ·.··, ·: ·. •:.· .': ":··:•: ..... ·.: ,: ·:•. ..•.•. :.y~·.:.· 
. ·. ,. . . 

I. I - Department of 13.11 13.07 0.04 2.41 
Parl iamentary Affa irs 

2. 3 - General Administration 45.34 39.5 1 5.83 2.31 
(SA) Department 

3. 6 - Revenue Department 11 3.06 100.62 12.44 19.23 
4. 9 - Statistical Department 6.90 6.52 0.38 1.65 
5. I 0 - Home (Police) 736.67 697.73 38.94 96.14 

Department 
6. 12 - Co-operation Department 14.11 13. 12 0.99 2. 13 
7. 13 - Public Works (Roads and 311.09 303.94 7.15 23.78 

Buildings) Department 
8. 19 - Tribal Welfare 670.63 553.30 11 7.33 169.73 

Department 
9. 20 - Welfare of SC and OBC 269.23 2 12.96 56.27 72.64 

Depa1tment 
10. 23 - Panchayati Raj 193.96 170.45 23.51 56. 18 

Department 
I I. 26 - Fisheries Department 33.43 29.75 3.68 3.28 
12. 30 - Forest Department 62.0 1 56.23 5.78 8.50 
13. 3 1 - Rural Development 105. 11 66.58 38.53 10.28 

Department 
14. 35 - Urban Development 144.74 l 17.9 1 26.83 29.57 

Department 
15. 36 - Home (Jail) Department 17.82 17.69 0 .13 2 .25 
16. 39 - Education (Higher) 102.78 89.85 12.93 6.39 

Department 
17. 40 - Education (School) 1,020.38 954. 19 66. 19 17.83 

Department 
18. 4 1 - Education (Social) 3 18.02 249.09 68.93 11.06 

Department 
19. 45 - Taxes and Excise 13.05 9.78 3.27 1.26 
20. 49 - Fire Service Organisation 36.44 34.89 1.55 6.48 

2 1. 52 - Family Welfare and 2 12.54 11 3.28 99.26 69.96 
Preventive Medic ine 

~"'~ ~··· :' :·.··. /fJ))J_;;~·~y:'\\2\ ,, .·.•:: ;~\\; .~;)\· .• ~:,ep,:,,,, .... · .. ···2·•i ··;·JJ)/(.''··'>:···/;•· ·····<· ./?( > ,.::· , .• ;~·,, :.:.:: •. - ,·°'- / . ·.· .,• : 
· .. ,,·;{;\> 

22. 5 - Law Depa1tment 8.54 2.63 5.91 1.54 

23 19 - Tribal Welfare Department 6 15.5 1 575.35 40.16 243.09 

24 20 - Welfare of SC and OBC 349.97 303 .48 46.49 144.85 

Department 

25. 4 1 - Education (Social) 23.06 7.2 1 15.85 1.53 
Department 

26. 49 - Fire Service Organisation 12.38 11 .4 1 0.97 10.33 

~: :::.-.:.:-~tf-B:gf /-)~~~ kH&t-::Nififik:::>'f.:f·· :)'':f'.;:.i·.·.<:.:/<·.:· i f) ~ .. ~; i'. ·:· '..: ... 4,7.~~· :': .)C, . W.3.if lie. : , . '"'l'°'i4l40 ... 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.6 

Statement of cases where supplementary provision proved insufficient resulting 
in excess expenditure of more than ~ l crore 

(Ref erence: Paragraph 2.3.6) 
( fin crore) 

SL Number and Name of the Grant Original Supplementary Total Actual Excess 
No. .:.· .... Appropriation ProvlslOa provision .. ~diture . 

~1) .. , .. ···);·.: (2) (3.) (4) 
·'.· 

(S) c 
.. (6) ,(7) .·. .... 

aeven•voted •. 

l. 28 - Horticulture Department 30.70 0.23 30.93 32.83 J.90 

2. 56-lnfonnation Technology 0.9 1 1.99 2.90 4.04 1. 14 

Department 
Caolta~•otecl ·· 

3. 12 - Co-operation Department l.73 4.44 6. 17 7.45 1.28 

4. 5 1 - Publi c Works (Drinking 18.43 20.90 39.33 4 1.6 1 2.28 

Water and Sanitation) 
Department 

5. 56-lnfom1ation Technology 1.69 3.35 5.04 10.34 5.30 

Department 
. 

Total: 53.46 30.91 84.37 96.27 UM 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.7 

Statement of cases where supplementary provision proved excessive by more than ~ 1 crore 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.6) 

(f i11 crore) 

SL ,_ :~:: .,,-- >··:N~dd~of o•• --- '~1 ' --: Addltlod SUppJemtatlij: 
I --

: ,-~ ' 
~) ~' -.':~.{::~ .. Gnalkp~ ·- --· 1tr~~ ---~-:·. )• - - P!O"fllo• -•-• i -.. -;; -.. t~-~- !':>.'-.----._ ::: 
(/}/· --.:::;.:;=\}/-\?'-_--}·-=-- •=·12f.:_.- -.--.•i·,<>->- - I•- -l3f -=----.:- :-· -_-y,): <---- _:; '. .;-\· -iSfi-: --• -- .14'1 ·,:-,,-, 1•;:,,_._:i )'Jc--=: 

a.Ven Qto..Viftd>:-:.<·-··,--:c· '-"-:;(·•-_ _-.---- - >- - :- - ->•· -- , __ -: : ·-:_ -: -., -- -- > ? > >'-"-

I. 18 - General Administration (Political) 1.96 2.12 0. 16 3.37 3.2 1 
Department 

2_ 21 - Food, Civi l Suppl ies and Consumers 65.56 75.03 9.47 ' 13.91 4.44 
AfTa irs Department 

3. 22 - Relief and Rehabilitation Department 10.58 15.49 4.91 16.91 12.00 
4. 24 - Industries and Commerce Departmelll 24.29 25.73 1.44 5.65 4.21 
5. 32 - Tribal Rehabi litation in Plantation 7.56 17.15 9.59 11.73 2.14 

•and Particularly Vu lnerable Tribal Group · . 
6. 39 - Education (Higher) Department 24.75 3 1. 15 6.40 25.82 19.42 
7. 42 - Education (Sports & Youth 34.52 34.98 0.46 8.06 7.60 

Programme) Depa1tment 
8. 57 - Welfare of Minorities Department 8.22 11 .02 2.80 5.58 2.78 
9. 58 - Home (FSL, PAC, Prosecution and Co- 7.08 8. 10 1.02 2.30 1.28 

ord ination Cell) Department 
ReVi ·--- ~c:----·- :o':--<· '.--.• -=.:-i<'.:'··'"•--':\: ----·· - _-_. -- -- - ·-- J _-:: •;- ·-- -.- .. ______ -. 

-.-:-:· .. 
10. 13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) 32.50 38.57 6.07 8.00 1.93 

De artment 
-~--- "'ff?Vf'.'Y•:::f:\f " <<-·>-<P>' ____ : :•::-· : 

- : ._ --- ---"--:,<·:::-':;::·.-_.o;:•:_-:;:-:.\• -_--_ /:: .:- • - -- · c- --.... :::s;_;:; /'_:;.;-::;•:;;-.~'-{' 
·11. 6 - Revenue Department 32.45 37.49 5.04 9.35 4.3 1 
12. 11 - Transpo rt Department 3.04 24.57 21.53 29.38 7.85 
13. 13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) 18 1.26 205.6 1 24.35 73.50 49.15 

Department 
14. 14 - Power Department 30.20 49.96 19.76 34.24 14.48 
15. 16 - Health Department 24.62 27.37 2.75 27.09 24.34 
16. 25 - Industries and Commerce (Handloom, 6.27 6.63 0.36 2.86 2.50 

Handicrafts and Sericulture) Department 
• 17. 29 - Animal Resource Development 3.16 4.43 1.27 3.89 2.62 

Department 
18. 3 1 - Rural Development Department 49.51 83.63 34. 12 37.09 2.97 
19. 35 - Urban Development Department 4.69 25.56 20.87 33.70 12.83 
20. 36 - Home (Jai l) Department 3.91 8.62 4.7 1 9.34 4.63 
21. 40 - Education (School) Department 28.27 56.03 27.76 58.4 1 30.65 
22. 52 - Family Welfare and Preventive 15.13 18.32 3.19 17. 11 13.92 

Medicine Department 
23. 57 - Welfare o f Millorities Depait ment 12.42 13.83 1.4 1 34.72 33.3 1 

:-:>. __ ._.::;--•,, --- - /~·-T-Gbd: _;:: .- -_,J ., ____ -- '• -- -611.95 8213' : 109.44 472.01 :',: -ie.s.1 

" 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.7) 
(~in lakh) 

SI. Number and name of Head of DescripdonofService$ Re-appropriation Final excess (-t) I 
No. Grant I Aonropriation Account savin21(-) 
(/) (JJ fl) (4J (SJ (6J 
I. 3 - General i) 2052 Secretariat - General Services 

Administration (SA) 090 Secretariat 
Department 05 Establishment 

08 Civi l Secretariat (Non-Plan) (-)23.3 1 (-) 677.37 
2. 5 - Law Department i) 2014 Administration o f Justice 

105 Client and Session Courts 
22 Judicial 
05 Judicia l Administration (-) 326.82 (-) 322.07 

(Non-Plan) 
ii) 106 Small Causes Court 

22 Judicial 
05 Judicial Administration (-) 181.30 (-) 133.05 

(Non-Plan) 
iii) 108 Crimenal Court 

22 Jud ic ial 
05 Judicial Administration (-) 108.32 (-) 155.88 

(Non-Plan) 
iv) 43 Finance Commission 

39 Improvement in delive1y of Justice (+) 25.35 (-) 33 1.S.4 
(Non-Plan) 

3. I 0 - Home (Police) i) 2055 Po lice 
Department 003 Education and Train ing 

08 Po lice 
.. 

14 Police training college (Noa-Plan) (-) 146.45 (-) 339.3/-
ii) 101 Criminal Investigation and V ililance 

08 Po lice 
03 Crimenal Investigatio n Branch (Non- (-)66 1.26 (-) 452.8~ 

Plan) 
iii) 108 State Headquarters Police 

II TSR Battalion 
0 1 Battalion No. f (Non-Plan) (-)0.4 1 (-) 589.1 1 

iv) 02 Battalion No. II (Non-Plan) (-) 8.01 (-) 574.74 
v) 03 Battalion No. llI (Non-Plan) (-) 2.63 (-) 679.42 

vi) 12 Indian Reserve BattalioQ 
(Non-SRE) 

01 Batta lion No. I (Non-Plan) (-) 6.39 (-) 666.05 
vii) 02 Battalion No. II (Non-Plan) (-) 10.53 (-) 370.08 

viii) 04 Battalion No. fV (Non-Plan) (-) 8.99 (-) 621. 10 
ix) OS Batta lion No. V (Non-Plan) (-) 2.69 (-) 376.15 
x) 06 Batta lion No. Vl (Non-Plan) (-) 4.47 (-) 640.00 

xi) 07 Batta lion No. Vll (Non-Plan) (-)3.00 (-) 398.87 
x ii) 08 Batta lion No. Vlll (Non-Plan) (-) 5.02 (-) 4 10.83 

xi ii) 09 Batta lion No. IX (Non-Plan) (+)79.18 (-) 472.86 
xiv) 109 District Police : 

08 Police 
04 District Anned R eserve (Non-Plan) (-) 0.93 (-) 2, 161.87 

xv) 05 District Civil Police (Non-Plan) (-) 56.67 (-) 2,790.67 
xvi) 2070 Other Administrat ive Services 

107 Home G uards 
IO Home Guards 
04 Home Guards Organisation (-) 86.87 (-) 120.34 

Reimbursable/ Sharing Scheme (Non-
Plan) 

••• 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(~in lakh) 

Number and name of Head of DescriptionofServlces Re-appropriation Final excess (+) I 
Grant/Aooropriation Account savinD(-) 

(2) (3) f4J (5) (6J 
xvii) 3275 Other Communication Services 

101 Wireless Planning and Co-ordination 
08 Police 
10 Police Communication (Non-Plan) (+) 73.47 (-) 432.15 

xvii i) 4055 Capital Outlay on Police 
800 Other Expenditure 

08 Pol ice 
11 Police Force Modernisation, (-) 1,926.25 (-)699.0 1 

reimbursable/ Sharing Scheme (Non-
Plan) 

xix) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) (+) 4 1.50 (-) 156.09 

xx) 4059 Capital Outlay on Police Works 
80 General 

051 Construction 
43 Fianance Commission 
52 TSR Battalion, Hqrs (Plan) (-) 2,25 1.00 (-} 1,093.57 

xxi) 51 Police training (Plan) (+)7 16.16 (-) 5 18.48 
12 - Co-operation 2425 Co-operation 
Department 001 Direction and Administration 

98 Administration 
12 Co-operation (Non-Plan) (+) 15.27 (-) 2 10.02 

13 - Public Works i) 2059 Public Works 
(Roads and Buildings) 80 General 
Department 001 Direction and Administration 

25 Public Works 
02 Direction (Non-Plan) (-) 4.20 (-) 284.96 

ii) 03 Execution (Non-Plan) (+) 4.20 (-) 289.87 
iii) 3054 Roads & Bridges 

80 General 
001 Direction and Administration 

25 Public Works 
03 Execution (Non-Plan) (-) 18.00 (-) 2,149.24 

iv) 2059 Public Works 
80 General 

053 Maintenance and Repairs 
79 Other Administrative Expenditure 
03 Administrative Building (Non-Plan) (-) 200.00 (+) 236.24 

v) 4552 Capital outlay on North Eastern Areas 
04 District and Other Roads 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Areas Development 
74 I mprovcment of Bishalgarh - (+) 197.60 (-) 771.98 

Boxanagar - Sonamura - Barpathare -
Bclonia Road (NEC Scheme) 

vi) 5054 Capital outlay on Roads & Bridges 
04 District & other Roads 

10 1 Bridges 
99 Others 
60 Other than M.N.P (Piao) (+) 166.40 (-} 646.82 

vii) 54 NA BARD 
07 State Share (Plan) (-) 150.80 (-) 213 .20 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013-14 ••• 
99 



Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(~i11 /akh) 

1 ·!fA.~i,, ~:::1 - &£~1!IZ ~~f ~t'fi'}~tZ "' . >~>~h ~ :- . '·· ~ i> · ... 1·f2.· .'<::•· ' w.flUl~!tJI ['.~~· ·,;..: ,~·~" ~'~····{;.~iL1x ,, .. . -"-.ii: .•. · ~ 
.·.• ·CO' ;;/ :yy/·:m:~·?'.'fc} •'.··~~· ... ~ •• ·:/-:\:/ :: 0 ":tW.UliL'·.'·''' ,,., •. · . ..'·!'·>:· \1/: .. ········.t:<: :t$f' ·' ... :. . .... ··:lift·'/:'•;-.. 
·-'""'~•<-.. 

6. 14 - Power Department 4801 Capital Outlay on Power Projects 
80 General 

190 Investment Ill Public Sector and Other 
Undertakings 

56 Non-Laosable 
38 State Share ofNLCPR (Plan) (+) 230.2 1 (-) 520.00 

7. 15 - Public Works i) 2702 Minor lrri.gation 
(Water Resourc~) 80 General 
Department 001 Direction & Administration 

27 Water Resource 
14 Execution (Non-Plan) (-) 990.00 (-) 732.28 

ii) 271 1 Flood Contro l and Prainage 
01 Flood Control 

001 Direction & Administration 
27 Water Resource 
05 Flood Control and Drainages (Non-Plan) (-) 607.36 (-) 272.98 

ii i) 4701 Capi tal Outlay on Medium Irrigation 
80 Genera l 

800 Other Expenditure . 
45 Accelerated Irrigation Benefit Programme 

(ArBP) 
03 Manu Irrigation Projects (Plan) (-) 27.5 1 (-) 908.~9 

iv) 4711 Capital Outlay on Flood Control Projects 
01 Flood Control 

. 
800 Other Expenditure 
27 Water Resource 
18 Flood Management Programme (Plan) (-) 520.00 (-) 780.00 

8. 16 - Health Department i) 22 10 Medical and Public Health 
01 Urban Health Services - Allopathy 

00 1 Direction and Administration 
98 Administration 
16 Health (Non-Plan) (-) 11,3 16.30 (-)1,122. 19 
II Health (Plan) (+) 14.33 (-) 1,339.03 

iii) 05 Medical Education, Training and 
Research 

105 Allopathy 
71 Medical College 
01 Establishment (Plan) (-) 756.68 (+) 1, 123.86 

iv) 01 Urban Health Services 
110 Hospita l and Dispensaries 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) (+) 96.58 (-) 1,835.10 

9. 17 - Information, 2220 lnfom1ation and Publicity 
Cultural Affairs and 60 Others -
Tourism Department 00 1 Direction and Administration 

98 Administration 
17 ICAT (Plan) (-) 113.50 (+) 159. 12 

• • • 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
( fin /akh) 

Number and name of IJead of Description of Services ,, Re-appropriation Final excess(+) I 
Grabt/Annrooriation Account savint!S <-l 

(2} (3) (4) (5) (6) 
19 - Tribal Welfare i) 2225 Welfare of Scheduled Caste, Schedu led 
Department Tribes and Other Backward Classes 

02 Welfare of Scheduled Tribes 
001 Direction and Administration 

33 Welfare Programme 
09 General (Non-Plan) (-) 15.70 (-) 2 10.52 

ii) 29 Past- Matric Scholarship to Scheduled (-) 55 1. 12 (+) 239.86 
Tribes Students (CSS) 

iii) 3604 Compensation and Assignments to Local 
Bodies and Panchayati Raj 

200 Other Miscellaneous Compensations and 
Assignments 

34 Triba l Sub -Plan 
14 Sixth Schedule (Non-Plan) (+) 10.70 (-) 1,200.00 

iv) 25 15 Other Rural Development Programmes 
001 Direction and Administration 

98 Administration 
23 Panchavat (Plan) (-) 6.40 (-) 816.8 1 

v)2406 Forestry and Wild Life 
0 1 Forestry 

IOI Forest Conservation, Development and 
Regeneration 

43 Finance Commission 
27 Maintenance of Forest - Preservation of (-) I 34.42 (-)253. 16 

Forest Wealth (Plan) 
vi) 2217 Urban Development 

01 State Capital Development 
05 1 Construction 

88 C.S. Scheme -III 
9 1 State Investment Progaramme (+) 93.00 (-)32 1.59 

Management and Implementation under 
ADB assisted NERUDP (CSS) 

vii) 2202 General Education 
0 1 Elementary Education 

106 Teachers and Other Services 
42 Government Primary Schools 
0 1 Middle Stage Education (From Class-VJ (+) I 7.49 (-) 367.32 

to Y IU ) (P lan) 
viii) 02 Primary Education (From Class-I to Y) (-) 17.49 (-)3 19.82 

(Non-Plan) 
ix) 800 Other Expenditure 

70 State Share 
40 School Education (plan) (-) 89.36 (-) 226.76 

x) 02 Secondary Education 
104 Teachers & Other Services 
4 1 Human Development 
18 Government Secondary Schools (Plan) (-) 12.77 (-) l,057.77 

xi) 800 Other Expendi ture 
70 State Share 
40 School Education (plan) (+) 103 .22 (-) 144.79 

xii) 2235 Social Security and Welfare 
02 Social Welfare 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of ~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: P aragraph 2.3. 7) 
( f in lakh) 
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102 Chi ld Welfare 
33 Welfare Pro!!ramme -
15 Integrated Child Development Scheme (+) 86.90 (-) 374.07 

(Plan) 
xiii) 70 State Share 

4 1 Social Welfare & Social Education (Plan) (-) 567.93 (+) 160.82 
xiv) 87 C.S. Scheme - II 

58 Integrated Chi ld Development Scheme (-) 1,7,17.22 (-) 2 ,5f4.63 
(CSS) 

xv) 2225 Welfare for Scheduled Castes, Schedu led 
Tribes and Other Backward Classes. 

02 Welfare for Scheduled Tribes 
277 Education 
86 C.S. Scheme - I 
30 Past- Matric Scholarship to General (-)3 11.06 (-)259.00 

Students (CSS) 
xvi) 3456 Civil Sunnlies 

104 Consumer Welfare Find 
89 C.S. Scheme - IV -
25 End - to -end Computerisation of (+) 0.75 (-) 162.00 

Targeted Public DistTibution System 
(TPDS) operations in the State of Tripura 
(CSS) 

xv ii) 25 15 Other Rura l Development Programmes 
. 

800 Other Expend iture 
43 Finance Commission 
40 lncentiviting People below the poverty (+) 6.25 (-) 138.S-8 

line to register fo r Unique Identification 
(UID) (Plan) 

xviii) 2220 lnfom1ation and Publicity 
60 Others 

00 1 Direction and Administration 
98 Admin istration 
17 ICAT (Plan) (-) 49. 17 (-) 102.83 

xix) 2401 Crop Husbandrv 
001 Direction & Administration 

98 Administration 
27 Agriculture (Plan) (+) 180. 17 (-) 156.61 

xx) 2235 Soc ial Security and Welfa re 
03 National Sector Assistance Programme 

101 Natinal old Age Pension 
33 Welfare Programme 
25 National Old Age Pension Scheme (Plan) (+) 341.08 (-) 141.60 

xxi) 22 11 Fami ly Welfa re : 

10 1 Rural Family Welfare 
87 C.S. Scheme - II 
72 Health Sub-Centre (CSS) (-) 140.08 (+) 279.32 

xx ii) 4552 Capital out lay on North Eastern Areas 
04 D istrict & Other Roads 

800 Other Exoenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
( fin lakh) 

Number and name of Head of Description of Services Re-appropriation Final excess(+) I 
Grant/Annrooriation Account savin25(-) 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 
74 Improvement of B ishalghar Boxanagar - (+) 11 7.80 (+) 406.36 

Sonamure - Banpathari - Beloria Road 
(NEC School) 

xxiii) 470 I Capital outlay on Medium lrigation 
80 General 

800 Other Expenditure 
45 Accelerated lrrigation Benefi t 

Progranune 
03 Manu Irrigation Projects (Plan) (-)16.40 (-) 442.03 

xx iv) 4210 Capital outlay on Medical & Public 
Health. 

01 Urban Health Services 
110 Hospita l & Dispensaries 
54 National Bank for Agriculture & Rural 

Development (NABARD) 
10 lnfrastrncture Development of three (-) 450.00 (-) .129.00 

District Hospitals/ Construction of Staff 
Quarters & Development of site 
including Internal Roads under RJDFX-
VI in T ripura 

xxv) 75 Special Plan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) (+) 226.64 (-) 1,3 17.34 

xxvi) 80 General 
800 Other Expenditure 

75 Special P lan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (+) 67.50 (-) 12 1. 17 

xxvii) 4225 Capital outlay on Welfa re of Scheduled 
Castes, Scheduled Tribes and Other 
Backward Classes 

02 Welfare of Scheduled Tribes 
102 Economic Development 
55 Block Grant 
01 Under Artic le 275(1) (Plan) (-) 30 1.00 (-) 89 1.56 

xxvi ii) 800 Other Expenditure 
70 State Share 
19 Tribal Welfare (Plan) (-) 19. 13 (-) 173.17 

xxix) 451 5 Capital outlay or other Rural 
Development Programmes 

101 Panchayati Raj 
99 Others 
70 Backward Regions Grant Find (BRGF) (+) 0.55 (-) 134.02 

(Plan) 
xxx) 4202 Capital outlay on Education, Sports, Art 

and Culture 
0 1 General Education 

203 University and Higher Education 
75 Specia l P lan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) (-) 23.67 (-) 214. 17 

xxxi) 4202 Capital outlay on Education, Sports, Art 
and Culture 

01 General Education 
202 Secondary Education 

75 Special Plan Assistance 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
( fi1 h kh) 
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0 1 SPA(Plan) (+) 3.85 (-) 405.00 
xxx ii) 42 10 Capita l outlay on Mecdica l and Public 

Hea lth 
02 Rura l Health Services 

103 Primary 1 lealth Centre 
75 Specia l Plan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) (+) 1.00 (-) 253.44 

xxx iii)5054 Capital outa ly on Roads and Bridges 
04 District and Other Roads 

800 Other Expend iture 
54 Natina l Bank fo r Agricullllre and Rural 

Developemtn (NABARD) 
07 State Share (Plan) (-) 802.90 (-) 127.10 

xxx iv) 4 7 I I Capita l outlay on Flood Control Proj ects 
0 1 Flood Control 

800 Other Expenditure 
27 Water Resources 
18 Flood Management Progamme (Plan) (-)3 10.00 (-) 465.00 

xxxv) 42 JO Capita l out lay Oil Medica l & Public 
Health 

OJ Urban Health Services 
11 0 Hospital & Dispensaries 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share o f SPA (-) 98.72 (-) 221.28 

xxxvi)4059 Capita l outlay on Public Works 
60 Genera l 
80 Other Expenditure . 
95 Special Centra l Assistance 
0 1 SCA (Plan) (-) 0 .40 (-) 500.00 

xxxvii)4070 Capital outl ay on other Administrative 
Services 

800 Other Expenditure 
75 Specia l Plan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) (+) 136.7 1 (-) 338.70 

xxxviii)4070 Capita l outlay on Other Admin istrative 
Services 

800 Other Expenditure 
95 Specia l Central Ass istance 
0 1 SCA (Plan) (+) 31.00 (+) 126. 17 

xxxix) 5054 Capita l outlay on Roads & Bridges 
04 District and Other Roads 

IO I Bridges 
99 Others 
60 Other than M.M.P. (Plan (+) 146.28 (+) 663'.94 

x i) 4401 Capita l outlay on Crop Husbandary 
800 Other Expenditure 

75 Specia l Plan Assistance -
0 1 SPA (Plan) (+) 327.6 1 (-) 126.1 0 

xii) 4059 Capi tal outlay on Public Works 
60 Other Build ings 

800 Other Expend iture 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) (+) 0.40 (-) 989.66 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(~in laklt) 

Number and name of Head of Dfterlptlon of Semm RHpproprlatlen Fblal ei:M't) I 
Grant I Annmnriatlon Account .. •· ' ... . ... ~ •. 

(2) f3J f 41 
· .. .· 15> .· . , (6) . 

xiii) 4217 Capital outlay on Urban Development 
03 Integrated Development of Small and 

Medium Towns 
051 Construction 

88 C.S. Scheme - 111 
97 Construction of Town Hall (CSS) (+) 62.00 (-) 672.41 

xi iii) 4202 Capital outlay on Education, Sports, Art 
and Culture 

01 General Education 
203 University & Higher Education 

43 Finance Commission 
46 Development of M.8 .8 College (Plan) (-) 234.05 (+) 242.04 

Xliv) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) (+) 39.37 (+) 143.19 

xiv) 42 10 Capital outlay on Medical and Public 
Health 

02 Rural I lealth Services 
103 Primary Health Centre 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) (-) 1.00 (+) 205.00 

20- Welfare of SC and i) 25 15 Other Rural Development Programmes 
OBC Department 001 Direction and Administration 

98 Administration 
23 Panchavat (Plan) (-)3.51 (-) 447.84 

ii) 2406 Forestry and Wild Li fe 
01 Forestry 

10 1 Forest Conservation, Development and 
Regeneration 

43 Finance Commission 
27 Maintenance of Forest- Preservation of (-) 160.34 (-) 162.48 

Forest Wealth 
(Plan) 

iii) 22 17 Urban Development 
01 State Capital Development 

051 Construction 
88 C.S.Scheme Ill 
9 1 State Investment Progranune (+) 5 1.00 (-) 176.37 

Management and Implementation Unit 
under ADB assisted NERUDP (C.S.S.) 

iv) 2202 General Education 
01 Elementary Education 

106 Teachers and Other Services 
42 Government Primary Schools 
01 Middle Stage Education (from Class VI (+) 80.98 (-) 199.68 

to VlII) (Plan) 
v) 02 Primary Education (from Class I to V) (-) 40.37 (-) 18 1.64 

(Plan) 
vi) 800 Other expenditure 

70 State Share 
40 School Education (Plan) (-) 88.03 (-) 135.67 

vii) 2236 Nutrition 
02 Distribution of nutritious food and 

beverages 
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Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(~i11 lakh) 
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102 Mid-day Meals 
88 C.S.Schemes - ill 
23 National Programme of Mid Day Meals (-) 233.97 (+) 126.10 

in Schools for Upper Primary Stage 
(Kitchen, Utencils & Cooking etc.) 
(C.S.S.) 

viii) 2235 Socia l Security and Welfare 
02 Social Welfare 

001 Direction and Admin istration 
33 Welfare Pro.gramme 
09 Genera l (Plan) (+)298.8 1 (-) 365.65 

ix) 102 Chi ld Welfare 
33 Welfare Programme 
15 Integrated Child Development Scheme (+) 47.65 (-)20 1.1 5 

(Plan) 
x) 87 C. S. Scheme - 11 

58 Integrated Child Development Scheme (-) 1,696.44 (+) 127.45 
{C.S.S.) 

xi) 22 17 Urban Development 
01 State Capita l Development 

192 Assistance to Municipal Councils 
43 Finance Commission 
24 ULBs(Normal Areas) (Plan) (+) 12.27 (-) 1,2 12.27 

xii) 2225 Welfare of Scheduled Castes, Scheduled . 
Tribes and other Backward Classes 

0 1 Welfa re of Scheduled Castes 
227 Education . 

33 Welfare Programme 
29 S.C. Welfare (Plan) (+ ) 26.64 (+) I 09.91 

xii i) 2217 Urban Development 
01 State Capital Development 

191 Assistance to Municipal Corporation 
32 Urban Development 
17 State Urban Employment Programme (+) 132. 75 (+) 111.16 

(Plan) 
xiv) 192 Assistance to Municipal Councils 

32 Urban Development 
17 State Urban Employment Programme (+) 122.25 (-) 111.19 

(Plan) 
xv) 2235 Social Security and Welfare 

03 National Social Assistance Programme 
101 National Old Age Pension Scheme 
33 Welfa re Programme 
25 National O ld Age Pension Scheme (+) 70.80 (+) 164-.24 

xvi)67 National Social Assistance Programme 
01 National Old Age Pension (Plan) (-) 7 1.08 (+) 104.02 

xvi i) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas -
04 District and other Roads 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Devclopement 
74 Improvement of Bishalghar-Boxanagar- (+) 64.60 (-) 217.46 

Sonamura-Barpathari-Be lonia Road 
(NEC Scheme) 
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Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(~in lakh) 

SL NQl.'*'.~~'8°' .· lleadof 
~aof~ ~~ ~~~~)/ ~:No. . I Gridlt I ...... .· .... Aecowat 

', :·.; : •J ... 

flY : .,.12} :·<:.\ ... (3J (.4) 
. <:· (5) ·., ·.· : .. (6) , '.'C .. · 

xviii) 42 10 Capital Outlay on Medical and Public 
Heal th 

01 Urban Health Services 
110 Hospital and Dispensaries 
54 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural 

Development (NA BRD) 
10 fnfrastructurc Development o f three (-)3 15.00 (-) 160. 16 

District Hospitals/Construction of staff 
Quarters and Development of Site 
Including internal Roads under RIDF-
XVI in Tril)ura (Plan) 

xix) 75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) (+) 33 1.26 (-) 2,6 19.74 

xx) 440 1 Capital Outlay on Crop Husbandry 
800 Other expenditure 

37 Agricultural Development 

36 Rastriya Krishi Vikash Yojana (Plan) (+) 182.28 (-) 227.28 
xx i) 42 17 Capital Outlay on Urban Development 

0 1 State Capital Development 
05 1 State Capital Development 

95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) (+) l 7.00 (-) 123.43 

xx ii) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas 
- 04 Diesel/Gas Power Generation 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Developcmcnt 

- 59 State Contri bution for EC Project (+) 22.25 (-) 15 1.97 
(Plan) 

xx iii) 47 1 I Capital Outlay on Flood control Projects 
01 Flood Control 

800 Other expendi ture 
27 Water Resource 

18 Flood Mnagemcnt Programme (-) 170.00 (-) 255.00 
xx iv) 4225 Capital Outlay on Welfare of Scheduled 

Castes, Scheduled Tribes and other 
Back\vard Classes 

01 Welfare of Scheduled Castes 

800 Other expenditure 
86 C.S.Scheme - I 
4 1 Special Central Assistance (C.S.S.) (-) 295.00 (-) 705.00 

xxv) 4059 Ca1Jital Outlay on Public Works 
60 Other Buildings 

800 Other Expenditure . 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) (-) 0.25 (-) 250.00 

xxvi) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art 
and Culture . 

0 1 General Education 
800 Other expenditure 

75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (P lan) (+) 204.94 (-) 22 1.94 

xxvi i) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas 
04 District and Other Roads 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(fin lakh) 

Number and name of Head of 
Deserlpdon of Services Re-appropriatien 

Fiul exeeu (+) I 
Grant/Annroorlatlon Account saYIHI(.,) 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Devclopement 
59 State Contribution for NEC Projects (+) 48.92 (+) 150.59 

(NEC Scheme) 
xx vi ii) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art 

and Culture 
0 1 General Education 

203 University and Higher Education 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) (+) 1,42.43 (-) 109. 18 

22 - Relief and 2235 Social Security and Welfa re 
Rehabi litation 01 Rehabilitat ion 
Department 800 Other Expenditure 

05 Establishment 
36 Reang Refugee Reimbersable/ Sharing (+)5. 16 (-) 1,183.67 

Scheme (Non-Plan) 
23 - Panchayati Raj i) 25 15 Other Rural Develo1JJ11cnt Programmes 
Department 0 11 Di rection & Administration 

98 Administration 
23 Panchavat (Non-Plan) (-) 1,846.92 (+) 11 9.79 

ii) 23 Panchayat (Plan) (+) 3.64 (+) 1,959.05 

24 - Industries and 2851 Vi llage and Small Industries 
Commerce Department 001 Di rection and Adminis tration 

98 Administration 
24 lndustries and Commerce (Non-Plan) (+) 47.53 (-) 149.89 

26 - Fisheries i) 2405 Fisheries 
Department 001 Direction and Administration 

. 
98 Administration 
26 Fisheries (Non-Plan) (-) 90.28 (-) 224.62 

ii) 800 Other Expenditure 
86 C. S. Scheme - J 
53 Development of Inland Aquacultu re and (+) 44.51 (-) 176.00 

Fisheries (CSS) 
27 - Agriculture i) 240 1 Crop Husband1y 
Department 109 Extension and Farmers' Training 

37 Agricultural Development 
36 RKVY (Plan) (+) 87 1.07 (-) 2 13.34 

ii) 70 State Share 
59 State Share of Agricultural Teclmology (+) 136.48 (-) 119.10 

Management Agency (Plan) 
iii) 4401 Capital outlay on Crop I lusbandaiy 

800 Ptier Expendin1re 
37 Agricultural Development 
36 RKVY (Plan) (+) 395.30 (-) 422.4 1 

iv) 75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) (+) 328.52 (-) 178.16 

28-Horticulture i) 2401 Crop I lusbandry . 
Department 001 Direction & Administration 

98 Administration 
28 Horticulture (Non-Plan) (-) 141.32 (+) 159. 15 

ii) 2402 Soil and Water Conservation 
001 Direction & Administration 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess oft 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
( fin lakh) 

98 Admin istration 
28 Horticulture (Non-Plan -) 150.98 (+) 304. 12 

29 - Animal Resource i) 2403 Animal Husbanda 
Deve lopment 001 Direction & Adminish·arion 
Department 87 C.S. Scheme - II 

01 Assistance to States for Control of (+)48. 19 (-) 102.80 
Animal Diseases CSS) 

II 2403 Animal Husband 
00 1 Direction and Administration 

99 Others 
72 Salary for Staff deputed to TTAADC (+) 2.07 (+) 105.36 

30 - Forest Department 2406 Fores tr and Wild Life 
01 Forest 

001 Direction & Administration 
98 Administration 
30 Forest (Non-Plan) (+ 65.00 (- 6l6.38 

ii) JOI Forest Conservation, Development and 
Re encration 

43 Finance Commission 
27 Maintenance of Forest - Preservation of (+) 30 1.92 (-) 185.08 

Forest Wealth (Plan) 
ii i) 02 Environmental Forestery and Wild Li fe 

11 0 Wild Life Preservation 
87 C.S. Scheme - TI 
18 Assistance to Se ahi "ala Zoo (CSS (+ 191.35 (-)332. 10 

IV 4406 Ca ital outla on Forest and Wild Life 
01 

IOI Forest Conservation, Development and 
Re0 eneration 

5 1 Extemall Aided Pro"eet 
06 JBlC Plan) (-) 240.00 (- 100.00 

31-Rural Development i) 22 15 Water Su I and Sanitation 
Department 0 1 Water SuJ I 

001 
30 
2 1 (-) 19.88 (+ 106.67 

II 4059 
60 

800 
75 
0 1 + 0.35 (+ 894.40 

35 - Urban i) 22 17 
Development 01 ment 
Deparhuent 051 Construction 

88 C.S. Scheme -lJl 
91 State Investment Programme (+) 156.00 (-) 538.44 

Management and Implementation under 
ADB assisted NERUDP (CSS) 

ii) 191 Assistance to Munici al Co oration 
32 Urban Dcvclo ment 
2 1 State Share JNNURM (Plan) (-) 268.60 (-) 134.59 
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Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.7) 
( (in laklt) 

SL Namber and ume of Head of Deleriptlon of Services R.e-appnpriadoa FUW esceu (+) I 
No. Gnat I Annroorlatlon Account . . . . . savllhnl i;.) · ·.· · 
m 121 (JJ . . (4) (SJ {6J 

iii) 43 F inance Commission 
24 ULBS (Nonnal Areas) (Plan) (+) 252.28 (-) 2,928. 12 

iv) 3604 Compensation and Assignments to Local 
Bodies and Panchayati Raj Lnstitutions 

200 Other Miscellaneous Compensation and 
Assignments 

93 Municipa l Corporation 
0 1 Salary/ Wages!f A&DA!Pension/Continge (+) 1,49 1.00 (-) 1,978.00 

ncy (Non-Plan) 
v) 97 Nagar Panchayats 

OJ Salary/Wagcs!f A&DA/Pension/Continge (-) 648.32 (+) 403. 16 
ncy (Non-Plan) 

vi) 22 17 Urban Development 
0 1 State Capital Development 

19 1 Assistance to Mtmicipal Corporation 
32 Urban Development 
17 State Urban Employment Programme (+) 406.07 (+)340.10 

(Plan) 
vii) 192 Assistance to Mun icipal Councils 

32 Urban Development 
17 State Urban Employment Programme (+) 373.93 (-) 340.08 

(Plan) 
viii) 3604 Compensation and Assignments to Local 

Bodies and Panchayati Raj Institutions 
. 

200 Other Miscellaneous Compensation and 
Assignments 

96 Agan a la Municipal Council 
0 1 Salary/W agcsff A &DA/Pension/ Conti ngc (-) 1,533.62 (+) 1,690.94 

ncy (Non-Plan) 
ix)07 Othe rs (Non-Plan) (+) 673. 70 (-) 370.52 
x) 07 Others (Non-Plan) (-) 604.84 (+) 925.50 

22. 39 - Education (Higher) i).2203 Technical Education 
Department 105 Polytechnics 

4 1 Human Development 
66 Tripura Institute of Technology (Non- (-) 1.72 (-) 234.09 

Plan) 
ii) 4202 Capita l Outlay on Education, Sports, An 

and Culture 
0 1 Genera l Education 

203 Universi ty and Higher Education 
75 Spec ia l Plan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) (-) 39.71 (-) 406.77 

iii) 44 Additional Central Assistance 
02 State Contribution for ACA Project (-) 58.54 (+) 11 >.90 

(Plan) 
iv) 75 Special Plan Assistance 

0 1 SPA (Plan) (+) 758.41 (-) 562.63 
v) 75 Special Plan Assistance 

02 State Share of SPA (Plan) (+) 105.27 (-) 220.00 
23. 40 - Education (School) i) 2202 General Education 

Department 0 1 E lementary Education 
10 1 Government Primary Schools 
42 Government Primary Schools 
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Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(~ill /akh) 

Head of Numbtr~!!.'1 ~tltn ofServi@S Re-appropriation Final esceu (+) I 
< N~ < Gfutt:A ... ··: Account .· laVinl!ll.;} : .. .' .... ". . ' 

(Jf .· ····?m .. ): ... ..:. : (J) ·· .. · ; 141 
. 

(5j 16) .· . . 
" 

01 Middle Stage Education (From Class-VI (-) 795.85 (-) 440. 16 
to VIII ) (Non-Plan) 

ii) 02 Primary Education (From Class-I to V) (-) 547.11 (-) 3,0 16.36 
(Non-Plan) 

iii)800 Other Expendi ture 
70 State Share 
40 School Education (plan) (·) 64.57 (-) 345.70 

iv) 800 Other Expenditure 
70 State Share 
40 School Education (plan) (+) 38.08 (·) 237.92 

v) 2236 Nutrition 
02 Distribution of Nutrit ious Food and 

Beverages 
102 Mid-Day-Meals 
41 I luman Development 
56 Mid-Day-Meals (NP-NSPE) (Plan) (·) 33.98 (-) 111.40 

vi) 88 C.S. Scheme-Ill 
23 National Programme of Mid-Day-Meals (-) 590.54 (-) 123.64 

m School for upper Primary Stage 
(Kitchen, utensil & cooking etc. (CSS) 

vii) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education. Sports, Art 
;incl Culture 

01 General Education 
- 202 Secondary Education 

56 Non-Lapsable 
02 State Share of SPA (Plan) (+) 14.33 (-) 629.00 

.24. 41 - Education (Social) i) 2235 Social Security and Welfare 
Department 02 Social Welfare 

001 Direction and Administration 
33 Welfare Programme 
09 General (Plan) (+) 80 1.1 8 (-) 1,234.37 

ii) 15 ICDS (10% State Share) (Plan) {+) 150.75 (-)39 1.69 
iii) 70 State Share 

4 1 Social Wwelfarc and Social Education (·) 960.24 (+) 203.49 
(Plan) 

iv) 87 C.C. Scheme- II 
58 ICDS (CSS) (-) 4.019.58 (+) 587.5 1 

v) 89 C.S. Scheme-IV 
03 Raj iv Gandhi Scheme for Empowcnnent (-) 586.23 (+) I 54.49 

of Adolescent Girls (RGSEAG) - 'Sabia' 
(CSS) 

vi) 106 Correctional Services 
70 State Share 

J 41 Social Welfare and Social Education (+) 11 2.47 (-) 145.29 
(Plan) 

vii) 03 National Social Assistance Programme 
IOI National Old Age Pension Scheme - 67 National Social Assistance Programme 

{NSAP) 
01 National Old Age Pension (Plan) (+) 68.95 (-) 436.82 

viii) 09 General (Non-Plan) (-) 30.29 (+) 162.33 
ix) 106 Correctional Services 

87 C.S. Scheme- 11 
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Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 
(fin lakh) 

SL Namber and ume of Bead of Delcrlptloa of Senkes Re-appropriation Pluleseeu (+) I 
No. Grant I Annronrladoa Aeeouat . .... (-} 
m . · . (2j . ~ (3j ('1 (SJ '_(6) .· . 

'• 

60 Juvenile Home (CSS) (+) 1,392.74 (-) 1,276.40 
x) 4235 Capital outlay on Socia l Security and 

Wei tare 
02 Social Welfare 

102 Child Welfare 
87 C.S. Scheme - II 
58 ICDS (CSS) (-) 878.32 (-) 846.68 

25. 43 - Finance i) 207 1 Pensions and Other Retirement Benefits 
Department 01 Civil 

IO I Superannuation and Retirement 
A llowances 

02 Pension 
0 1 Genera l Pension (Non-Plan) (+) 3,100.00 (-)12, 153.35 

ii) 2049 Interest Payments 
Ol Interest on Internal Debt 

122 l.ntercst on Investment in Special Central 
Government Securities issued against net 
collections of Sma ll SaviDgs from l-04-
1999 

58 Debt Services 
17 Small Savings Collection (+) 625.98 (-)3,3 17.60 

(Non-Plan) 
iii) 200 Jnterest on other fnterna l Debts 

58 Debt Services -
43 Power Bond (Non-Plan) (-) 3,068. 11 (-) 256.45 

iv) 205 Management o f Debt 
58 Debt Services -
09 Management o f Debt (Non-Plan) (-) 4,000.00 (-)951.04 

v) 04 l.nterest on Loans and Advances Crom 
Central Government 

101 Interest on Loans for State I U nion 
Terriforej Plan Schemes 

58 Debt Services 
19 State Plan Scheme (Non-Plan) (-) 3,400 (+) 2,609.04 

vi) 2049 l.nterest Payments 
0 1 Jntercst on Internal Debts 

10 1 Interest on Market Loans 
58 Debt Services 
05 General Provident Fund (Non-Plan) (+) I 0,000.00 (-) 8,3 10.19 

vii) 7610 Loans to Government Servants, etc. 
201 House Building Advances 

99 Othe rs 
53 Advance to Member of the Legislative (-) 38.07 (-) 434.35 

Assembly (Non-P lan) ' 

vii i) 6003 Internal Debt of the State Government 
IOI Market Loans 
58 Debt Services 
10 Market Loans (Non-Plan) (-) 2,854.22 (-)4, 195.92 

ix) 106 Compcnsatun alld other Bonds 
58 Debt Services 
43 Power Bond (Non-Plan) (-) 1,696.74 (+) 249.36 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2. 3. 7) 
(fin /akh) 

SL N11111ber aDd aame o( H-'of 
~a-of$.tnkel ,• · ·. AMP~ ~~~(+) / 

No . .... Graatf k~rlatfOD: :Acco1aftt ;. I•,, 1•i.> 
m· ,.· •.• . . (2} ' ' .. BJ .· (4)' '·' fSJ ·'" <' •• •· ldf . : 
26. 45 - Taxes and Excise 2040 Taxes on Sales, Trade, e tc. 

101 Collection Charges 
05 Establishment 
10 Conunissioner of Taxes & Excise (Non- (-) 1.32 (-) 11 7.68 

Plan) 
27. 49 - Fire Serv ice 4070 Capital outlay on other Administrative 

Organisation services 
800 Other Expenditure 

75 Specia l Plan Assistance 
01 S PA (Plan) (+) 725.45 (-) 1,070.68 

28. 5 1 - Public Works i) 22 15 Water S upply and Sanitation 
(Drinking Water and 01 Water Supply 
Sanitatio n) Department 102 Rural Water Supp ly Programme 

28 Public Health 

05 Direction (Plan) (-) 392.36 (+)196.51 
ii) 101 Urban Water Supply Programmes 

28 Public Health 
06 Execution (Plan) (-) 277. 17 (+) 526.24 

iii) 4 2 15 Capital outlay on Water Supply and 
Sanitation 

0 1 Water Supply 
102 Rural Water Suooly 
56 Non-Lapsable 
42 Water Supply Scheme at Bishalgarh (+)0. 15 (-) 230.09 

(CSS) 
29. 52 - Family Welfa re i) 2210 M edica l and Public Hea lth 

and Preventive 03 Rural Health Services - A llopathy 
Medicine 103 Primary Health Centres 

16 Hosoital 
10 Primary Health Centre (Non-Plan) (-)382.37 (-) 825.08 

ii) 06 Public Health 
00 1 Direction and Administration 

98 Admin istratio n 
52 Family We lfa re and Preventi ve Med ic ine (-)3 13.64 (-) 606.69 

(Non- Plan) 
iii) 2210 Family Welfare 

103 Maternity aDd Child Hea lth 
43 Finance Commission 
60 Reductio n in the Infant Mortali ty Rate (+) 696.0 I (-) 15,3 18.44 

(Non- Plan) 
iv) 22 11 Fami ly Welfare 

0 1 Direction & Administration 
87 C. S. Scheme -II 
7 1 District Family Welfare Bureau (C.S . (-) 66. 14 (+) 188.4 1 

Scheme) 
30. 53-Tribal Welfare 2225 Welfare fo r Scheduled Castes, Scheduled 
. (Research) Department Tribes and Other Backward Classes . 

8 General 
800 Other Expenditure 

95 Spec ial Central Assistance 

0 1 S PA (Plan) (+) 0 . 19 (-) 10 1.45 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.8 (concld.) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation proved unnecessary, excessive or insufficient 
resulting in savings/excess of~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

3 1. 56-lnformation 4070 Capi tal outlay on Other Admjnistrative 
Technology Department Services 

800 Other Ex enditure 
75 S ecial Assistance 
01 SP A Plan (+) 169.32 (+) 529.70 

32. 57 - Welfare of 4225 Capital outlay on Welfare of Scheduled 
Minorities Department Castes, Sechedu led Tribes and Other 

Backward Classes 
03 Welfare of Backward Classes 

277 Education 
89 C.S. Scheme - IV 
27 Multi Sectoral Development Programme (+) 1,000.00 (-) 1,397.35 

for Minori Concentration Block CSS 
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Appendix 2.9 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

( fin /akh) 

SI.No. Number and name of Head of Description of Services Re-appropriation Final excess (+) 
. Grant /. Aoorooriation Account I savin21 (-) 

I. 5 - Law Department 20 14 Administration of Justice 
114 Legal Advisers and Counsels 
22 Judicial 
08 Tripura State Legal/Services Authority 13.50 (-) 4.68 

(Non-Plan) 
2. 14 - Power Department i) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas 

04 Diesel/Gas Power Generation 
800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
58 Augmentation of Substation Capacity by 2,4 1.80 Ni l 

Addition of Transfonner (NEC Scheme) 
ii) 05 Transtn ission and D istribution 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
84 Augment by Addition of 132/33 kV, 57.20 Nil 

I x20/25MV A, Transfer along with 
associated equipments and civ il works at 
132 KV M ission Ti Ila Substation, 
Dhannanagar, Tripura (Plan) 

iii) 480 1 Capital Outlay on Power Projects 
05 Transmission and Distribution 

190 Lnvestments in Public Sector and other 
Undertakings 

75 Spec ial Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of S PA (Plan) 2,2 1.98 Nil 

iv) 80 General 
190 Investment Ill Public Sector and Other 

U ndertakings 
56 Non - lapsab le 
99 Augmentation of P.K. Bari S/station with 74.99 Nil 

32 KV Bay for Termination of 400 KV 
line in Tripura (C.S.S) 

3. 15 - Public Works i) 4701 Capital Outlay on Medium Irrigation 
(Water Resource) 80 General 
Department 800 Other Expenditure 

95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 8.01 Nil 

ii)4702 Capital Outlay on M inor Irrigation 
800 Other expenditure 

95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 4 2.06 Nil 

- iii) 47 11 Capital Outlay on Flood Control Projects 
OJ Flood Contro l 

800 Other expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance - OJ SPA (Plan) 2,80.80 Nil 

4 . 16-l-lealth Department i) 22 10 Medical and Public Health 
01 Urban Health Services-Allopathy 

- 11 0 Hospital and Dispensaries 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 0.49 (-) 0.05 

ii) 02 Urban Health Services-Other systems of 
medicine 

101 Ayurveda 
70 State Share 
16 Health (Plan) 23.06 (-) 22.20 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(fin lakh) 

~~~1."~f' t,~i- -~~ ·~tt 
'." ...... ;$1;~{--·· .C:·:,,_ ... ... '";< ;>: <·~!J~i{.'t)i 

ftiif :·:·: ~,.,,.,:,"·-··,······· :;~:~1~x2; w~~-c TM . 
iii) 102 Homeopathv 

70 State Share 
16 Health (Plan) 5.15 (-) 4.92 

iv) 42 10 Capital Outlay on Medical and Public Health 
01 Urban Health Services 

110 Hospital and Dispensaries 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 6.73 (-) 0.92 

v) 4552 Capita l Outlay on North Eastern Areas 
05 M edical Education, Training and Research 

200 Other Systems 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
56 Accident and Trauma Centre a t G.B.P. 42.2 1 (-) 3 .08 

Hospital (NEC Scheme) 

5. 19-Tribal Welfare i) 2059 Public Works 
Department 60 Other Buildirnrs 

053 Maintenance and Repairs 
79 Other Maintenance Expenditure 
0 1 Pub lic Building (Plan) 4.54 Nil 

ii) 3456 Civil Supplies 
800 Other expenditure 

88 C.S. Scheme III 
27 Consw11er-Awareness Activities (CSS) 8.40 Ni l 

iii) 2405 Fisheries 
800 Other expenditure 

95 Special Central Assistance 
Ol SCA (Plan) 20 .98 (+) a.of 

iv) 2415 Agricultural Research and Education 
01 Crop Husbandrv 

277 Education 
03 Research and Training 
01 Agricultural Education and Training (Plan) 0.12 (-) 0 .10 

v) 2552 North Eastern A reas 
800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
59 State Contribution fo r N.E.C. Proj ects 10.00 (+) 0.09 

(Plan) 
vi) 2059 Public Works 

80 General 
053 Maintenance and Repairs 
25 Public Works 
14 Public Buildin_g (P lan) 7.75 (-) 7.24 

vi i) 2203 Technical Education 
105 Polv technics 
41 Human Development 
74 Gomari District polytechnic at Fulkumari, 12.50 (-) 4.22 

Udaipur (P lan) -
viii) 2202 Gene ral Education 

Ol E lementary Education 
800 Other expenditure -
87 C.S. Scheme - II 
55 Transportation of Food Grain Under M id- 16.92 (-) 8.46 

Day Meal (CSS) 
ix)2236 Nutrition 

02 Distribution of nutritio us food and 
beverages 
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Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

( fin /aklt) 

Number and nallle of Head of ·: ·• / . i . • .. . •· . !:~~~(+) 
Grant/An~~nation Account 

J>escdptiOn ofSerVltes ti-9,PproprilltlOn I . ,.} 
102 Mid-day Meals 
89 C.S. Schemes-IV 
26 Procurement of LPG Cylinder (CSS) 3.23 (-) 0.13 

x) 22 10 Medical and Public Health 
i)O I Urban Health Services-Allopathy 
11 0 Hospital and Dispensaries 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 1.85 (+) 3.04 

xi) 03 Rural Health Services-Allopathy 
101 Health Sub-Centres 
95 Special Central Assistance 41.70 (-)41.70 

xii) 01 SCA (Plan) 
5055 Capital Outlay on Road Transport 

190 Investments ill Public Sector and other 
Undertakings 

23 Corporations I PSUs I Boards 
05 Tripura Road Transport Corporation (Plan) 3.10 (-) 1.85 

xiii) 4059 Capital Outlay on Public Works 
01 Office Buildings 

800 Other Expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 51.1 1 Nil 

xiv) 02 State Share Of SPA (Plan) 5.68 Nil 
xv) 5054 Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges 

05 Roads 
337 Road Works 

56 NoD-Lapsable 
02 Road connecting Rai lway Station to 186.00 (-) 6.26 

NHJState Highway (4 Nos.) in Tripura 
(Plan) 

xvi) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 71.30 (-) 0.54 

xvii) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas 
i)04 Diesel/Gas Power Generation 
800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
58 Augmentation of Substation Capacity by 144. 15 Nil 

Addition of Transformer (Plan) 
xviii)05 Medical Education,Training And Research 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
84 Augment by addition of 34.10 Nil 

I 23/33kv. I x20/25mva,Transfer along with 
Associated Equipments and Civil Works 
(Plan) 

xix) 4801 Capital Outlay on Power Projects 
80 General 

190 Investment in Public Sector and Other 
Undertakings 

56 Non - lapsable 
99 Augmentation of P.K. Baris/Station with 44.71 Nil 

32KV Bay for Termination of 400KV line 
in Tripura (Plan) 

xx) 4701 Capital Outlay on Medium Irrigation 
80 General 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(~in lakh) 
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800 Otl1er Exoenditure 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 4.77 Nil 

xxi) 4702 Caoital Outlay on Minor Irrigation 
800 Other exoenditure 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 25.07 Nil 

xxii) 4711 Caoital Outlay on Flood Control Proiects 
01 Flood Control 

800 Other expenditure 
75 Soecial Plan Assistance 
0 1 SPA (Plan) 167.40 Ni l 

xxiii) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 76.78 (-) 1.57 

xx iv) 4220 Capital Outlay on Information and 
Publicity 

60 Others 
IOI Buildings 

xxv) 56 Non-Lapsable 
70 Nazrul Kala Kshetra (Phage-I I) in Tripura 40.00 Nil 

(Plan) 
x.xvi) 95 Soecial Central Assistance 

01 SCA (Plan) 19.34 (-)0.04 

xxvii) 4225 Capita l Outlay on Welfare of Scheduled 
Castes, Scheduled Tribes and other 
Backward Classes -

02 Welfare of Scheduled Tribes 
102 Economic Development 
56 Non-Lapsable . 
38 State Share of NLCPR (Plan) 19.1 3 Nil 

xxviii) 4408 Capital Outlay on food Storage and 
Warehousin12: 

02 Storage and Warehousing 
800 Other expenditure 

56 Non-Laosable 
98 Construction of five Food Storage 40.00 N il 

Godowns in Trioura <Plan) 
xx ix) 440 1 Capital Outlay on Crop Husbandrv 

800 Other expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (Plan) 45.60 (·) 17.91 

xx.x) 4435 Capital Outlay on other Agricultura l 
Programmes 

OJ Marketing and Qualitv Control 
IOJ Marketin12: facilities 
54 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural -

Develooment (NABARD) 
16 RIDF-XVII Construction of Market 79.75 Nil 

lnfarstructure at Bachaibari 111 Khowai 
District ofTrioura (Plan) -

xxxi) 18 RIDF-XVI I-Construction of Market 110.00 (-) 62.04 

Lnfrastructure at Machmara in North 
Trioura District ofTrioura (Plan) 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(fin /akh) 

Number and name of Head of J>estrlption of&rvices Re-appropriadon Final ei:eess (+) 
Grant I Auorooriation Account I savlno (.) 

xxxii) 19 RlDF-XVll - Construction of one 300 MT 133.35 (-) 3.00 

Ferti lizer Storage Godwan at Jirania in 
West Tripura ofTripura (Plan) 

xxxiii) 2 1 Construction of 26 Nos. V.L.W. Stores 142.84 (-) 3.96 

under RlDF-IX (Plan) 
xxxiv) 75 Special Plan Assistance 

0 1 SPA (Plan) 53. 17 (+) 40.00 
xxxv) 02 State Share of SPA (Plan) 18.60 (-) 18.60 

xxxvi) 4403 Capital Outlay on Animal Husbandry 
103 Poultry Development 

88 C.S. Schemes-111 
83 Assistance to State Poultry Duck 5.04 (-)0.01 

F arms(S trengtben i ng of District Poultry 
Fanns Unit-IJ Udaipur, Tripura. (CSS) 

xxx vii) 5425 Capital Outlay on other Sci en ti fie and 
Environmental Research 

600 Other Services 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 240.00 Nil 

xxxvii i) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports , Art 
and Culture 

01 General Education 
203 University and Higher Education 

41 Human Development 
59 Land Acquisition (Plan) 16.96 Nil 

xxx ix) 02 Technical Education 
104 Polytechnics 
95 Special Central Assistance 
0 1 SCA (Plan) 11.16 (-)0.0 1 

xi) 4202 Cap ital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art 
and Culture 

01 General Education 
202 Secondary Education 
56 Non-Laosable 
97 Infrastructure Development o f R.K. 51 .02 Nil 

Mission, Viveknagar, Agartala in Tripura 
(Plan) 

20-Welfa re of i) 2425 Co-operation 
Schedu led Castes and 800 Other expenditure 
Other Backward C lasses 70 State Share 
Department 12 Co-operation (Plan) 18.00 Nil 

ii) 22 10 Medical and Public Health 
01 Urban Health Services-Allopathy 

110 Hospital and Dispensaries 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 0.59 (+) 0.38 

iii) 2552 North Eastern Areas 
003 Training 

57 North Eastern Area Development 
59 State Contribution for NEC Projects (Plan) 5.47 (+) 0.50 

iv) 406 Forestry and Wild Life 
01 Forestry 

101 Forest Conservation, Development and 
Regeneration 

88 C .S. Scheme Ill 
46 Project Elephant (CSS) 3.00 (-) 2.50 
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Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(~in lakh) 
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v) 2203 Technical Education 
105 Polytechnics 
4 1 Human Development 
74 Gomati District Polytechnic al Fulkumari, 6.30 (-) 1.76 

Udaipur (Plan) 
vi) 2236 Nutrition 

02 Distribution of nutritious food and 
beverages 

102 Mid-day Meals 
89 C.S. Schemes - JV 
26 Procurement of LPG Cylinder (CSS) 7.66 (-) 0.09 

vii) 2235 Social Security and Welfare 
02 Social Welfare 

102 Child Welfare 
33 Welfare Programme 
06 Children's Home for Boys and Girls (Plan) 3.50 Nil 

viii) 22 10 Medical and Public Health 
03 Rural Health Services-Allopathy 

101 Health Sub-centres 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 20.08 (-) 1.09 

ix) 5055 Capital Outlay on Road Transport 
190 Investments in Public Sector and other 

Undertakings 
23 CorporationsfPSUsfBoards 
05 Tripura Road Transport Corporation (Plan) 1.70 (+) 1.22 -

x) 5054 Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges 
05 Roads 

337 Road Works 
56 Non-Lapsable -
02 Road Connecting Railway Station to 102.00 (-) 3.49 

NI-I/State Highway(4 Nos.) in Tripura 
(CSS) 

xi) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 39. 10 (-) 0.28 

xii) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas 
04 Diesel/Gas Power Generation 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
58 Augmentation of Substation Capacity by 79.05 Nil 

Addition ofTransfonner (NEC Scheme) 
xiii) 05 Transmission and Distribution 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
84 Augment by Addition of 18.70 N il 

132/33KY. lx20/25MVA,Transfer along -with associated equipments and civil 
works at 132 KV Mission Tilla Sub 
Station, Dham1anagar, Tripura (NEC 
Scheme) -

xiv) 4801 Capital Outlay on Power Projects 
05 Transmission and Distribution 

190 Investments in Public Sector and other 
Undertakings 

75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (Plan) 72.57 Nil 
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Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(fin lakh) 

Number and name of Head of DescriptionofServtces Rwpproprlatioo Final excess(+) 
Grant / Aonropriation Account I savinl!S (-} 

xv) 480 1 Capital Outlay on Power Projects 
80 General 

190 Investment in Publ ic Sector and Other 
Undertakings 

56 Non - lapsable 
99 Augmentation of P.K. Bari S/Station with 38.02 (-) 13.50 

32KY Bay for Tem1ination of 400KV line 
in Tripura (CSS) 

xvi) 470 I Capital Outlay on Medium Jrrigation 
80 General 

800 Other Expenditure 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 2.67 (-) 0.05 

xvi i) 4702 Capital Outlay on Minor Irrigation 
800 Other expenditure 

95 Special Central Assistance 
0 1 SCA (Plan) 13.75 Nil 

xviii) 4711 Capital Outlay on Flood control Projects 
01 Flood Control 

800 Other expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
01 SPA (Plan) 9 1.80 Nil 

xix) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 42. 10 (-) 0.86 

xx) 4225 Capital Outlay on Welfa re of Scheduled 
Castes, Scheduled Tribes and other 
Backward Classes 

01 Welfare of Scheduled Castes 
277 Education 

86 C.S. Scheme-I 
35 Hostels for S.C. Boys (CSS) 47.04 Nil 

xxi) 5475 Capital Outlay on other General Economic 
Services 

800 Other Expenditure 
89 C.S Scheme IV 
02 Strcnthening of Weights and Measures 48.00 (-) 10. 18 

Infrastructure of State (CSS) 
xxii) 4401 Capital Outlay on Crop Husband1y 

800 Other expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 State Share of SPA (CSS) 9.90 Nil 

xxiii) 4435 Capital Outlay on other Agricultural 
Programmes 

01 Marketing and Quali ty Control 
101 Marketing facilities 
54 National Bank for Agricul ture and Rural 

Development (NABARD) 
20 Construction of Market Infrastructure at 92.3 1 Nil 

Yaluarchar under RJDF-IX (CSS) 
xxiv) 2 1 Construction of one Ferti lizer Storage 29.00 (+) 2.48 

Godown under RIDF-IX (CSS) 
xxv) 75 Special Plan Assistance 

0 1 SPA (CSS) 68.9 1 (+) 45 .00 
xxvi) 02 State Share of SPA (CSS) 2 1.45 Nil 

xxvii) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports. Art 
and Cul ture 

Audit Report on State Finances for the year 2013- 14 ••• 
121 



Appendices 

Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(~in lakh) 
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01 Genera l Education 
203 University and Higher Education 
41 Human Development 
59 Land Acquisi tion (Plan) 9.30 Nil 

xxviii) 02 Technical Education 
104 Polytechnics 
41 Human Development 
74 Gomati District Polytechnic at Fulkumari, 2.50 (+) 0.07 

Udaipur (Plan) 
xxix) 95 Special Central Assistance 

01 SCA (Plan) 6.12 (-)0.12 
xxx) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art 

and Cul ture 
01 General Education 

202 Secondaiy Education 
56 Non-Lapsable 
97 Infrastructure Development of R.K. 34.00 Ni l 

Mission, Viveknagar, Agartala in Tripura 
(CSS) 

7. 23 - Panchayati Raj 25 15 Other Rural Development Programmes 
Department IOI Panchayati Rai 

98 Administration 
23 Panchayat (Plan) 6.65 Nil 

8. 24 - lndustries and 285 1 Village and Small Industries 
Commerce Department IOI Industria l Estates 

05 Establishment -
30 Institutional Finance (Non-plan) 12.58 (+) 12.58 

9. 25 - Industries and 4070 Capital Outlay on other Administrative 
Commerce (Handloom, Services 
Handicrafts and 800 Other expenditure -
Sericulture) Department 95 Special Central Assistance 

01 SCA (Plan) 42.32 (+) 42.32 
10. 26 - Fisheries 2552 North Eastern Areas 

Department IOI Indland fisheries 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
89 Promotion of intensive fish cul ture 40.75 Nil 

technology with pabda for sustainable 
production and li velihood Security if Rural 
Farmers (Plan) 

II . 27 - Agriculture i) 2401 Crop Husbandry 
Department 109 Extension and Fanners' Training 

70 State Share 
59 State Share of Agricultural Technology 136.48 (-) 119.10 

Mana_gement Agency (Plan) 
ii) 2552 North Eastern Areas 

800 Other Expenditure 
57 North Eastern Area Development 

. 
59 State Contribution for N.E.C. Projects 20.00 (-) 9.91 

(Plan) 
iii) 4435 Capital Oullay on other Agricultural . 

Programmes 
01 Marketing and Quali ty Control 

IOI Marketing facilities 
37 Agricultural Development 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

( fin lakh) 

:.~-.. - -~ ]lead of ' .· .l1aal excess (+) ·. SL Ne. ·· ~· otServteel Re-appropriation 
I ·AeeQpt ... / 1avln• (-) 

36 Rastriya Krishi Vikash Yojana (Plan) 72.40 (-)30.0 1 

iv) 54 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural 
Development (NA BARD) 

14 RIDF-XVIT - Construction of one 2000MT 170.00 (-) 50.00 

Multipurpose Cold Storage at Belonia in 
South Tripura (Plan) 

v) 21 RIDF-XVIII - Construction of 26 VLW 40.00 (+) 1.48 
Stores at 8 Districts in Tripura (Plan) 

vi) 22 RIDF-XVUJ - Construction of Market 94.86 (-) 12. 11 

Infrastructure at Hrishyamukh in South 
Tripura District (Plan) 

vii) 4401 Capital Outlay on Crop Husbandry 
11 3 Agricultural Engineering 
86 C.S. Scheme - I 
76 Promotion and strengthening of 16.1 8 (+) 16. 18 

agricultura l mechanism through training 
and testing (CSS) 

viii) 800 Other expenditure 
75 Special Plan Assistance 
02 SPA (Plan) 39.43 (+) 39.43 

ix) 4552 Capital Outlay on North Eastern Areas 
02 Storage And Warehousing 

IOI North Eastern Council 
57 North Eastern Area Development 
27 Agriculture (NEC Scheme) 90.79 (+) 90.79 

- 12. 29 - Animal Resource i) 2404 Dairy Development 
Development 191 Assistance to Cooperatives and other 
Department Bodies 

, 39 Animal Resource Development 
01 Agartala Milk Supply Scheme (Non-Plan) 38.38 (+) 38.38 

ii) 4403 Capital Outlay on Animal Husbandry 
109 Extension and Training 
95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 49.00 (+) 49.00 

13. 3 I-Rural Developmem i) 4215 Capital Outlay on Water Supply and 
Department Sanitation 

01 Water Supply 
800 Other expenditure 

89 C.S.Scheme- 1 V 
27 Multi Sectoral Development Programme 666.60 (+) 666.60 

for Minority Concentration Block (CSS) 
ii) 45 15 Capital Outlay on other Rural 

Development Programmes 
103 Rural Development 
i)75 Special Plan Assistance 

- 01 SPA (Plan) 67.81 (+) 67.81 

iii) 95 Special Central Assistance 
01 SCA (Plan) 13.13 (+) 13.13 

14. 39 - Education (Higher) i) 2202 General Education - Department 03 University and Higher Education 
103 Government Colleges and Institutes 
75 Special Central Assistance 
0 1 SCA (Plan) 70. 18 (+)70.18 
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Appendix 2.9 (contd .. ) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

(~in /akh) 
ald.....-4:/ ~\ ~ ".,~~- ' ~~ ....... ,:'Si:~ ·j,iiit'' '""' •>v 

'l 
'. .. .. · .. ·: · .• -::;K;(f: "'·'-' .,,,,,._,,_< ~gr ·';;"-:;:~-?,X:\!~~ . 

.;;_~"::':0-"'' 

ii) 2203 Technical Education 
105 Polytechnics 
41 Human Devclooment 
50 Polytechnic Institute (Plan) 29.06 (+) 29.06 

iii) 50 Polytechnic Lnstitute (Non-Plan) 4.20 (+) 4.20 
iv) 70 State Share 

39 Higher Education (Plan) 14.04 (+) 14.04 
v) 11 2 Enginecringff cchnical Colleges and 

Institutes 
70 State Share 
39 Higher Education (Plan) 28.08 (+) 28.08 

vi) 2552 North Eastern Areas 
03 University and Higher Education 

103 Government Colleges and Institutions 
57 North Eastern Arca Development 
59 State Contribution for NEC Projects 8.32 (+) 8.32 

(NEC Scheme) 
vii) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art 

and Culture 
01 General Education 

203 University and Higher Education 
41 Human Development 
59 Land Acquisition (Plan) 28.44 Nil 

vi ii) 02 Technical Education 
104 Polytechnics 
95 Special Central Ass istance -
01 SCA (Plan) 18.72 (-) 0.02 

15. 40 - Education (School) i) 2202 General Education 
Department 01 Elementary Education . 

102 Assistance to Non-Government Primary 
Schools 

41 Human Development 
65 Non Salary for Grants-in-aid Institutions -3.00 (-) 0.40 

(Non-Plan) 
ii) 05 Laneuage Development 

102 Promotion of Modern Indian Languages 
and Literature 

89 C.S.Scheme-fV 
01 Scheme for Providing Quality Education 293.71 (-) 47.25 

in Madrassa (CSS) 
iii) 2236 NutTition 

02 Distribution of nutritious food and 
beverages 

102 Mir.1-r.lay Meals 
89 C.S. Schemes-IV 
26 Procurement of LPG Cylinder (CSS) 23.08 (-)0.:;!8 

iv) 4202 Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art 
and Culture 

01 General Education 
202 Secondary Education -

56 Non-Laosable 
97 Infrastructure Development of R.K. 74.42 Nil 

Mission,Viveknagar, Agartala in Tripura 
(C.S.S) 
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Appendices 

Appendix 2.9 (concld.) 

Statement of cases where re-appropriation done without the knowledge of Legislature 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. 7) 

41-Education (Socia l) 
Department 

43- Finance Department 

52-Family Welfare and 
Preventive Medic ine 

v) 600 General 

98 Admi nistration 
40 School Education Plan 

i) 2235 Social Securi and Welfare 
60 Other Social Security and Welfa re 

Pro ramme 
102 Pensions under Socia l Securit Scheme 
33 Welfare Pro ramme 
83 Pension to U nmaried Women of the age of 

45 years and above belonging to B PL 
families on-Plan) 

ii) 84 State W idow Pensin Scheme Non-Plan) 
ii i) 4235 Capital Outlay on Socia l Securi ty and 

Welfare 
02 Social Welfare 

IOI Welfare of Handica Jed 
75 S ecia l Plan Assistance 
OJ SPA (Plan) 

iii) 104 Welfare of a ed , infim1 and destitute 
75 S ecia l Plan Assistance 
01 S PA (P lan) 

i) 2048 Appropriation for reduclion or avoidance 
of Debt 

IOI Sinkin Funds 
99 Others 
65 Redem tion/Sinkin Fund (Non-Plan) 

ii) 6004 Loans and Advances from the Central 
Government 

Ol Non-Plan Loans 
800 Other Loans 

58 
45 

i) 22 10 

0 1 

11 0 

17 

02 

ii) 95 
OJ 

iii) 03 
JOI 

95 
01 

Debt Services 
Relief on Account of Natural Calamities 
(Non-Plan 

Medical and Public Health 
Urban Health Services-A llo ath 

S ecia l Central Assistance 
SCA (Plan 
Rural Hea lth Services-Allo a th 
Health Sub-Centres 
S ecial Centra l Assistance 

SCA (Plan) 

( fin lakh) 

2.50 (+) 2.50 

8.35 (+) 8.35 

10.57 (+) I 0.57 

90.00 Nil 

2,60. 10 Nil 

5000.00 Nil 

6.00 (-) 2.80 

0.40 (-) 0.20 

2.25 (-) 0.23 

50.79 (-)5.29 
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Appendix 2.10 

Statement showing the cases where more than 50 per cent savings were not surrendered 
during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.9) 
( rin fakir) 

Pereeatage of 
SI. Number and name of grants I appropriations Total Total AmoHtnot total savings 
No. provision savings surrendered not 

surrendered 
Revenue - Voted 

1. 4 - Election Department 2,528.60 279.27 186.27 67 

2. 6 - Revenue Department 13,228.68 3,166.4 1 3, 142.65 99 
3. 12 - Co-operation Department 1,623.92 3 12.12 2 14.08 69 

4. 
15 - Public Works (Water Resources) 

12,045.09 3,53 1.03 2,033.67 58 
Department 

5. 19-Tribal Welfa re Department 84,035.65 28,705.60 24,953.54 87 

6. 20 - Welfare of Scheduled Castes and Other 
34, 186.86 12,891 .29 8,062.39 63 

Backward Classes Department 

7. 
21 - Food, Civil Supplies and Consumers Affairs 

7,947.30 444.49 432.03 97 
Department 

8. 24 - Industries and Commerce Department 2,993.82 421.17 377.54 90 

9. 
25 - Industries and Commerce (Handloom, 

1.822.91 219.06 171.58 78 Hand icrafts and Sericulture) Department 
10. 26 - Fisheries Department 3,67 1.59 696.79 461.79 66 

11. 3 1 - Rura l Development Department 11,539.95 4,882. 19 4,355.57 89 

12. 
33 - Science Technology & Environment 

621.75 79.47 67.06 84 
Department 

13. 34 - Planning and Co-ordination Department 325. IO 70.39 67. 19 95 
14. 40 - Education (School) Department 1,03,820.92 8,401.75 5, 151.38 61 

15. 
42 - Education (Sports and Youth Programme) 

4,258.03 759.98 719. IO 95 
Department 

16. 46 - Treasuries 80 1.53 328.56 198.56 60 
17. 52 - Family Welfa re and Preventive Medicine 28,249.78 16,922. 11 16,502.19 98 
18. 54 - Factories and Boilers Organisation 185.8 1 27.40 26.25 96 
19. 59 - Tourism 33.28 33.28 20.28 6 1 
Revenue - Chal'2ed 
20. 8 - General Administration (P&T) Department 349.50 80.7 1 53.51 66 
21 . 28 - Horticulture Department 23.00 5.58 4.83 87 
Caoltal - Voted 
22. 6 - Revenue Department 4, 179.59 430.84 430.75 99 
23. I I - Transport Department 3,241 .8 1 784.89 732.89 93 
24. 16 - Health Department 5, 171 . 10 2,434.32 2,265. 12 93 

25. 21 - Food, Civil Suppl ies and Consumers Affai rs 
6 19.9 1 204.42 203.42 99 

Department 
26. 23 - Panchavati Raj Department 558.37 80.37 73.3 1 91 
27. 27 - Agriculture Department 11,593.20 7,978.76 4,264. I2 53 
28. 29 - Animal Resource Development Department 705.34 261.92 164.86 63 
29. 40 - Education (School) Department 8,667.46 3,064.60 2,436.12 79 
Capital - Chal'1!ed ·'" 
30. 43 - Finance Department 35,626.02 16,442.61 15,714.38 96 

.. · Total: 3.84,655.87 1.13.941.38 93..4tltl.43 
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Appendix 2.11 

Amount surrendered in excess of actual savings during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.10) 

14 - Power Department 43,30.50 167.33 184. 12 

16 - Health Department 14,534.20 49. 17 1,263.5 1 

17 - Tnfomrntion, Cultural Affairs 1,994.00 5 1.23 92.3 1 
and Tourism De artrnent 
27 - Agricul ture Department 15,265.40 2,478.10 2,709. 17 

37 - Labour Organisation 894.34 210.42 2 18.05 

51 - Publ ic Works (Drinking Water 8,355. 10 126.69 365.03 
and Sanitation) De artment 

45,373.54 3,082.94 4,832.19 
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( fin /akh) 

16. 79 

1,2 14.34 

4 1.08 

23 1.07 

7.63 

238.34 

1;149.25 
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Appendix 2.12 

Statement of grants/appropriations in which savings of~ 10 lakh and above 
occurred but no part had been surrendered during 2013-14 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.11) 
( f°in fakir) 

SL No. Number and name or grant/ approprtadou Savtnp 

Revenue-voted 
I. 1 - Department of Parliamentary Affairs 245.12 
2. 2 - Governor's Secreteriat 40.76 
3. 3 - General Administration (S.A) Department 814.36 
4. 7 - General Administration (Administrative Reform) Department 61.79 
5. 9 - Statistical Department 203.34 
6. 10 - Home (Police) Department 13,508.35 
7. 11 - Transport Department 34.84 
8. 13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) Department 3,092.98 
9. 18 - General Administration (Political) Department 320.71 
10. 22 - Relief and Rehabilitation Department 1,200.57 
1 1. 23 - Panchavati Raj Department 7,969.72 
12. 30 - Forest Department 1,427. 17 
13. 32 - Tribal Rehabilitation in Plantation & Part icularly Vulnerable Tribal 214.28 

Group 
14. 35 - Urban Development Department 5,639.9 1 
15. 36 - Home (Jail) Department 238.29 
16. 38 - General Administration (Printing and Stationery) Department 236.50 
17. 39 - Education (Higher) Department 1,93 1.32 
18. 44 - Institutional Finance Department 50.69 
19. 45 - Taxes and Excise 452.69 
20. 47- Chief Minister's Secretariat 19.06 
2 1. 48 - High Court 98.98 
22. 49 - Fire Service Organisation 802.39 
23. 53-Tribal Welfare (Research) Department 182.05 
24. 55 - Employment 72. 15 
25. 57 - Welfare of Minorities Department 278.40 
26. 58 - Home (FSL, PAC, Prosecut ion and Co-ord ination Cell) Department 127.96 

Reveuue-cbaned 
27. 13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) Department 193. 15 
28. 35 - Urban Development Department 15.75 
29. 43 - F inance Department 1,6 10.14 

Canltal-voted 
30. 5 - Law Department 744.14 
3 1. 13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) Department 4,9 15.47 
32. 17 - Information, Cultural Affairs and Touri sm Department 44.63 
33. 25 - Industries & Commerce (Handloom, Handicrafts & Sericulture) 249.89 

Department 
34. 31 - Rural Development Department 297.08 
35. 35 - Urban Development Department 1,282.60 
36. 36 - Home (Jail) Department 462.88 
37. 39 - Education (Higher) Department 1,942.5 1 
38. 45 - Taxes and Excise 546.00 
39 49 - Fire Service Organisation 1, 129.32 
40 50 - Civil Defence 40.00 
4 1 52 - Family Welfare and Preventive Medicine 1,392.09 
42 57 - Welfare of Minorities Department 3,330.99 

Caoltal-eb•"-' 
43 13 - Public Works (Roads and Buildings) Department 4, 181. 11 
44 15 - PubLic Works (Water Resource) Deoartment 259.95 
45 35 - Urban Development Department 48.75 

Total: 61-'17.86 
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Appendix 2.13 

Statement of cases where amount surrendered though there were no savings 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.3. l 1) 

I. 28 - Horticulture 
De artment 

30.93 

2.90 

33.83 
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32.83 

4.04 

( fin crore) 

1.9 1 3.74 

1.14 0. 13 

3.87 
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Appendix 2.14 

Statement showing rush of expenditure (more than 20 per cent of total expenditure) in the 
month of March 2014 

(Reference: Paragraph 2.3.12) 
( r in crore) 

Expenditure Espeadlture Pereeatage of 8"8dltve 
SL NPDlber Ud name of grant I Total Total mtt.e4• 

d ....... lnCUl'l'td dDrlag ~ 20141o 
No. appropriation provision espeadltare ·. (JUrterof T~ 

2013-14 March. 2014 Total prol'hiois :·. 

(I) (2) (J) (!) (5) (6) (1) (I) 
1. 4-Election Department 25.29 22.49 16.27 14.67 58 65 

2. 6-Revenue Department 174.83 138. 11 65.45 33.64 19 24 

3. 12 - Co-operation 23.4 1 21.57 8.51 5.32 23 25 
Department 

4. 13 - Public Works (Roads 697.13 537.69 231.80 191.65 27 36 
and Buildings) Department 

5. 15 - Public Works (Water 193.64 71.66 39.03 34.98 18 49 
Resources) Department 

6. 19 - Tribal Welfare 1698.95 1128.65 48 1.10 343.55 20 30 
Department 

7. 20 - Welfare of Scheduled 836.7 1 516.44 272.60 204.71 24 40 
Castes and Other Backward 
Classes Department 

8. 21 - Food, Civil Supplies 85.67 79. 18 35.33 32. 17 38 41 
and Consumers Affairs 
Depa1tment 

9. 22 - Relief and 27.49 15.49 6.69 6.64 15 43 
Rehabilitation Department 

10. 23 - Panchayati Raj 235.73 175.23 66.72 42.49 18 24 
Department 

11 . 27 - Agriculture Department 268.84 133.72 56.23 47.80 18 36 

12. 32-Planning and 20.29 18. 14 l 1.04 8.84 44 49 
Co-ordination Department 

13. 36 - Home (Jail) 33.3 1 26.30 8.47 6.37 19 24 
Department 

14. 41-Education (Social) 353.67 256.30 86.04 55.45 16 22 
Department 

15. 5 1 - Public Works 122.88 11 3.07 42.48 38.64 3 1 34 
(Drinking Water and 
Sanitation) Department 

16. 57-Welfare of Minorities 60.94 24.85 18.89 16.35 6 1 66 
Department 

17. 58 - Home (FSL, PAC, 9.38 8. 10 3.45 2.69 29 33 
Prosecution and Co-
ordination Cell) Department -

Total: 4.868.16 3.286.99 1.450.10 1.085.96 22 33 
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SI. No. 

l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I 1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1 

32 

Appendix 2.15 

Department-wise break-up of AC Bills drawn during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.4.1) 

No. of AC Billa drawn Name of the Department 
durin2 2013-14 

Revenue Department 2189 

General Administration (P&T), Department 6 
(TPSC) 

Home (Police) Department 44 

Healtb Department 2 

General Administration (Political) Department 60 

Tribal Welfare Department 2915 

Welfare ofSCs and OBCs Department 2394 

Food, Civi l Supplies and Consumers Affairs 68 
Department 
Relief and Rebabil itarion Department 33 

Agriculture Department 97 

Horticulture Department 97 

Information Technology Department I 

Rural Development Department 470 

Home (Jail) Department 21 

General Administration (SA) Depa1tment 4 

Education (Higher) Department l 

Education (School) Department 191 

Education (Social) Department 143 

Education (Sports and Youth Programme) 127 
Department 

Institutional Finance I 

Panchayati Raj Department 14 

Chief Minister Secretariat 5l 

Welfare of Minorities Department 403 

Home (FSL, PAC, Prosecution, Coordination 60 
Cell ) 
Election Department 2248 

Law Depattment 27 

Fisheries Deprutment l 

Treasuries 2 

Fire Service Organisation 5 

Family Welfare and Preventive Medicine 173 

Governor Secretariat 5 

Civil Defence l 8 

.. Total: 1,1871 
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(~in crore) 
. 

Amount 

12.92 

0.02 

2. l9 

O.Ol 

0.36 

20.20 

16.02 

0.33 

6.27 

0.88 

0.50 

0.20 

2.36 

0.40 

0.39 

0.07 

10.91 

0.72 

0.37 

0.04 

0.05 

0.05 

2.00 

0.04 

9.34 

0. 13 

0.02 

0. 12 

5.92 

2.13 

0.11 

O.l 7 

95.24 
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Appendix-2.16 

Department-wise alJocation of Tribal Sub-Plan funds where expenditure was less than 
~ 1 crore and above during 2013-14 
(Reference: Paragraph 2.5. 1) 

(fin crore) 

'·~*;U!, ;:,'0,(;(:i{!!~ .. ALL . , .~z :J%;< ... U. L' :i · ... · .. c " \3 . .·. ·; .. 

~··;;, :?,•:.< :;~~.,'f:~,,·~~t . ••••· r · T6tidrto'Visi011 ' · ~nditllre •··. Savings ,No-;.(·:, "C;::' . ·. : I · ..... ,• ·: '·\ ... I · 

1. Pub)jc Works (Water Resource) 25.51 14.49 11.02 
Department 

2. Health Department 69.64 43 .19 26.45 
3. Public Works (Roads and Buildings) 152.97 57.35 95.62 

Department 
4. Food, Civil Supplies and Consumers 6.47 3.66 2.8 l 

Affairs Department 
5. Pancbavati Rai Department 20.58 9.07 11.51 
6. Industries (Handloom, Handicraft & 7.22 5.76 1.46 

Sericulrure) Depa1tment 
7. Agriculture D epartment 55.22 48.2 1 7.01 
8. Animal Resource Development ] 1.24 9.92 1.32 

Department 
9. Forest Department 35.02 28.58 6.44 
10. Rural Development Department 106.07 98.38 7.69 
11. Urban Development Department 115.10 50.53 64.57 
12. Education (Higher) Department 34.39 23.93 10.46 
13. Education (School) Department 84.79 50.64 34.15 
14. Education (Social) Department 147.28 89.01 58.27 
15. Family Welfare and Preventive 53.00 41.45 11.55 

Medicine 
16. Information and Technology 4.48 Nil 4.48 
17. Home (Jail) Department 8.03 4.48 3.55 
18. Transport Department 18.33 15.55 2.78 
19. Power Department 17.56 14.J 9 3.37 

~ 

·.·:' Total: 972.90 608.39 364.51 
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No. 

(1) 

J. 

2. 
3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 
l J. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

Appendices 

Appendix- 3.1 

Statement showing Utilisation Certificates outstanding as on 31 March 2014 
(Reference: Paragraph 3.1) 

(~in crore) 
;;; 

Number of 

Name of department Year 
Amount of Utilisation 

grants Certificate 
outstandintt 

(2) (3) (4) i> f5) 

Transpott Department 2011-1 2 3.43 18 
2012-13 2.28 3 

Power Department 20 10- 11 66.75 5 
Health Services 20 10- 11 10.00 I 

20 11 -12 17.25 3 
201 2-1 3 18.00 I 

Information, Technology 2012-13 1.89 l 
Department 2013-14 0. 12 I 
Tribal Welfare Department 20 12-1 3 107.67 148 

2013-14 75.8 1 173 
Welfare of Scheduled Castes 20 12- 13 63.04 204 
Department 20 13-14 35. 19 125 

Panchayati Raj Department 2012-1 3 3.82 6 
2013-14 3.88 3 

Industries and Commerce 20 11 - 12 2. 19 2 
Department 201 2-1 3 2.06 2 

20 13- 14 1.31 l 
Industries (Handloom, Handicrafts 20 11- 12 4.1 0 8 
and Sericulture) Department 201 3-1 4 1.40 2 

Horti culture Department 2012-1 3 2.5 1 11 2 
Forest Department 20 11-1 2 10.00 I 

20 13-14 18.35 5 
Rural Development Department 20 12-13 55.27 35 

20 13-1 4 22.20 120 
Planning and Co-ordination 20 12-1 3 4.68 2 
Department 
Education (Higher) Department 20 12- 13 0.09 l 

Education (School) Department 2012-13 0.48 1 
Total! , 533.77 984 
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Appendix- 3.2 

Statement showing names of bodies and authorities, the accounts of which had not been received 
(Reference: Paragraph 3.2) 

rr ;,, la kit) 

/ -,. .· . . 
·• ··.: .. 

St. ) \ 
~--Ofttae ~/A~ 

y_, for Wldda Aceo.llts Gnatll rece&ed 
~~-. :::. ; {Jj'?~:- .·. ..·· ;_/<. .· ··.·•··. '< : .·· 

liad Dot tieep.reeefved dUIDg 2013--14 
,·· .--:. :,<' .... .. 

I Tripura State Social Welfare Advisory Board 2013- 14 NA 
2 District Rural Development Agency, West 2007-08 to 2013-14 NA 
3 District Rural Development Agency, South 20 11-12 & 20 13- 14 NA 
4 District Rural Development Agency, North 20 12-1 3 & 2013-14 NA 
5 District Rural Development Agency, Dhala i 2013- 14 NA 
6 Tripura Scheduled Caste Development 1998-99 to 20 L3-14 NA 

Corporation Limited. 
7 Tripura Renewable Energy Development 2012-13 & 20 13-1 4 241.83 

Agency 
8 Ramthakur Pathsala(Boys)H .S (+2 stage) 2006-07 to 20 13- 14 NA 

School, Agartala 
9 Health & Fami ly Welfare Society 2012-13 to 20 13-14 NA 
10 Tripura State Blindness Control Society 2003-04 to 201 3-1 4 NA 
11 Tripura State Leprosy Control Society 2008-09 to 2013- 14 NA 
12 Tripura State Council for Science and 20 12- 13 to 201 3-14 656.53 

Technolol!V 
13 D.N. Vidyamandir,Dhannanagar 2012-13 to 20 13-14 NA 
14 Hindi H.S. School, Agartala 20 13-14 NA 
15 Prachya Bharati H.S School Since inception NA 
16 Srinath Vidyaniketan Khowai Since inception NA 
17 Tripura State TB Control Society 2012-13 to 20 13-14 NA 
18 Tripura Mental Health Society 2005-06 to 20 J 3- J 4 NA 
19 Netaji Sub has Vidya Nike tao School, 2006-07 to 20 13- 14 NA 

Agartala 
20 Isanchandra Na gar Pargana H.S. School, 2013-14 NA 

Bishalgarah 
2 1 Karaimura H.S. School (Secondary State) 2009- 10 to 20 13-14 NA 
22 Fatikroy Class - XII School, (Secondary 2006-07 to 20 13-14 NA 

State) 
23 Ramtbakur Pathsala (G irls) H.S (+2 Stage) 201 3-14 NA 

School Agartala 
24 B ishalgrah H.S. School, Bishalgah 2005-06 to 20 13- 14 NA 
25 Raoirbazer Vidya mandir Ranibazer Since inception NA 
26 Ramesh H. S. School, Udaipur 201 3-14 NA 
27 Bclonia Vidyapith Reloni a 2011-12 & 2013- 14 NA 
28 Mahatma Gandhi H.S. School, Collage Tilla, 20 12- 13 to 20 13- 14 NA 

Agartala -
29 Tripura Veterinary Council 20 13-1 4 NA 
30 Sankaracharya vidyaniketan (Secondary Since inception to 2013- 14 NA 

Stage) -
31 Vivekananda H.S School, Secondary Stage) Since inception to 20 13- 14 NA 
32 Jolaibari High School, (Secondary Stage) Since inception To 2013- 14 NA 
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Appendix- 3.2 (concld.) 

Statement showing names of bodies and authorities, the accounts of which had not been received 
(Reference: Paragraph 3.2) 

( fin lakh) 
•,, 

SI. 
Name of the Body/ Authority Year for which Accounts Grants received 

No. bad not been received during 2013-14 

33 Ramkrishna Shiksha Paratisthan, (Secondary Since inception to 2013-14 115.39 
Stage) Kailashahar 

34 Harachandra H. S. School, (Secondary Stage) Since inception to 2013-1 4 NA 
35 Tripura Spotts Council 2013-14 84.00 
36 Tripura Schedul ed Tribes Cooperative 20 10- 11 & 20 13- 14 NA 

Development Corporation Limited. 
37 Ramakrishna Vivekananda Vidyamandir, 20 13-14 77.67 

Dhaleswar. 
38 Bordowali H.S. School (Primary Stage). 2008-09 to 2013-14 NA 

Bordowali. 
39 Tripura State Co-operative Bank Limited, Since inception to 20 13-14 NA 

Agartala. 
40 DRDA, Gomati 2012- 13 to 20 13- 14 NA 
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l. Tripura Board of Secondary 
Education 

2. Tripura Housing and 
Construction Board 

3. Tripura Khadi and Village 
Industries Board. 

4. Tripura Tribal Areas 
Autonomous District Council 

5. Tripura State Legal Service 
Authority 

6. Tripura Building & Other 
Construction Workers' 
Welfare Board. 
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Appendix- 3.3 

Statement showing performance of the autonomous bodies 
(Reference: Paragraph 3.3) 

2006-07 to 20 l 0- l I NIL 1998-99 to 200 1-02 26-04-201 0 Not yet placed 
2002-03 to 2005-06 12- 12-2011 
2006-07 to 2009-10 10-04-2014 

2006-07 to 2011-1 2 20 I 0- l l 1990-91 to l 992-93 03-07-2007 Not yet placed 
l 993 -94 to 1996-97 03-06-2009 
1997-98 to 200 1-02 23-02-2011 
2002-03 to 2009- l 0 12-03-20 13 

2004-05 to 20 l 0- 11 NIL 2008-09 to 20 I 0-1 1 06-09-2013 24.02.2014 

Article Sixth NlL 2009- 10 & 2010- l I 08-01-2014 22.08.2014 
Schedule & 

10-04-20 14 
19(2) NIL 2010-1Ito2012-13 21-03-20 14 Not yet placed 

19(2) NIL 2007-08 to 20 11- 12 Ol-1 1-2012 26.02.20 14 

Annual Accounts for NA 
the years 20 l 0- l l to 
20 13-14 are pending. 
Annual Accounts NA 
from 2011 -1 2 to 
2013-14 are pending. 

Annual Accounts for NA 
the years 20 1 1- 12 to 
2013- l4are endin . 
Annual Accounts for NA 
the years 2012-13 & 
2013-l4are endin . 

NA 

Annual Accounts for NA 
the years 2012- 13 & 
2013- l4are endin . 
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